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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Company Structure
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As at 31 March 2017 #HZz=-Z—+F=A=+—H

INACTIVE

INVESTMENT HOLDING (Note 5) ASSET MANAGEMENT (Note 5)
China 0il Resources Group Ltd.
(BVI)

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDING

100%

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT & MONEY LENDING

100%
INSURANCE BROKERAGE (Note 1)
m
100%
SECURITIES BROKERAGE
100% 15%
HUMAN RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING

Tou Rong Chang Fu
Group Ltd. (Formerly
known as “PetroAsian

g g g

Energy Holdings Ltd.”)
(Cayman Islands)
H.K. Listed ote3)

INVESTMENT HOLDING INACTIVE

INVESTMENT HOLDING OIL EXPLOITATION BUSINESS

COMMODITY TRADING

INVESTMENT HOLDING INVESTMENT HOLDING

100%

m
m
Wing Shing Group Ltd. 100%
(BVI)

100%

INVESTMENT HOLDING (Note 2)

100%
INVESTMENT HOLDING (Note 4)

100%
COMMODITY TRADING

INVESTMENT HOLDING

100%
INVESTMENT HOLDING

INACTIVE

INVESTMENT HOLDING

4 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t R =& M AR A A
Annual Report 2016-17 ZZ—AE—LFFEHE

INVESTMENT HOLDING N3k

INACTIVE

COMMODITY TRADING

MINING BUSINESS

INVESTMENT HOLDING

OIL EXPLOITATION BUSINESS

EXPLOITATION DRILLING

Note:

Completed acquisition on 16 August 2016.
Company name changed on 21 September 2016.
Company name changed on 28 September 2016.
Company was incorporated on 22 November 2016.
Completed acquisition on 16 February 2017.
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TOURONG CHANGFU

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Tou Rong Chang
Fu Group Limited (the “Company”) (formerly known as PetroAsian
Energy Holdings Limited), | hereby present the audited annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded
a consolidated revenue of approximately HK$13,832,372,000
(2016: HK$5,932,235,000) and a gross profit of approximately
HK$312,721,000 (2016: HK$124,179,000), representing an increase
of 133% and 152% from the year of 2016 respectively. The increase
in the Group’s revenue and gross profit was mainly attributable
to the continued significant increase in revenue of the commodity
trading segment. The profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company was approximately HK$117,760,000 (2016: loss of
approximately HK$227,059,000), representing an increase of 152% as
compared to last year.

During the year under review, the performance of global economy
remained stable, while events such as Brexit and U.S. presidential
election only gave short concussion on the financial market. Although
the PRC economy still faced the downward pressure, the situation
was gradually stabilised. The oil price finally stabilised at a low level
with its fluctuation slowing down relatively. Although the oil price was
suppressed due to geopolitical factors as well as the new development
of more energy substitutes such as flammable ice and shale gas,
however, the demand for petroleum and corresponding derivatives
chemicals products still maintained its growth. Over the years, the
Group was able to grab the market opportunities and hence delivered
a sound performance in terms of trading volume and revenue of the
Group's commodity trading business during the year.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 gt & Z £ B BR A 7
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Even though the commodity trading business remained our primary
source of income, the Group has been committed to its business
diversification in recent years. Following the obtaining of a license from
Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong to carry out type 1
(dealing in securities) regulated activities two years ago, last year, the
Group also successfully obtained a license from Securities and Future
Commission of Hong Kong to carry out type 9 (assets management)
regulated activities. Since its commencement, the securities business has
been involved in the listing sub-underwriting works of several enterprises,
with the development pace in line with the Group's expectation. In
addition, the Group progressed satisfactorily for its money lending
business and achieved sound results last year as expected.

Looking forward, the performance of the global economy is still
satisfactory under the easing monetary policy. Although the US Federal
Reserve is gradually raising interest rates, the pace will be slow and
only slight adjustment, hence the impact to the overall economy is
minimal. The PRC economy is still under the structural adjustment
stage and is expected to continue its up-going trend while remaining
stable. As for Hong Kong economy, it has demonstrated a sound
turnaround momentum in the beginning of the year with its property
market continues to maintain a strong growth, while the retail and
tourism industry showed signs of recovery. Hence, the Group is
prudently optimistic about the operating environment this year.

As both the PRC and Hong Kong economies remain stable, the stock
market in Hong Kong reaches two years' high and along with the
increase in trading volume, such objective environment is favorable
for the financial, especially the securities business. The Group will
accelerate the development pace of the financial sector in the new
financial year to gradually increase the proportion of the corresponding
trade volume to the overall operation of the Group. To achieve such
objective, the Group will actively recruit professionals in the sector
and also intend to apply for a license from Securities and Future
Commission of Hong Kong to carry out type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activities and plan to apply more licenses of different
varieties for operating regulated activities, with a view to improve the
comprehensive competitive strengths of the Group’s financial business
and optimise the quality of the Group’s profit.
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The insurance brokerage business is an integral part of the Group's
development in the financial service sector. Currently, the Group is
expanding its insurance sales team pro-actively and broadening the
scope of its insurance products to cater for market demand, and
discussing cooperation plans with different financial institutions, with
the hope of developing this sector to become the new highlight of the
Group’s business in the future.

With the Hong Kong economy continues to grow, together with the
people’s active investment activities, the money lending business
market will be booming. Meanwhile, competition will also intensify.
The Group expects that, along with active stock market trading
sentiment and robust investment atmosphere in property market, the
money lending business market is expected to maintain its growth in
the coming years and the Group’s money lending business will also
benefit therefrom.

Whilst international oil price is expected to continue wavering at
low level in the coming year, the energy consumption volume in
China will continue to increase, in which it will push up the increase
in demand for oil import and expect to bring positive impact to
the Group’s oil trading business. The Group will keep up with the
satisfactory performance in the existing product lines and explore
new opportunities in the more energy-related markets to achieve a
sustained and steady profit growth.

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 18 April 2017, the Group
engaged Mr. Andrew Look as the Chief Investment Officer of the
Group’s asset management business and as the Representative Officer
of China Hong Kong Link Asset Management Limited, an indirectly
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Look is a renowned
and experienced professional in Hong Kong financial sector and has
extensive experience in fund management. The Group firmly believes
that his joining will speed up our development pace in financial business
and establish a reputable financial service brand for the Group.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to the members of the Board, the management and all our
dedicated staff for their invaluable services for the Group over the
year. | would also like to thank our shareholders and business partners
for their ongoing support and trust. We are well positioned to deliver
further growth on our shareholder’s value.

Li Zhenjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report
by the Group, highlighting its environmental, social and governance
performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting
Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance
set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This ESG report covers the Group's overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the commodity
trading, property investment, money lending and securities brokerage
businesses in the offices situated at Hong Kong (Admiralty and Wan
Chai), Macau and Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, Mainland China
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 (“reporting period”), unless
otherwise stated.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on for this ESG report, key stakeholders namely customers,
suppliers, sub-contractors, employees, creditors, shareholders and the
community have been involved in regular engagement sessions to
discuss and to review areas of attention which will help the business
meets its potential and sustainable growth and be prepared for future
challenges.

STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our environmental,
social and governance approach and performance. Please give your
suggestions or share your views with us via email at enquiries@trcf.
com.hk.

THE COMPANY'S COMMITMENT ON ESG

We are committed to minimise the impact that running our business
has on the environment and we encourage our stakeholders to do
the same. During the year, we have complied with all applicable laws
and regulations to act in a socially responsible manner. To protect our
global environment, we have been striving to pursue recycling and
resources conservation.
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RIB-HERERHRS

To provide a safe and healthy workplace, as well as a dynamic work
environment for our employees, we place great importance to our
human resources management and safety management.

Last but not least, we believe that active communication is the key
to building better relationships with our stakeholders. Though we do
not maintain a wide range of suppliers, we are committed to maintain
regular and transparent communication with our stakeholders on all
environmental, social and governance related issues of our business.

Type of emissions the Group involved during the reporting period
include electricity, petrol, non-hazardous waste and business
air travel. No packaging materials, production-generated
wastewater or hazardous waste was involved. Total floor area
coverage for the Group was 1,073 m?.

1. Greenhouse Gas Emission

) Greenhouse Gas Emissions

RABETRHE—EZT2@ENTHESMUR
FEMBEDNTIERE  HMASEERRMHA
NEREBREZEZ2ER-

—EifZ BPIRREERNER  ZEREDE
BYFHBENRER - BERMALRERERZ
HER RN ERMNF D EERRER
WHEMEBOMARE e RERARE
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REBMPREPEAS ROBERTEES
BEN AR BEEEVMEMEZK:
MTESRBEMP  EEBKEIEE
EEFEY) - AL BEMBEERRR1,073F
5ok

1. BEREHM

() BEREBHM

Scope of
Greenhouse Emission Total Emission
Gas Emissions Emission Sources (in tonnes of CO2e) (in percentage)
BERE
(AW =S e BYHE
BERBHHEE BB ER EE5) (BAL)
Scope 1
& EN
Direct Emission Consumption of Petrol by 35.22 33%
BB the Group's Owned Fleet
AEEEBEHKMEREZ UM
Scope 2
g E2
Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity?? 61.96 58%
e ENERES
Scope 3
EE3
Other Indirect Emission Paper Consumption 2.77 9%
HoAth R 5 HE AR HRIEHE
Business Air Travel 6.57
iz =k
Total 106.52
et
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(1)

Note1: Emission factors were made reference to Appendix 27 of the
Main Board Listing Rules and their referred documentation
as set out by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,
unless stated otherwise.

Note2: Combined margin emission factor (average) of 0.88 t-CO2/

MWh was used for purchased electricity in Mainland China.

Note 3: Emission factor of 0.939 kg CO.e/kWh was used for
purchased electricity in Macau.

Removal of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

RIB - dHERELGHRE

MiEE1: BRSAERBPIN HREHS
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TR ETRAAE = RE
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W3 HRERSTLB0939T R
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BIERHR -

(i) JBLEREERAEH N E

Emission

(in tonnes of CO:ze)
HHE

(AW —E b E &)

Total Greenhouse Gas Emitted (a) AE RN
Removal by Paper Recycling (b) 75 38 [ U5 AR BR

Final Total Greenhouse
Gas Emitted (c) = (a) — (b)

-
—

There were 106.52 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide,
methane and nitrous oxide) emitted from the
Group's operations in the reporting period. With the
implementation of environmental initiatives such as
paper recycling, the Group has removed 0.01 tonnes
of carbon dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases,
resulting in a decreased total amount of 106.51
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent greenhouse
gases in the reporting period.

REBEREENRE
(c) =(a) - (b)

=(a) 106.52
(b) 0.01

106.51

AEB B IREBRE 2R
EREB(FER &K
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MBERADE106.51H —&
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Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & &t &= & E AR A A

Annual Report 2016-17 —E—ARE—+FFERE

11



12

RIR-HERELHRE

Electricity

Electricity consumption by the Group was 83,483 kWh,
with an overall energy intensity of 77.81 kWh/m? (Hong
Kong — Admiralty: 13.92 kWh/m?; Hong Kong — Wan
Chai: 100.50 kWh/m?; Macau: 90.90 kWh/m?; Shenzhen:
53.75 kWh/m?), contributing to a total of 61.96 tonnes
of carbon dioxide equivalent. The Group reminds the
employees to switch off all the lights, computers, monitors
and equipment when leaving work. Moreover, energy
efficient electrical appliances are also encouraged such as
purchasing refrigerators with Grade 1 energy label under
the Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme by the
Hong Kong Electrical and Mechanical Services Department.

Petrol

A total of 13,007 litres of petrol was consumed by the
Group's vehicles for clients and employee commuting in
the reporting period, contributing to an emission of 35.22
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent. A total of 0.19 kg of
sulphur oxides (SOx) emission was emitted.

Water

Water supply was managed by the building management
for all offices and included in the management fee, thus
no data can be obtained.

Non-hazardous Waste

Non-hazardous waste from the Group was mainly waste
paper from the offices. A total of 0.58 tonnes of paper
has been used for daily office operations, contributing
to emission of 2.77 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.
Employees are encouraged to print paper on both sides
and reuse recycled papers for their draft works. All waste
cartridges were returned to suppliers.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @t & Z &£ B HBR A A
Annual Report 2016-17 —Z—ARE—+FFEHE

Py

REENEEE A83,483T R
Fr-REfiEeE A8 F K
778 TREF(BEE—cE:§F
FHK13.92F BLE : BB BT
& F 75 K100.50T FL B ;SR P -
B FHK0.90F L& FI: &
FHKE3.75FEE)  ARTEAL
61.96Mf —F L E 2 NEBEIR
FEE T TIRRSRARAFT B & - I -
BURSE R o 1toh - MR (EEA
EigEE R MRBEAAREL RS
moaml e R R IE ST EIEE
— R BUIZ Y KAE o

Va?::l

RBEHE AEERREEXE
PREEMNBHMEABEH
13,0072 F  E 4£35.2208 — & 1b
REE - AHFEM0NITREAIL
)

o

P/

HKEmERERNETELR
EE WEAAETRE HRIEAR
B BE -

HEERY

REEMELEZBEFEYEE
BRAEER  AERATELA
HAFF0.58MALK R - EAE2.77WE—
SR E 2R RMEBEIEE
FAEEm I EN - A S5 48 {F A [l YR A
B -FiEEERaDREME
Ppﬁo



WORKFORCE BY AGE GROUP 2016/2017

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

6. Business Air Travel

During the reporting period, employees from the Group
have travelled to Hong Kong and various provinces in
Mainland China for site visits and investigating new
business opportunities, such travels resulted in a relative
total amount of emission of 6.57 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent greenhouse gases.

Social

The Group relies on its employees and business partners to
consistently follow applicable laws and good practices to
maintain its goodwill. The vision of the Group is to become a
leading supplier and trading company. The Group is a value-
based organization. The value is mainly derived from integrity
which provides the common framework for its management
style, decision making and working behaviour. Therefore, the
Group aims at meeting the highest standards of corporate
behaviour in all aspects of our business and operations. The
foundation of the Group is integrity: to be open, honest and
trustworthy in dealing with all stakeholders namely, customers,
suppliers, sub-contractors, employees, creditors, shareholders
and the community as a whole.

1. Employment and Labour Practices
(1) Employment
The Group had a total number of 83 employees as

of 31 March 2017, in which 100% of them are full
time employees.
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RIZ-HERERERE

WORKFORCE BY EMPLOYMENT TYPE 2016/2017
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The Group’'s Employment Policy has listed out
details about employee’s responsibility, probation
period, hours of work, salary, several types of leave
(annual leave, sick leave, compensation leave,
compassionate leave, maternity leave, marriage
leave, jury service and court attendance), mandatory
provident fund scheme, bonus, employee share
option, service award, medical benefits and
compensation insurance. Employees can always refer
the information from the Employee Handbook.

Appraisal

The Group adopts a performance management
system to instil a performance culture and a
performance based annual salary adjustment
policy. Tasks and targets are discussed annually
among department heads and employees. Annual
performance appraisal is conducted to encourage a
dialogue between the employees and the Group so
to evaluate individual employee’s task and targets
and their deliveries, behavioural performance in the
aspects of work attitude, time management and
corporate objectives. The performance appraisal
would be used as one of the criteria to consider
employee’s promotion.
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Equal Opportunity

The Group follows the guidelines in the
Sex Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance, the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and the Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance. The Group commits to be an equal
opportunity employer and will not tolerate any
illegal discrimination or harassment based on sex,
race, religion etc., so each employee should respect
the others who come from a different culture. The
Group also seeks diversity at all levels and aim to
create sustainable working environment for all
employees to develop and contribute to their full
potential. Furthermore, the Group supports human
rights consistent with the United Nations Declaration
of Human Rights.

Turnover

A total number of 8 employees left the Group during
the reporting period, contributing to turnover rate of
10%. Annual turnover rates (categorised by gender
and age groups) during the reporting period are as

AREBEBRE (ER B HF
Iy~ CERIRBAR GBI
CEAE B (FLER) R 51D
Ko (K B2 i 15 4R 5 1))
MiES| - AEEBR AKX
FYEHENET BTA
RAEMABBEILER Eik =
BEMIPEERHEE B
- BEEEREENRXILE
BEENFE -AKE TR
BEEESRZHL EER
PREBAE—ENERK
ENBEBEENNAFEN
THERFE MIN AEEX
SEBABARES B8
At

MR =

RBEHMA - AEEE K
AL EEHB RAXA
10% ° R ¥R S HIfE A 2 F
MARE (IR R F iR

follows: BD)IT

Annual Turnover Rate 56 and
by Age Group 18-25 26-35 36-45 46-55 above
RERARE DN

EERKR 18-255% 26-355% 36-455% 46-555% 56EE KU E
2016/17 40% 14% 5% 3% 14%
—T—X/—LtF

Annual Turnover Rate by Gender Male Female
RMBESNEFERAR B i
2016/17 8% 13%
—T—X/—tF

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited %@ & &5 E AR A A

Annual Report 2016-17 —E—ARE—+FFERE



RIB-HERELHRS

(i)

Employee Health and Safety

The Group aims to provide employees a safe and
healthy work environment by following applicable
environmental, safety and health rules. Immediate
reporting should be made to the Administration Unit
for any accident occurs at the Group's premises.
Basic first aid medical supplies are available in the
pantry. There is a non-smoking policy that employees
may use designated areas for smoking. The Group
also maintain goodwill in compliance with its quality
processes and safety requirements. All inspection
and testing documents are handled in accordance
with all applicable specifications and requirements.
In return, all employees are expected to perform
their work in a safe manner, free of the influence of
alcohol, illegal drugs or controlled substances which
are not tolerated in workplace. An employee from
the office in Mainland China was involved in traffic
accident during working hours on 22 April 2016,
resulting in 250 lost days in the reporting period. The
employee recovered and returned to work on 1 Jan
2017.
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(iir)

Development and Training

In the reporting period, a total of 17 employees
attended internal training course on insider
dealing and disclosure of inside information and
external training courses on safe management on
hazardous chemicals and enterprise income tax
and settlement. A total of 120 training hours was
conducted during the reporting period. The Group
also encourages employees to take up conferences,
workshops, seminars, and getting recognitions from
external professional and technical institutes which
are relevant to the jobs and development of the
employee through reimbursement and providing
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RIB-HERERHRS

(iv)

Labour Standards

All employment and recruitment strictly abide by the
Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong, the Labour Relations Law of Macau,
the Labour Law and Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China. All employees must
show the original supporting documents to prevent
illegal labours when joining our Group and a copy
of documents will be kept by Human Resources
Department, to ensure no child nor forced labour
in the Group’s business operations. As stated in
the Employee Handbook, directors and employees
must comply fully with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations that govern the Group’s business
conduct in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China,
and any other regions or countries in which the
Group conducts its business, including but not
limited to securities laws, Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, environmental laws, insider trading and
other market misconduct laws.

2.  Operating Practices

(1)

Supply Chain Management

12 of suppliers were engaged for the commodity
trading business, in which 9 from Mainland China,
2 from Singapore and 1 from Taiwan. The Group
ensures fair dealing with suppliers and contractors
through open tendering or an approved selecting
process which are solely based upon price, quality
and need. The Group will duly observe the
contractual terms with suppliers and contractors.
Therefore, maximum use of competition and careful
section of capable and responsible suppliers and
contractors are pursued.
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(i)

Anti-corruption

There were no concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group during
the reporting period.

At stated in the Employee Handbook, bribery and
corrupt practices, unlawful or unethical behaviour
are strictly prohibited by the Group. Any personal
gain acquired from normal business activities such as
customers’ rebate, suppliers’ cash reward, or others
in similar nature should be immediately reported
within one week to local general manager, local
Board of Directors, and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group.

Whistle-blowing System

The Group has a whistle-blowing system that states
all directors, management team and employees
can be whistle-blowers. The whistle-blowers should
make their complaint to Chief Executive Officer or
any Executive Director of the Group. He/she should
have reasonable ground and evidence to believe that
the person being reported has violated or committed
a breach of the laws, Listing Rules, Code of Conduct
or Group policies or regulations applicable to the
Group and its business operations. Depending on
the severity and circumstances, the Chief Executive
officer, any Executive Director or the Board of the
Group, may follow up with investigations and
consequential actions for the person(s) involved in
the violation.
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RIB-HERERHRS

(i)

Product Responsibility

No products or service related complaints received in
the reporting period.

Intellectual Property Rights

All directors, management team and employees must
protect the Group's tangible and intangible assets
and ensure their proper and efficient use. such assets
include, but not limited to trade name, trademarks
(logos), patents, copyrights and confidential
information. The Group also supports the use of
copyrighted products according to the copyright
regulations. Employees must not bring in any fake
or copied program, software or materials including
computer software, books, audio and videotapes,
journals and magazines which are not copyrighted
materials.

Customer Privacy

Unless prior approval is obtained, employees shall
not disclose any information relating to the Group,
customers, intangible assets, business secretes or
any inside information which may come to their
knowledge during the course of their employment or
after termination of their employment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Community

0

Community Investment

The Group has contributed a total of HK$1,589,000
donations for Kwai Tsing District Office, Yan Mei (Miss
Asia) Charity Organization, Love Foundation Limited,
Caritas Hong Kong and The Community Chest during
the reporting period, with a focus on social welfare,
particularly providing support to the elderly, women and
children. Particularly the donation of HK$1,000,000 was
to support Kwai Tsing District Office’s Signature Project
Scheme “Mobile Dental Services”, which raised public
awareness of oral health and at the same time, provided
better dental care services for senior citizens in Kwai Tsing
District.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIZE-HERERRSE

During the reporting period, the Group's staff members
have represented the Group to take part in a meaningful
charity project. On 26 February 2017, more than 20
colleagues represented the Group in the Community
Chest's New Territories Walk 2016/2017, which was
organised to raise funds to support 24 member social
welfare agencies in providing “Family and Child Welfare
Services”. Our colleagues took part in the route of
approximately 6 km from Wu Kwai Sha Youth Village
to MTR East Rail Line University Station via Ma On Shan
Promenade.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group achieved a revenue
of approximately HK$13,832,372,000 (2016: HK$5,932,235,000)
and a gross profit of approximately HK$312,721,000 (2016:
HK$124,179,000), representing an increase of 133% and 152% from
the year of 2016 respectively. The increase in the Group's revenue and
gross profit was mainly attributable to significant rise in revenue of
commodity trading segment and financial services segment.

The Group recorded profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$117,760,000 (2016:
approximately HK$227,059,000) representing an increase of 152%
from the year of 2016. Significant increase in the Group's profit for
the year attributable to owners of the Company was mainly due to
increase in commodity trading segment and financial services segment.

loss of

In the reporting period, the commodity trading business contributed
the majority revenue of the Group, amounting to approximately
HK$13,802,960,000 (2016: HK$5,919,178,000) which accounted
for 99.8% of the Group’s revenue (2016: 99.8%), representing an
increase of 133% as compared with the year of 2016. This was mainly
due to increase in trading volume in oil products and non-oil product
lines in particular plastic materials products (including PEEK, PEI, PSU,
and TPU), Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO") products and display driver IC
products during the reporting period. Plastic materials PEEK, PEI, PSU,
and TPU are mainly used for manufacturing of medical equipment
parts, household products, sports goods, high temperature connectors
and lights of vehicles, metal substitutes for fibre optic connectors etc.
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During the reporting period, the continuing sluggish oil prices with
relatively low volatility, the demand for petroleum products and their
derivatives chemical products increased significantly compared to last
year. Our operation teams were able to grab the market opportunities
and delivered a sound performance in terms of trading volume and
revenue of the Group’s commodity trading business.

As for the oil products trading, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$3,046,253,000 for the reporting period (2016:
HK$1,162,727,000), representing an increase of 162% as compared
with 2016. A total of 86,800 tons (2016: 55,493 tons) and 818,371
tons (2016: 319,677 tons) of oil products were traded for domestic
trade in China and international trade respectively, maintaining steady
gross profit.

In order to ensure a steady profit growth in commodity trading
business and achieve risk diversification, our operating teams carried
out non-oil product lines for trading since July 2015 such as ITO
products, plastic products and display driver IC products. During the
reporting period, revenue of approximately HK$10,691,436,000 (2016:
HK$4,693,608,000) was generated from these product lines.

The commodity trading segment also includes trading of chemical
products, the Group strived to maintain its loyal customers and
suppliers for chemical products trading business during the reporting
period. The revenue of approximately HK$65,271,000 was recognised
for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$62,843,000),
representing an increase of 4%.

Looking forward into the next year, the international oil price
is expected to running at comparatively low level with narrow
fluctuation. Meanwhile, the supply of oil tends to be declined in China
which has positive effect on the Group’s commodity trading business.
The Group will keep its satisfactory performance with its existing
product lines; explore new opportunity in oil derivatives, clean energy,
chemicals or electronic related markets; optimise the sales network
and integrate privilege customers from both suppliers and customers
to increase the trading volume; and utilise domestic and international
resources and market to achieve the Group’s commodity diversification
and steady profit growth.
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The Group owns 96% interest of an indirect subsidiary 7% 250§
Ht Am AR E T AR], which owns an oilfield project in Fularji
District near Qigihar City of Heilongjiang Province of China. Since
January 2015, the Group subcontracted the operation of the oilfields
in the Fu 718, Fu 710 and Meilisi 723 areas in Qigihar ("“Qilfields")
to an independent oil service professional (the “Contractor”), which
the Contractor provides on-site technical and management services in
respect of the latter’s exploration and production activities on Oilfields.
The Contractor is responsible for all operation costs and investment of
funds in drilling new wells and oilfields related long term investment.
In return for the provision of those services, the Contractor will share
majority of total crude oil revenue during the service period.

During the reporting period, the supply in the international oil market
was still ample. International oil prices continued to fluctuate at a
low level. In view of the low oil prices and high production cost, the
management and the Contractor considered to diminish the risk and
loss by fine tuning the development plan in the Oilfields and slowing
down the oil exploitation process in the Oilfields since last financial
year. The management expected that the development progress will be
further delayed.

The financial services segment includes money lending, securities
brokerage and asset management services businesses.

(a) Money lending

The Group started the money lending business in Hong Kong
since June 2014. During the reporting period, two indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company have obtained the
money lending licences in Hong Kong. During the reporting
period, interest revenue was approximately HK$20,499,000
(2016: HK$10,834,000) representing an increase of 89% and
maintained a steady profit.
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(b)

(9]

The licensing of money lenders and regulation of money-lending
transactions are governed by the Money Lenders Ordinance,
Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong. The market of money
lending business by licensed money lenders in Hong Kong is
keen and competitive. In order to maximise the market share in
this business but also to ensure the compliance of the related
laws and regulations, the operation team has established a credit
policy and loan approval process to minimise the credit risk.

Securities brokerage

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely
China-Hong Kong Link Securities Company Limited (“CHKLS"),
has successfully obtained a licence by Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong to carry out type 1 (dealing in
securities) regulated activities on 30 September 2015. The
Group commenced the business on 30 March 2016. During the
reporting period, CHKLS mainly provided securities brokerage,
underwriting and placements services. CHKLS has successfully
undertaken the roles of placing agents, co-lead managers
and underwriters for several listed companies in Hong Kong.
During the reporting period, CHKLS has generated revenue of
approximately HK$5,749,000 (2016: Nil) to the Group and was
profit making.

Asset Management

To cope with the development strategy of stepping into the
financial services market in Hong Kong, a newly acquired indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely China Hong
Kong Link Asset Management Limited, has successfully obtained
a licence by Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong to
carry out type 9 (asset management) regulated activities on 16
February 2017.

In August 2016, the Group entered into a shares purchase agreement

with two independent third parties to acquire 100% equity interests

in People Insurance Broker Limited (“People Insurance”).

People

Insurance is carrying out insurance brokerage service in Hong Kong

with the licence to transact all types of general insurance business

and long term insurance business in Hong Kong. The Directors are of

the view that People Insurance represents a good opportunity for the

Group to expand its existing business so as to broaden its sources of

income, aiming at maximising profit and return for the Group and its

shareholders.
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The performance of global economy remained stable, while events
such as Brexit and U.S. presidential election only gave short concussion
on the financial market. Although the PRC economy still faced the
downward pressure, the situation was gradually stabilised.

As Mainland China rolls out its “One Belt One Road” initiative and
closer ties evolve between Mainland China and Hong Kong financial
markets, Hong Kong's solid financial system and experience should
provide the city with fresh opportunities. Looking ahead, in view of the
launch of Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect since December 2016
and the depreciation of Renminbi, more Mainland capital has flowed
south to Hong Kong. The Directors expected revenue growth with
promising market outlook, the Group intends to deploy more resources
in money lending, securities brokerage and asset management services
businesses.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$13,832,372,000 (2016:
HK$5,932,235,000),
year of 2016. The Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately HK$117,760,000 (2016: loss of
approximately HK$227,059,000). Basic earnings per share of HK$1.57
cents (2016: basic loss per share of HK$4.19 cents). The turnaround
of the Group's results was mainly due to the substantial segment

representing an increase of 133% from the

profit contributed by the commodity trading segment and financial
services segment amounted to approximately HK$112,844,000 (2016:
HK$83,354,000), and decrease in impairment losses on assets from
HK$172,537,000 for the year ended 31 March 2016 to HK$9,073,000
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's current assets were kept at
approximately HK$1,052,175,000 (2016: HK$682,060,000) whilst
current liabilities were approximately HK$338,470,000 (2016:
HK$324,889,000). The current ratio, being the proportion of total
current assets against current liabilities, was 3.11 (2016: 2.10).
The Directors consider that the present working capital level is
conservatively sufficient to meet the upcoming operating needs.
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The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flows and facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong Kong
and in China.

The Group had cash and cash equivalent of approximately
HK$278,866,000 as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$208,168,000). The
Group had cash and bank balances which were mostly held in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s outstanding bank borrowings
and bonds were approximately HK$32,818,000 (2016: Nil) and
HK$439,227,000 (2016: HK$366,830,000) respectively, while
total assets were approximately HK$1,432,419,000 (2016:
HK$1,075,279,000).

The gearing ratio, calculated by dividing the total borrowings by the
total assets, was 33% as at 31 March 2017 (2016: 34%).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group pledged the following assets to
secure the Group's trading facilities:

(1)  Corporate guarantee executed by the Company for an unlimited
amount (2016: same);

(2)  Investment properties with carrying values of HK$106,118,000
(2016: HK$23,349,000).

During the reporting period, the management appointed APEX
Reservoir Service Inc. (“APEX") as independent professional technical
valuer (the “Technical Valuer”) to evaluate the estimated oil reserve
and recoverable amount of Qigihar oilfield for impairment assessment
purpose as of 31 March 2017.
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The reserves evaluation performed by APEX was conducted in
accordance with Petroleum Resources Management System (the
“PRMS"), an internationally recognised reserve standards and
guideline. The evaluation subject was petroleum asset (the “Asset”)
owned by the Company in Fulaerji Qilfield, including Fu 710, Fu
718 and Meilisi 723. The management of the Group has accepted
the newly calculated reserve and a set of technical and economic
parameters proposed by APEX (including discount rates, oil price
and cost projections, and oilfield development plan) as the basis for
recoverable amount calculations. According to the PRMS definition,
the oil reserve should be classified into Proved reserve (“P1"); Probable
reserve (“P2") and Possible reserve (“P3"). Based on management
internal assessment of reserve, the total 1P, 2P (“sum of P1 and P2")
and 3P (“sum of P1, P2 and P3") reserve of Qigihar oilfields as of 31
March 2017, are approximately 546,000 tons, 1,370,000 tons and
2,034,000 tons respectively.

Bl HT 0 17 B0 % 2 5T 1 T AR 45 B R 5 AT /Y
SEFRERESIABEREESE ([PRMS])
EIT FHMEERARATIRNENREMEESR
WEBREE ([BEE])  BEE710-E718K&
BEHT723 - AEBEEEBEEMNZHTED
FEERMEHEZEN —ARMTREES2H (8
FEPTIRE - BB K AN T8 B DA K e M A 2%
&) (E BT E AT B & BEH EZE o B IEPRMS
EE ABRBEESEAFTEMR= ([P1]) 8
HigE= ([P2]) kAJgefE= ([P3]) - RIEER
BASFEF G EERRBEEAR-F—+
F=ZA=+—HMIP 2P ([P1KP2ZH]) &
3P([P1 P2RPIZF)MBREDBINA
546,000M - 1,370,000 2 2,034,000/

Proved Probable Possible Total
reserve reserve reserve  oil reserve
RERE BEHE THEMRE LREHBFEE
('000 tons) (‘000 tons) (‘000 tons) (‘000 tons)
(Fmg) (Fug) (FHE) (Fug)

Crude oil reserve FmE#EE
As at 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFWMA—H 755 914 1,464 3,133
Adjustment to estimation* HEFT R IE* (153) 8 (1,017) (1,162)
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—R"F=ZA=+—H 602 922 447 1,971
Adjustment to estimation* HAFT R IE* (56) (98) 217 63
As at 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 546 824 664 2,034

* During the year ended 31 March 2017, adjustments were made due to the crude
oil price appreciation (2016: due to the change of market condition, the Contractor
revised a development plan).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Reserve evaluation criteria

The volumetric estimate method was used to calculate hydrocarbon in
place and then recover using the huff and puff recovery method and
oil reservoir fire-flooding thermal-ignition method. As at 31 March
2017, APEX has used the deterministic method (as opposed to the
probabilistic method) to calculate the reserves estimates, in which three
discrete scenarios were delineated to represent high, medium and low
cases.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
AND INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's business transactions are mainly denominated in United
Stated dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Most of the Group’s
bank borrowings are interest bearing at floating rate basis. The
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The Group has not used any derivative financial instruments to manage
interest rate exposures.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has an aggregate of 83 (2016: 88)
employees of which about 25 (2016: 37) were located in Mainland
China while the rest were based in Hong Kong, Republic of Kazakhstan
and Macau. The employees’ remuneration package includes salary,
bonus and share options. Pursuant to the Group’s remuneration policy,
employees are rewarded on the basis of merit and market conditions
and in accordance with the statutory requirements of the respective
jurisdiction where the employees locate.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the year, save as elsewhere disclosed in this Annual Report,
there was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company.
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This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents the corporate
governance matters during the year covering the financial year ended
31 March 2017 (“CG Period”) required to be disclosed under the Rules
Governing the Listing of the Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

The Group has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (“Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the corporate
governance codes of the Company.

During the year, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions set out in the Code except for the deviations as follows:

Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) of the Company
are not appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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As at 31 March 2017, the Board comprised a total of eight Directors,
with five Executive Directors ("EDs"”) and three INEDs. Two of the INEDs
have appropriate professional qualifications in accounting, or related
professional management expertise, which is required by the Listing
Rules. During the CG Period, six regular Board meetings were held.

During the CG period, the composition of the Board, and the
respective attendances of the Directors are presented as follows:

SREARE

R-B—tF=A=+t—H EFEAaHEH
NIEBSE BRUATES ([RTEER
BT FATES - P MAIB L IFNTT
EEHALTRAMAENEE G EXE
% HABEEEEEEFIME - NEEE LN
B ARREHBETTNRESTESH-

REEERME EFeNEKMESTZAL
FEBRET

Director Board Capacity Attendance
BEE BE=g549 R =
Mr. Li Zhenjun ED & Chairman 6/6
FIRE RS HWITEERER

Mr. Poon Sum ED & Honorary Chairman 6/6
BRI HMITEFFRELR

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED & Chief Executive Officer 6/6
HEEREE HITE FFRITEAAE

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Chief Financial Officer 6/6
EER L WITESEHRERVBE

Mr. Hu Dehua ED (appointed on 24 May 2016) 4/4 #
HRfEE A WITESE (RZE-—RFRAZTHEE)

Mr. Zaid Latif NED (retired on 26 August 2016) 1/4 #
Zaid Latif5t & FRITER (R _ZT—RFNAZFTRERE)

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 6/6
BeR 181 BR 5 A B IERITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 6/6
REBIEE WY FRITES

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 5/6
EERELE BYFRITES

All the six regular Board meetings were held to discuss and/or approve
the financial performance/results of the Group, report, discuss and/
or resolve for the ordinary business and operation matters, and the

corporate development and decisions.
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The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective supervision over the
management. Daily operations and administration are delegated to the
management. During the CG Period, none of the Directors above has
or maintained any financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship with any of the other Directors.

il The Board had convened four meetings after the appointment of Mr. Hu Dehua
(during the period from 24 May 2016 to 31 March 2017).

g2 The Board had convened four meetings before the retirement of Mr. Zaid Latif
(during the period from 1 April 2016 to 26 August 2016).

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are held separately by Mr. Li Zhenjun and Mr. Wong Kwok Leung
respectively. Besides, Mr. Poon Sum is the Honorary Chairman of the
Company.

The separation of duties of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility for
running the board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility for
running the Company'’s business. Details of the duties of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are available on the
Company's website.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) on
21 June 2013. A summary of this Policy, together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing this Policy, and the progress made
towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.
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SUMMARY OF THE POLICY

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing the Board's composition,
the Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of services. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVE

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

IMPLEMENTATION

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition under major
diversified perspectives was summarised as follow:
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The Remuneration Committee was formed on 21 March 2005 and has
adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
provisions set out in the Code which are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The role and function of the
Remuneration Committee includes:

o to make recommendations to the board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.

. to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

o to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.

o to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group.

o to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate.

° to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors.

o to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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o to consult the chairman and/or the chief executive about
remuneration proposals of the Remuneration Committee for
other executive directors. The Remuneration Committee should

SREARE

s HFMZEERMHEMHITESTNHINE
BRALTEL/IEBETHRAE-ME
FE FMEEEREASKBUERE

have access to independent professional advice if necessary. R
For the financial year under review, the Remuneration Committee REIBHEFE FWEESER LETT=
held three physical meetings. The composition of the Remuneration K& -FHMEECWNEARNEZESKERHE
Committee and the respective attendances of the committee members  H/E B R0 T
are presented as follows:
Member Committee Capacity Attendance
4= EZES85H HE =
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Chairman of the committee 3/3
PeR At BR 5 A= LZEgXRE
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 3/3
SR SIIE ST A BIUIFERITESF
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 3/3
EEREE BYIIERITES
Mr. Poon Sum ED 3/3
BT WITES

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

The summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee
for the financial year under review included:

o to review the current remuneration policies and appraisal system;

o to recommend to the Board the director’s fee for the year ending
31 March 2017; and

o to consider and approve the remuneration of the directors and
senior management.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors for
the financial year under review is set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The share options granted to/or entitled by the Directors during
the financial year under review are inscribed in the section headed
“Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities” of the Directors’
Report.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors should
participate in continual professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continual professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has sent reading materials to Directors on regulatory updates
or information relevant to the Company or its business.
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The Company has received from all Directors records of their continual
professional development trainings during the CG Period. Details of
which are set out below:

SREARE

ARG EEZBESNCEERHARNE
RHERERRBEI 2R FEFBEHIIA
T

Type of Continuous Professional Development

HEEXBRZ2ER
Reading regulatory
updates or
Attending seminar information Visiting the
on regulatory relevant to the Company’s projects
development and Company or its in China or
directors’ duties business Overseas
RMEEELARAHR
HEEERRR HEBEE ERHARQ A
EESHEWNE BHEMRER EHESEIZEE
Mr. Li Zhenjun FIRE AL v v/ v
Mr. Poon Sum EAREE v/ v/ v/
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung HER LA v/ v/ v
Mr. Poon Wai Kong R M5 A v/ v/ v
Mr. Hu Dehua HRfEE L A v/ v/ -
Mr. Chan Shu Kin BoR 161 B2 % A v/ v/ -
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung SRV & v/ v/ =
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu EERELE v v -

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the reporting
period.

ARB R LR QM 8+ Py b3
TAEBRETEFRINRESTR ([1RET
Al EREFETESFRZHNTRTR
HIMBEREHREEHRER MBEESERRK
ERHMEARNEBTEETRIFMFNRTEE
Al

For the CG Period, the remuneration of the members of the senior NEEERHERE RESUIN SR EREK
management excluding directors by band is set out below: B FeEEERS AT

Number of individuals
Remuneration band e E A8
HK$0 to HK$500,000 P Z T 2= 4 #500,0007T 1
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 7 #500,0017T £ /8 #1,000,0007T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7 #51,000,0017C 28 %1,500,0007T 2
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Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
four were directors of the Company. Further particulars regarding the
remaining one individual with the highest emoluments as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules is set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Nomination Committee was formed on 26 November 2011 and
has adopted specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
provisions set out in the Code which are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination Committee
was appointed by the Board and consists of three non-executive
directors and one executive director of the Company. The meetings and
proceedings are governed by the provisions contained in the articles of
association of the Company for regulating meetings and proceedings
of the Directors. The role and function of the Nomination Committee
includes:

o to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the board
to complement the Company's corporate strategy.

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

o to make recommendations to the board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The selection criteria for Directors are the candidate(s) must have
substantial experience in business relevant to the Company or in
corporate management, or in relevant profession and must be able
to contribute effectively to the objectives of the Company. Any
committee member may propose suitable candidates for directorship
for discussion and approval by the Nomination Committee, after which
the Board will consider and, if appropriate, approve such nomination.
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For the CG Period, the Nomination Committee had held two physical
meetings for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on appointment and re-appointment of Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

The composition of the Nomination Committee and the respective
attendances of the committee members are presented as follows:

REXERNR RAZEEERLRITTM
REF EEREEREREENESTERY
BENALFZELFAITESNE -

REZBENAKRNZEERERBHERS
YN

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
4= ZEEHH HE =
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung Chairman of the committee 2/2
REBIEE ZEgXR

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 2/2
FoR 181 BR 5 A BYUFNITES

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 2/2
EEREE BIUIFEAITESF

Mr. Poon Sum ED 1/2
EIRTTE WITES

The chairman of the Nomination Committee since its establishment has
been Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung.

The Audit Committee has adopted specific written terms of reference
in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

o to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences and
ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

BREZEENUE HEXERKRBBEE-

EZ B CRETRIFTE M IR X R IEE
B E E B E (AR A R AR R EE
Bl) BREZEEWNIZRABRE:

o IZAAMIMBERHBENEET BHZ
EREBEAEFTSREZS HEIE
A2 SR O 3 B B B8 AR AR 3R 0 BRI AT
7 8 a% 1 B B B K AR A A B B

=

o  WERAMNEERSRERIMNERBEZ
BBURENREREFRETAR - BEZ
Z B RN BT ER AR/t EAZBED
MBI E R EBE R AR RREE:
WMEBB-—REBENEHM2ETIE
A ErE (R EL AR 175 38
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to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to provide non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee should
report to the board, identifying and making recommendations on
any matters where action or improvement is needed;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them. In reviewing these
reports before submission to the board, the Audit Committee
should focus particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements in
relation to financial reporting;

Regarding above:—

(i) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
board and senior management and the Audit Committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
auditors; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in
the report and accounts, it should give due consideration
to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors;
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to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless expressly
addressed by a separate board risk committee, or by the board
itself, to review the Company's risk management and internal
control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should include
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and
final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to discuss (in
the absence of management where necessary);

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of controls and
management’s response;

to review the Company’s statement on risk management and
internal control systems (where one is included in the annual
report) prior to endorsement by the board;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

to ensure that the board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;
to report to the board on the matters in provision of terms of

reference of the Audit Committee;

to review the group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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J to review arrangements by which employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The Audit Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation
of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action; and

o to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor.

For the CG Period, the Audit Committee had held two regular
meetings for discussing and/or approving the periodic financial results
of the Group, discussing the auditor’'s performance, reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function and
their training programmes and budgets.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the respective
attendances of the committee members are presented as follows:

o MEARBREMNUTLZH: ARFE
BRI R EER NSRS EM
FHEATRREENTERITRIELRL -
ERZBERERAEERY BAR
AHNEEEFEERFBILNRERIK
BEERETE &

s  EEARFREIBZHBEZEHNERN
R BEER-FHEZENBER-

REEERNHE BRRESRTTMAES
BF - DARTER RSttt A 7R 5 B R HR P e B
BERE TRZEMEE R A AKERRE
BRARBEIERRNME  ARREE KM
BEFRBENTHNER BETEEIERES
5 AMBITAEZMNEIRELGHEEE
ERITE -

ERZBEMAKMEZEENBEAHFER
S

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
4= ZEEHH HE =
Mr. Chan Shu Kin Chairman of the committee 2/2
eR At BR 5 A= ZEgERE

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 2/2
REBEE BUFRITES

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 172
EEREE BIIFERITESF

The chairman of the Audit Committee since its establishment has been
Mr. Chan Shu Kin.

The analysis of the Auditor's remuneration for the CG Period is
presented as follows:

BEZZBENUE EXERREREE-

REEERRAB ZHBMOMES W20
T

Fee amount (HK$'000)
BH(B%TR)

ZBURTS
FERZBURTS

Audit Service
Non-audit services*

# The non-audit services, mainly represent services in connection with a proposed
acquisition, which has been terminated.
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The Corporate Governance Committee of the Company was formed
on 26 November 2011 and has adopted specific written terms of
reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code which
are available on the website of the Company. The role and function of
the Corporate Governance Committee include:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continual professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

o to review the Company’'s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report;

o to review the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems.
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For the CG Period, the Corporate Governance Committee held one  ROEEAHME  CEEARLZESER L8117
physical meeting. The composition of the Corporate Governance 77— X &# DEEAZESNEKEEZES
Committee and the respective attendances of the committee members KESBHFEBRAEHMT :

are presented as follows:

Member Committee Capacity Attendance
24= B8 5% HE=E
Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 1Al
PR 181 B2 55 A BUFNITES

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 171
REB LA BIIFERITESF

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 171
EEEAAE BYUIENITES

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Chief Financial Officer 171
EE ML & WITEZRERVBE

The Company is endeavoring to identify and appoint a new chairman
of the Corporate Governance Committee.

The summary of the work performed by the Corporate Governance
Committee for the CG Period included:

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Code

o to review the training and continual professional development of
Directors and senior management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the management of the
Group and is collectively responsible to ensure sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal
control systems are designed for managing risk rather than eliminating
the risk of failure to achieve business objective, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.
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The Board considers the Group's risk management and internal control
systems are adequate and effective and no significant control failing or
weakness was identified for the year ended 31 March 2017. The level
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Group's internal audit and accounting and financial
reporting functions were also assessed and considered adequate for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Group employed top-down and bottom-up approaches for
identification, assessment and mitigation of risk across functional
areas and various corporate governance levels. The Board holds the
responsibility for maintaining effective internal control systems and for
the assessment and management of risks.

The Board is responsible to approve key business strategies and
objectives of the Group and ensure management focuses on managing
risks to key business objectives. The Board conducts annual review of
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems through the Audit Committee, covering the material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls. The Corporate
Governance Committee ensures the Group has adopted its corporate
governance code based on the code provisions stated in the Corporate
Governance Code. The operating units and support functions are
facilitated and coordinated by the management and ensure that risk
management processes and mitigation plans follow good practices and
guidelines established by the Group in their day-to-day operations. Risk
events and incidents are reported by the operating units and support
functions to the management in a timely manner.

The internal audit department of the Company supported the Board
and the Audit Committee in reviewing the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems and performed its functions
during the year following an annual audit plan and submitting their
reports of their findings to the Board and the Audit Committee at the
meetings.
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Risk management process is integrated with the internal control
system, so that the Group's ability to handle risks that hinder the
achievement of financial, operational and compliance goals is
strengthened and the allocation of resources on control measures
against specific or high risks areas is more adequate.

The key elements of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk portfolio to
monitor, evaluate and assess the identified risks. The Group updates
the responsive mitigation procedures to ensure their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. In addition, a risk matrix approach is adopted to
determine risk rating after evaluation of the risk in accordance to the
impact and likelihood of the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level
of management’s attention and risk responses.

The Group develops a preliminary inventory of events that could
impact the achievement of the Group's business objectives. The events
identified were inventoried and translated into opportunities or risks.
The Group identifies outside and inside events by reviewing its external
and internal environment and stakeholders, which have an influence
or potential influence on the Group's ability to achieve its strategy
and business objectives. Furthermore, the operating units and support
functions report any risk events and incidents found in a timely manner
to the management.

The risks identified are evaluated with a risk matrix which prioritises
risks according to the likelihood of their occurrence and the
significance of their impact on the achievement of the Group's
business objectives. Following the review of the risk matrix, the Group
selects and deploys the corresponding risk responses and investigates
the mitigation procedures to be executed to ensure the identified
significant risks were managed to an acceptable level. The Group
monitors substantial change which may lead to new or changed risks
to ensure the risk response are operated effectively.
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The risk management and internal control systems are reviewed
annually to ensure appropriateness and effectiveness. With the
establishment of an independent internal audit function in recent
years, the financial condition, operational control and compliance
control are examined and reviewed according to the risk-based
audit plan approved by the Board. Different audit areas are assigned
according to risk priority. The Internal Audit Department assists the
Board to monitor compliance with rule and regulations and the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal controls systems.
It plays an important role in the Group's internal governance by
performing periodic checking. After completion of an internal
audit, analysis, appraisals, recommendations related to the activities
inspected are delivered to the respective risk holders. The Internal
Audit Department reports to the Chief Executive Officer, Audit
Committee and the Board about the internal audit findings, internal
audit recommendation and the management responses. The Internal
Audit Department will, from time to time, review and follow up the
implementation of internal audit findings and recommendations.

In order to enhance the risk management and internal control system
of the Company, the Group has engaged an independent professional
consultant to conduct a review (the “Review"”) for the year ended
31 March 2017. A report on the Review has been prepared by the
independent professional consultant and has been sent to the Audit
Committee for their review. From the report, no material findings are
noted and certain recommendations have been made to the Company.
The Company accepted the recommendations and corresponding
actions have been enforced.

To handle and disclose inside information under the Listing Rules
and SFO, the Group has established a policy which contains a strict
prohibition on unauthorised use of inside information. Such policy is
set out inside the staff manual and all staff are required to comply. In
addition, each personnel is granted a specific access right to the price
sensitive and inside information. The Directors, senior management
and employees are informed with the latest regulatory updates. For
the year ended 31 March 2017, inside information was disseminated in
accordance with the inside information policy and the applicable laws
and regulations.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, their training programmes
and budget, and was satisfied with the results of the review.

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
reflecting the current practices of the Company for communication
with its shareholders, which is available on the website of the
Company.

The general meeting of the Company provides a platform for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The attendance of
each Director at the general meetings of the Company held during the
CG Period is set out as follows:

EXeABBERZBEHAKRE S RMK
WERE T ENER BT EEMKER BB

ITHRIRERBEESERAETR
W BITERRTWE °

=

B2 ER 2 REBABE - HARAL T
SEE R ¢

ARBZBERAERBEREHEEEZERN
BAZFE -BEEHFENEREAMEST
ZARBBERARE 2 HEBEREINAT

Director Board Capacity Attendance
= Ex=g549 H E &
Mr. Li Zhenjun ED & Chairman 7
FRE XL HITEEFREIRE

Mr. Poon Sum ED & Honorary Chairman 171
ERRT L MITEFHREER

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ED & Chief Executive Officer 171
HEER LS MITEERITHER

Mr. Poon Wai Kong ED & Chief Financial Officer 171
EER L WITESERERUBE

Mr. Hu Dehua ED 1/1
REERLE HITES

Mr. Chan Shu Kin INED 0/1
BRIGTER 4 BIMIFHNTESE

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung INED 7
R EE BYIFNTESF

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu INED 171
ERELL BYIFFNITES
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Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call an EGM. Any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Articles of Association of the
Company or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures
for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings other
than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an EGM for any
business specified in such written requisition.
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Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting, unless notice signed by a Member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his/her intention
to propose such person for election as a Director and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be
elected shall have been given to the Company or lodged at the head
office or at the Registration Office provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such notices are given, shall be at least
7 days. The period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the
date of such meeting.

A shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director
or recommended by the Directors for election as a Director by validly
lodging the following documents within the period hereinafter
mentioned at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at 21st Floor, 80 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

1. a notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director, which must state the full name of the
person, include the person’s biographical details as required
by rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and be signed by the
shareholder; and

2. anotice in writing signed by that person of his/her willingness to
be elected as a director together with his written consent to the
publication of his/her personal data.

Such documents shall be lodged with the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong within the period of 7 days after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting. Upon receipt of such documents,
the Company shall verify the documents and, if the proposal is found
to be in order, publish an announcement and/or issue a supplemental
circular in respect of the proposal in accordance with Rule 13.70 of the
Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

In the case of any general meeting called by at least 10 clear business
days’ or 14 days’ (whichever is the longer) notice in writing, such
documents lodged within the aforesaid period may be received less
than 10 business days prior to the general meeting, the Company
will consider the adjournment of the general meeting in order to
give shareholders at least 10 business days to consider the relevant
information disclosed in the announcement or supplemental circular.

The aforesaid procedures are available on the Company'’s website.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company.
The contact details are as follows:

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
21st Floor,

80 Gloucester Road,

Wan Chai,

Hong Kong

Attn: Company Secretary

Email: enquiries@trcf.com.hk
Tel No.: 852-2698 6093
Fax No.: 852-3580 7793

Constitutional Documents

During the CG Period, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial statements

for the financial year under review, the Directors have:

o based on a going concern basis;
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. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them e hBREEETBE LERER: K
consistently; and

. made judgments and estimates that were prudent, fair and e EHEIE A F LA B H T REET-
reasonable.

The statement of the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities ~ #ZEEI LI B HER M B HOREE T éﬁﬂﬁé‘
on the financial statements is set out in detail in the Independent Z577H & 5868 KB\ X HAI k& M FaL -
Auditor’s Report on page 77 to 86.

On behalf of the Board REEESD

Li Zhenjun *E

Chairman ZIRE

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017 BB —ZT—tFAA=+=H
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The Directors submit their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 26 August 2016, the Company’'s name was changed
from PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited to Tou Rong Chang Fu Group
Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business and geographical segments is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion
on the Group's prospects are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 8 and
pages 23 to 31 of the Annual Report respectively. Description of key
risk factors and uncertainties that the Group is facing is provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 23 to 31 of the Annual
Report while the financial risk management of the Group is discussed
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group is committed to support the environmental sustainability.
Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected by our
continuous efforts in promoting green measures and awareness in
our daily business operations. The Group encourages environmental
protection and promote awareness towards environmental protection
to the employees. The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and
reducing. It implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying, promoting using recycled paper and reducing
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance. The Group will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses to move
towards adhering the 3Rs — Reduce, Recycle and Reuse and enhance
environmental sustainability.
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The Group supports many charitable community programmes by
making corporate donations and encouraging employee contributions
to a number of charitable organisations. During the reporting period,
the Group has contributed a total of HK$1,589,000 donations for Kwai
Tsing District Office, Yan Mei (Miss Asia) Charity Organization, Love
Foundation Limited, Caritas Hong Kong and The Community Chest
during the reporting period, with a focus on social welfare, particularly
providing support to the elderly, women and children. Particularly the
donation of HK$1,000,000 was to support Kwai Tsing District Office’s
Signature Project Scheme “Mobile Dental Services”, which raised
public awareness of oral health and at the same time, provided better
dental care services for senior citizens in Kwai Tsing District.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets. Thus
the Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration
package of employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to
the market standard. The Group also understands that it is important
to maintain good relationship with business partners and bank
enterprises to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior
management have kept good communication, promptly exchanged
ideas and shared business update with them when appropriate. During
the year under review, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its business partners or bank enterprises.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 87. No interim dividend was paid or
declared in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil). The
Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).
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During the reporting period, the Company issued a total of
1,333,332,000 ordinary shares through the placement of new
shares, which raised the net proceeds of funding amounting to
HK$165,533,000. Details of movements in shares issued for the year
ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements. During the reporting period, the net proceeds
raised were used for the prescribed purposes, of which approximately
HK$75,700,000 were used for financing the Group’s money lending
business by providing short-term loans to independent third parties
in Hong Kong, approximately HK$23,000,000 were used for
capital injection in securities brokerage business for operations and
approximately HK$39,466,000 were used as general working capital
of the Group. The remaining net proceeds were unutilised at 31 March
2017.

Details of principal properties held for development and/or sale and for
investment purposes are set out in page 206 of the Annual Report.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2017, calculated
under Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)
amounted to approximately HK$587,648,000, representing the
amount standing to the credit of the share premium amount after
deduction of accumulated losses. Under section 34 of the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company, and no distribution may be
paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless the
Company shall be able to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in Five Years Financial Summary
on page 207 to 208 of the Annual Report.
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Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the securities of the Company during the year.

On 25 October 2013, a total of 370,000,000 non-listed warrants were
successfully issued to certain independent third parties. Each warrant
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one new share of the
Company at the subscription price of HK$0.1526 at any time from 25
October 2013 to 24 October 2016.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, no warrants has been
granted or exercised, and total of 20,000,000 non-listed warrants were
lapsed.

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 June 2013, the
shareholders of the Company adopted the new share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme"”) which enabled the grant of options to
subscribe up to 460,062,382 shares, representing 10% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the said date.

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to acknowledge the contributions made or to be made
by participants to the Group. The Board of Directors may, at its
discretion, offer employees, contracted celebrity, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint venture partner
of the Company and its subsidiaries (including any director of the
Group), the grant of options to subscribe for shares of the Company.
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.
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As at the date of the annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue pursuant to the exercise of all options granted and
to be granted under the Share Options Scheme was 458,562,382
shares (including share option that have been granted but not yet
lapsed or exercised), representing about 6.07% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, 215,300,000 share
options have been granted and 1,500,000 share options have been
forfeited under the Share Option Scheme.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. The
Directors will have the absolute discretion to fix the minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised, and the
performance targets that must be achieved before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares,
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) for the five consecutive trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option and (iii) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer of the option (which must be a trading day).

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of such
period to be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
notified to the grantee. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
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Details of the share option outstanding at 31 March 2017 which have
been granted under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Report of the Directors

ESEHRE
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Number of Options Price of Company’s shares
BREHA ARARGER
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Forfeited asat
1 April during during during 31 March For Option For Option
Participants Date of grant  Exercisable period Exercise price . 2012 the year the year the year granted exercised
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BA-H RER RER RER BRYE gt
85% REBH RS i3 | HATTE Rl it e BRE BRE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ’900 HKS HKS
Th Th Th Th el B
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(i) (i2)
Executive Directors
HirE
Mr. Li Zhenjun 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 HK$0.193 S 5,000 S = 5,000 0.190 S
FRERE ZERE ZE-AETACTIRE %0937
BA-tZB  —Z-\EBAZt-B
Mr. Poon Sum 2 Apn\ 2016 2 Odober 201610 21 Aprl\ 2018 HK$0.193 S 50,000 S = 50,000 0.190 -
EREE 22X ﬁ %0193
BmAZTZA
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung 22 April 2016 HK$0.193 = 50,000 = = 50,000 0.19 -
ERR%E kS 801937
BA=t=H
Mr. Poon Wai Kong 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 HK$0.193 S 25,000 S = 25,000 0190 -
EERLE ZERE ZE-AETACTIRE H0.1937
BA-tZE  —Z-\£BAZt-B
Non-executive Director
FATES
Mr. Zaid Latif 22 Apiil 2016 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 HK$0.193 - 1,000 - (1,000) - 0.190 -
(Retired on 26 August 2016)
umum%i 3% % m¢+ﬂ T-BE 801937
RZE-~ENAZT/BEE) BWAZtZA NEmAZ+-A
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIFHTEE
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung 2 Apn\ 2016 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 HK$0.193 = 3,500 = = 3,500 0.190 -
REBEL k- LY :?/\ﬁﬁ’f:% EE0.193T
BmAZtZA T-\§BAZ+-B
Mr. Chan Shu Kin 22 Apn\ 2016 22 October 2016 to 21 Apn\ 2018 HK$0.193 = 3,500 = = 3,500 0.190 -
BEREE S I Si3 E80.1937
) oy
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu 22 April 2016 HK$0.193 = 3,500 = = 3,500 0.190 -
EERAE EN %0193
BAZ+-A
Senior Management 2 Apn\ 2016 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 HK$0.193 = 13,000 = = 13,000 0.190 -
BREER ZE-R ZR-NETAZTCER 801937
BAZtZR  ZZ-/\#BA=t-H
Employees 22 Apn\ 2016 ZZ Ottober 2016 to 21 April 2018 HK$0.193 - 60,800 - (500) 60,300 0.190 -
] S E+A-T-HE E80.1937
L oy I
- 215,300 - (1,500) 213,800
Notes: LiEs3
1. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for options granted is the closing price 1# HRERLBREMREOLRQARRNDER BEREBR
of the shares immediately before the date on which the options were granted. R A HARTAR D B I T (B -
2. The price of the Company'’s shares disclosed for options exercised is the weighted 7 REITEEREMEBENARQRRGER EEEER

average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were exercised.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their spouse
or children under the age of 18, had been granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations, or had exercised any such right during the

year.
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On 16 October 2008, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme
in which selected employees of the Group, including without limitation
any Executive and Non-executive Director, officer, agent or consultant
(with payroll) of the Group, are entitled to participate in the Share
Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme. The
purposes and objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to recognise
the contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a selected
employee under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date. The
nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the adoption date.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, no share was purchased for the
Share Award Scheme. Details of the awarded shares granted by the
Company pursuant to the Share Award Scheme and outstanding at 31
March 2017 are as below:

REZZBZENFEFTA+RA - RRERBR G 2
By ET &) B BB 2 HE  AREE
EZRE BRETRRAEETMATR
FHTER SRAR REBEALERH (ZFH
) - B E 2 A R 8 - B i) B2 BT
EMENNRERRBRXLEENERMEG
T FIEER) - AR B PR R B A5 EE M
BEREZN ARSI EEBOAT UAAREEE
E—FPER - XEFGRTERFPLULMRR
B ZBESREANE R+ FARRE
R RBRD REYETE IRX —EEE TR
HZBNEBERSZ T SEBRAEBALQE
BEREITIRANI% - REKRD ZBEE AE
FERTZBROEENSRBBREMR AR
REEBEITRAMNS% -

REE-_T—+tF-A=Z+—HBLFER"
LA AR 0 22 B AT 8188 B IR (D o AN A AR IR AR
PREBHEEEL ZREROER 2T —+
FZA=Z+—BERITEZRERHFIBQ
T

Number of awarded shares

RBROHE

As at As at

1 April 31 March

Grant date Fair value per share  Vesting date 2016 Granted Vested Forfeited 2017

R-E-A%F RZB-t¥

REAH BROAE BEAH mA-A ERH EEE ERW =ZA=t+-H

‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

i i i i i

27 October 2015 HK$0.179 31 August 2016 30,000 - (30,000) - -
“E-REFtAZTLR AB0179T ZE-AENA=+-A
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Li Zhenjun
Mr. Poon Sum
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung
Mr. Poon Wai Kong
Mr. Hu Dehua
(appointed on 24 May 2016)
Mr. Zaid Latif!
(retired on 26 August 2016)
Mr. Chan Shu Kin?
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung?
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu?

! Non-executive Director
e Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Poon Sum, Mr. Poon Wai Kong and Mr. Cheung Kwan
Hung shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY"'S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a Director
of the Company and the Director's connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Report of the Directors
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Mr. Li Zhenjun, aged 42, is an Executive Director. He was appointed on
4 January 2016. He was appointed as the Chairman of the Company
with effect from 8 January 2016. He graduated from the Zhejiang
University of Technology, the PRC (R BT/ T T K2 ), specialised
in chemical mechanics ({t T##%) . Mr. Li has approximately 20 years
of experience in corporate management of businesses in various areas,
including health products, media, cultural and financial industry. He
is the founder, the chairman of the board of directors and the chief
executive officer of Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Group, which is
principally engaged in internet financing, wealth management, fund
management, investment banking, insurance as well as the other
financial services in the PRC. Mr. Li is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and day-to-day management of Hangzhou Tou
Rong Chang Fu Group. Mr. Li is also one of the founder of #7T
EEBEMBERAA (Zhejiang Diantong Information Co., Ltd.*), a
company established in the PRC in 2005, which is principally engaged
in organising arts and cultural activities, design and manufacturing
of souvenirs, media and advertising, where he acted as an executive
director since its incorporation up to October 2015. From 1996 to
1998, Mr. Li acted as the deputy general manager of the Ningbo
office of AItkHEBE RN BR AT (Hong Tao K Group Co., Ltd.*),
a company which is principally engaged in the development and
manufacturing of bio-pharmaceutical products including Chinese
medicine and health products, and real estate. From 1999 to 2005,
Mr. Li worked as a reporter of “Justice of China (FEl &%) ", a
publication of the Ministry of Justice, the PRC, and was an officer (=
f£) of the Zhejiang Office of the Ministry of Justice, the PRC. Prior
to establishing Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Group, Mr. Li was also
involved in projects involving mergers, restructuring and mergers and
acquisitions financing of a number of listed companies, including the
private placement of shares by MR JEHERIKH BR 2 F] (Hunan
Corun New Energy Co., Ltd.*), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600478), in 2013, the privatisation of Bl
FHFEBABRAF (China Mobile Games and Entertainment Group
Limited), a company previously listed on NASDAQ, and the major asset
restructuring of BRIAK EIREHZA 5 AR 2 7] (Guangdong Dynavolt
Power Technology Co., Ltd.*), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 002684), in 2014, which he acted as financial
consultant.
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Mr. Poon Sum, aged 53, is an Executive Director and one of the
cofounders of the Group. He was the Chairman of the Company
and was subsequently appointed as the Honorary Chairman on 9
May 2012. Throughout the year, he has been, and still is, primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning, business development,
marketing and formulation of overall corporate policies of the Group.
He has over 27 years of experience in the oil, paints and coatings
industry and the trading of chemicals in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). Currently, he is an Executive Director,
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Executive Corporate
Secretary of Gold Horn International Enterprises Group Limited (Stock
Code: GHE/P, a company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange, Canada)
and an Executive Director and Chairman of Addchance Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3344, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange).

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung, aged 59, is an Executive Director. He was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 April 2012
and responsible for the Group's daily operations, administration and
production management of the Group's subsidiary in the PRC. He
obtained the qualification of LCC-Higher Accounting from London
Chamber of Commerce and diploma of supervisory studies from Hong
Kong Productivity Council. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in
the field of finance and accounting for over 17 years and has obtained
extensive knowledge therein. He joined the Group in September 1997.

Mr. Poon Wai Kong, aged 46, is an Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Group. He is a member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Certified Practising
Accountant of Australia and Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. He also holds a Master degree in Business Administration
and a Master degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong, a Master degree
in Practising Accounting from the Monash University, Australia and a
Bachelor degree in Economics from the University of London, United
Kingdom. He has more than 26 years’ experience in accounting
and financial field. He joined the Group in September 2005. He
was appointed as the Company Secretary for the Company since
September 2006. He was also appointed as an independent non-
executive director of TC Orient Lighting Holdings Limited in June 2015
(Stock Code: 515, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange).
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Mr. Hu Dehua, aged 41, is an Executive Director. He was appointed
on 24 May 2016. He graduated from the University of Shanghai for
Science and Technology, the PRC (B /G T K2 ) with a bachelor
of engineering, specialised in thermal engineering. Mr. Hu also
obtained a master’s degree in engineering from the Zhejiang University,
the PRC (FFBIHT)T KE) . Mr. Hu has extensive experience in the
areas of internet, finance and corporate management. From 2008 to
2012, Mr. Hu acted as the R&D director (i E5 48 85) of 1BAEE FIR MK
AR A a] (Hundsun Technologies Inc.*) (a company listed on the main
board of Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600570)), where he
was responsible for the research and development of bank corporate
service products, technical framework, project implementation and
other management work, leading his team in participating in the
implementation of various banking systems (including SaaS model).
From 2012 to 2015, Mr. Hu acted as the vice president of #7114 %
7B MR AT (Uni-Power Group*), where he was primarily responsible
for the research, development and operation of “cloud financing (=&
&) ", a data platform for business credit related information. During
his tenure with Uni-Power Group*, Mr. Hu also led in the establishment
of MINBESERBZRFHBMR AT (Hangzhou Xinhehui Network
Technology Co., Ltd.*) (currently known as /154 [E BB 48 4 B ARTS
AR A7) (Hangzhou Xinhehui Internet Financial Services Co., Ltd.*)) ,
a member of Uni-Power Group*, where he also served as the legal
representative, the chairman and the chief executive officer from 2014
to 2015 and was in charge of the operation strategy formulation and
daily management of “xinhehui.com (Z&&) ”, an internet-financing
platform of P2B model. Since January 2016, Mr. Hu has been the chief
executive officer of /1% BhzL 2 B B 48 © B AR %5 B PR A B] (Hangzhou
Tou Rong Puhua Internet Financial Services Co., Ltd.*), a subsidiary of
mNE &S B RSEEFR A (Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu
Financial Services Group Limited*) which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company, where he is responsible for strategic planning and daily
management. F71M #% Bl 5L 2 B B A © B AR %5 A PR 2 B (Hangzhou Tou
Rong Puhua Internet Financial Services Co., Ltd.*) is primarily engaged
in consumer finance and supply chain financial business in the PRC
under the brand name of “tourongjia (&%) .
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Mr. Chan Shu Kin, aged 62, is an Independent Non-executive Director.
He was appointed on 21 October 2002. He is a certified public
accountant and is a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants. He is an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a Certified Tax Advisor of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He
has over 40 years of experience in the field of auditing, accounting as
well as financial management. He is the past president of the Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He is also an independent non-
executive director of PYl Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 498, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Addchance
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3344, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange) in June 2015.

Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, aged 65, is an Independent Non-executive
Director. He was appointed on 30 September 2004. He is a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has many years of
experience in accounting, finance and corporate management and has
over 12 of years of experience in investment banking specialising in
equity/debt fund raising, mergers and acquisitions and corporate and
debt restructuring as well as private financial consultancy work. He
was also an executive director of publicly listed companies undertaking
corporate management, planning and strategies development
functions. Currently, he is an independent non-executive director of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 342, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and Great Harvest
Maeta Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3683, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Chiu Wai Piu, aged 69, is an Independent Non-executive Director.
He was appointed on 11 December 2015. He is a very experienced and
reputable journalist and has over 41 years of experience in journalism.
He has been a reporter, an editor, the main news assignment editor,
the local news assignment editor, the managing editor and the
editorial writer in newspapers and a senior research officer in “One
Mr. Chiu has been the
founding treasurer and the second-session chairman of the “Hong
Kong Federation of Journalists”. In 2006, he was elected as the Vice
Secretary-General & Treasurer in the new session of re-election of
committee members of the “Hong Kong Federation of Journalists”;
and he was also elected as the Director-General in 2009. Mr. Chiu
has, for many years, devoted himself wholeheartedly in boosting

Country Two Systems Research Institute”.

cooperation among local journalists, enhancing professional conduct
of journalists and developing the relationship and advocating the
interchange of knowledge between journalists in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. His contribution in this field is highly praised and
recognised. Mr. Chiu served as an independent non-executive director
of Global Strategic Group Limited (Stock Code: 8007, a company listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange) and resigned
on the said position on 16 June 2016. Mr. Chiu currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of Addchance Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 3344, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) and Gold Tat Group International Limited (Stock Code:
8266, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange).

The Company has received confirmation from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors as regards their independence from the
Company and considers that each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors is independent to the Company.

Ms. Tsang Hau Wai, aged 36, is the Financial Controller of the Group.
She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She is also a certified Project Management Professional
of Project Management Institute. She holds a Bachelor degree in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She had 15
years' experience in auditing, accounting and financial field including
in international accounting firms and in a listed company on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.
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Business unit
Commodity trading

Ms. Lau Wai Wing, Vivian, aged 48, is currently the Chief Marketing
Officer of the Group and the General Manager of Galali of the
Group. She holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from
Murdoch University in Perth Australia. Prior to joining the Group,
she worked in the financial and management fields for over 24 years
and held various positions such as financial controller and marketing
for a number of reputable groups, which include EfFEBARA
7] (Guangnan Holdings Limited*), /8 A/t HR A7 (Guangdong
Petrochemical Company Limited*), B RIEHEFR Q& (Hong
Kong Eastern Hill International Limited*), FEIAAEILE X EES
[R 2 &) (Taishan PetroChina Sales Company Limited*) and ERE K&
E AP A A (Guangdong Dongchang Group Company Limited*). She
has been engaged in the imports, re-exports, domestic trading and
blending of fuel oil since 2001, and is very familiar with the domestic
and Southeast Asia fuel market.

Financial services

Mr. Kwok Sze Keung, aged 55, currently the managing director of
China-Hong Kong Link Finance Company Limited and PetroAsian
Energy Finance Limited. He holds a Bachelor degree of Business
Administration from The Open University of Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Group in November 2013, he worked in the banking,
insurance and other industry of Bank of China group in its commercial
banking and insurance departments, and working in Kwangtung
Provincial Bank as a deputy manager for over 15 years.

Mr. Wong Chi Kan, aged 55, is currently the Representative Officer and
Director of China-Hong Kong Link Securities Company Limited effective
from October 2016.
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Mr. Wong has been licensed to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities)
regulated activity under the SFO since April 2003. Mr. Wong is
currently the head of sales and trading, in which capacity he
supervises the dealing department and is responsible for the front
office operations, including executing client orders, advising clients
and general day to day sales and trading work. Mr. Wong has worked
at several Hong Kong-based brokerage and securities houses as a
Responsible Officer (RO) or a representative over the past 14 years:
he was a RO in CSC Securities (HK) Limited from April 2003 to
August 2003 involved in dealing in securities; from September 2003
to October 2004 he was a Licensed Representative of First Securities
(HK) Limited involved in dealing in securities; from January 2005
to September 2012 he was a Licensed Representative at Luen Fat
Securities Company Limited involved in dealing in securities; and from
September 2012 to September 2016 he was a Responsible Officer in
Pinestone Securities Limited in involved in dealing in securities.

Mr. LOOK, Andrew aged 52, the Chief Investment Officer of the
Group's asset management business and Representative Officer of
China Hong Kong Link Asset Management Limited since 18 April 2017.
He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from University of Toronto
in Canada in 1986. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Look was the Head
of Hong Kong research, strategy and product in UBS investment bank
from 2000 to 2008. He was an Investment Officer in Hang Seng Bank
in 1980's.

& The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this report, where indicated, is
included for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official
English name of such Chinese name.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'

INTERESTS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE

COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED

CORPORATIONS

At 31 March 2017, the interests of the Directors and Chief Executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, and any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV
of the securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the

Report of the Directors
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EERESARABRAAT
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register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified %&HHE1|7M§U%3521I%ZETEE’] uﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁaﬂ

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code ﬁtiﬂﬁffj/g AlE@mmAR 563X FTEY

were as follows: HmmT:
Number of Equity Total Total % of

Name of Directors Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held Derivative Interest Igdsu%ey_ Eg%{'g;

17

ESpZ 5% EEME RH8A BRAFTEIR BER BEH

Mr. Li Zhenjun Interest of controlled corporation Corporate \nterest 2,000,000,000 - 2,005,000,000 26.554%

RELE X6 AEER /il (WEWAU

Iieneflcial Owner Personal Interest (Notes 3&4) 5,000,000

EnfEA AR (Fi3Ra)
Mr Poon Sum Egngchial Owner Personal Interest (Notes 384) 159,746,453 50,000,000 554,125,011 7.339%
BREE | §atic] {ENER (H7H3R4)

Founder of D\screnonary Trust Other Interest (Notes 28&4) 344,378,558 -

SREFEIHA E o (Mir2Rka)

Mr. Wong Kwok Leung Egngchial Owner Personal Interest (Notes 384) 116,285 50,000,000 50,116,285 0.664%

BERKEE ERBAA fHARR (MEr3R4)

Mr. Poon Wai Kong Beneficial Owner Personal Interest (Notes 3&4) 7,900,000 25,000,000 32,900,000 0.436%

EEREE EnAA ENER (M3R4)

Mr. Chan Shu Kin Egngchial Owner Personal Interest (Notes 384) 61,500 3,500,000 3,561,500 0.047%

P EiHA fHARS (HEE3R4)

Mr. Cheunﬁ Kwan Hung Iieneflcial Owner Personal Interest (Notes 3&4) 234,000 3,500,000 3,734,000 0.049%

RiIBE EnAA ENER (M3R4)

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu Egngchial Owner Personal Interest (Notes 384) - 3,500,000 3,500,000 0.046%

EBEEE EiHA fHARE (MHEE3R4)

Notes: Bt 3T -

1. These shares are held by Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Co., Limited. The issued 1. ZERGBRBRE (BF)ERARDAFE - KREE
share capital of Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Co., Limited is owned as to 100% B (BB ERAERARNEBETRAE MNP ER
by MR R E & @R E B AR AR (Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Financial THERARTMMNRREESRBEEEERATRE
Services Group Limited*), a company established in the PRC with limited liability, 100% s MMMERMEEEMBRBEBRER QA A
which in turn is owned as to 90% by Mr. Li Zhenjun. FIRE L EHEHI0%ME

2. These shares are held by Ever Source Enterprises Limited. The issued share capital of 72 %% I% 19 FfEver Source Enterprises Limited$# ° Ever

Ever Source Enterprises Limited is beneficially owned as to 50% by Time Concord
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by
a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sum,
and as to 50% by Guidance Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries
of which are family members of Mr. Poon Sau Tin, the elder brother of Mr. Poon
Sum. Accordingly, Mr. Poon Sum is deemed to be interested in 344,378,558 shares,
representing approximately 4.56% of the shares in issue as at 31 March 2017,
through his shareholding in Ever Source Enterprises Limited.

Source Enterprises Limited®) B 21T AR —HREE
BRABEBEMKRIEA - BE2RET (RRARERE
HRIR IR B ) M #E ¥ A K2 7] Time Concord Limited ®
#PEH50% Wi — R REE LS MR kA —
BERET (ZRRAABREENARERTALENK
WAk B ) R A A 7 Guidance Investments Limited
4 BINI50% o F It &R L £ E B E M Ever Source
Enterprises Limitedf) iR # - & 454% /574 344,378,558 A% iR
PR EEEN BERR-_E—+tE=A=+—AHNE
BATIRAD #94.56% °
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3. All interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are interests
in share options of the Company granted under the share options scheme, which
may be exercised during the period from 22 October 2016 to 21 April 2018 at the
exercise price of HK$0.193 per share.

4. All interests in shares of the Company are long position.

d The English transliteration of the Chinese name in this report, where indicated, is
included for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official
English name of such Chinese name.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had held any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

As at 31 March 2017, the interest of the shareholders, not being
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

3. RARARASTE T ANERBRG 0 A B DR RE
BEARE AT B H AR D A B AR A S - B AR R 5
T-RFE+A-Z+ZBRE-ZT— N\FHA=+—HIE
AR 1T E S R 0.193 8171

4. WARBBRM A ERY BIFR -

* FRENEHT X EBHRX EEERRE  TEKSE
BEEPXEBHEXE S EH -

BEXFEEEIN RZE—tF=A=1+—
A ARAREBEERETBITHAEMERAAR
St HAEMAAEEE (&R EFHRBEKD
FEXVER) B E AR - FERARR D Sk B
BREES LIS KRHEIS2ERE B R BE
Bl (F6228) B EARRAFEMELMAT
SRR IBIZEST R B BAA R A R AT
TS SR A -

RZZE—tF=ZA=+—8 KR (LFEAQ
RIEBRFZITHAR)RARRRND RAEH
RO HEERIEE S KIS IEFIE3361&AT
BB MATLSEN RSO T

Number of Equity Total Total % of
Name of Substantial Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held Derivative Interest  Issued Shares
HEBTROH
TERRBE/ LB L) BEtE BENROBE RATEIR BEs BEAM
Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Interest of Controlled Corporate Interest (Notes 1&2) ~ 2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000 26.488%
Financial Services Group Limited Corporation
MNRREESRRBEEEERAR REtEERR  AEER (HF1R2)
Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Beneficial owner Corporate Interest (Notes 1&2)  2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000,000 26.488%
Co., Limited
RERE (B8 BERERARF EREEA EEER (M1 R2)
Notes: B3
1. The issued share capital of Tou Rong Chang Fu (HK) Holding Co., Limited is owned 1. BREE (B5)EBRARARMNDRTEAR —BR

as to 100% by Hangzhou Tou Rong Chang Fu Financial Services Group Limited, a
company established in the PRC with limited liability, which in turn is owned as to
90% by Mr. Li Zhenjun.

2. All interests in the shares of the Company are long position.

Save as disclosed above, there was no person known to the directors
of the Company, other than a director of the Company, who as at
31 March 2017 had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company are recorded in the register kept
under section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's
five largest customers were approximately 99.62% and the sales
attributable to the Group's largest customer were approximately
97.23% of the Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers were approximately 99.27% and the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier were approximately
93.20% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there were no transactions, which need
to be disclosed as connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed in this annual report,
none of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report is a
connected transaction.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

Report of the Directors
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its parent company a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Details of the share option scheme are set out in this report and note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into during the reporting period or subsisted at the end of the
reporting period.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme ("MPF scheme”) was set up for certain employees in Hong
Kong, in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of the
employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,000 per month to the
MPF scheme. With effect from 1 June 2012, the ceiling is revised from
HK$1,000 to HK$1,250 per month. With effect from 1 June 2014, the
ceiling is revised from HK$1,250 to HK$1,500 per month. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the MPF Scheme.

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiary are required to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The PRC subsidiary contributes 2% to 22% of
the employee payroll to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable under the above schemes.
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The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty,
or supposed duty, in their offices, provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any of said persons.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company's
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Li Zhenjun
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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To the Shareholders of Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
(formerly known as “PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited”)
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Tou Rong Chang Fu Group
Limited (formerly known as “PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited”) (the
“Company"”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 87 to
205, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2017;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flow for the year then ended,;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment assessment of oil exploitation licences included in e
intangible assets and oil properties included in property, plant

and equipment

o Assessment of recoverability of a refundable deposit in respect of e

a potential acquisition

Key Audit Matter
HREEFSHE

Impairment assessment of oil exploitation licences
included in intangible assets and oil properties
included in property, plant and equipment
FOHBERT TR (FFABKEE) REHEE (FFAYE-
B E R &) 2 BENME

(Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements)

(2HRA M BRRMEES)

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amounts of the oil
exploitation licences and oil properties amounted to
approximately HK$99,496,000 and HK$42,382,000
respectively.

RZE—+tF=A=+—8B AhRKTIEREBE
2 BREE D R4 /2741 99,496,0007T &5 #642,382,000
T o

As detailed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the operation of the oilfields in the location
of Heilongjiang Province of the People’s Republic of China
has been suspended for more than one year.
BINGR A BTSRRI s SET R - AL R EE A R B R
EIGZhHEEEEEBR—F-

G e

/I,

B

BAEET P AW ET FESMANT

BB B G AR EE) BT
MATE (GEAME R REE) ZAME
S

BREENE 2 TRERS 2 ME
2k

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHENAEERRRITEE

We have performed the following procedures in relation
to the impairment assessment of oil exploitation licences
included in intangible assets and oil properties included in
property, plant and equipment:

BMERAHRRETAE (FABTEE) REMEE (51
A% BENERE) 2 BREMEERATRER:

- We evaluated the design and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls with particular focus on the
impairment assessment of oil exploitation licences
included in intangible assets and oil properties
included in property, plant and equipment;
BRSNS 2 Rt REE AR I
BHETABRKTAIZ (GFAREEE) RIFHE
E(FFAMZE BFE RZE) 2 RER

- We used our in-house valuation expert to assess the
appropriateness of methodology and model used by
the management in their impairment assessment;
BAERAAREEZERTEEE BN REN A
R HERKE 2 BENE:

- We have assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectively of the management’s expert;

BMCHHEREERZER £ORTEL:
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Key Audit Matter
BREESSHE

Impairment assessment of oil exploitation licences
included in intangible assets and oil properties
included in property, plant and equipment (Continued)
FOHBERT TR (FFABKEE) REHEE (FFAYE-
BERFZE) 2 RMETG (&)

In light of the above impairment indicator, management
determined the recoverable amount of the oil
exploitation licences included in intangible assets and oil
properties included in property, plant and equipment,
based on the fair value less cost of disposal valuation
model prepared by an independent external expert, in
which key assumptions included average market price
from comparable transactions, average disposal cost
adjustment; and discount rate.

ER PMRETSR EREERAFERBIINEER
mEl HEMEREKA  BEAMRRAIZ (GTAR
WEE) RIFBEE (FAAYE BEIRE) 2FAIkE S
HOHPIEBRREFALBRZRSG 2 FHHE  FHHE
PR EE R BB 3 o

With reference to the impairment assessment, the
management concluded that no impairment charge was
necessary for oil exploitation licences and oil properties as
at 31 March 2017.
K2EFENH BEERER T —tF=A=1—
H #SEREERH MR AE LN EENSBL
o

This area was of most significance to our audit due
to the significance of the balances, and the fact that
management’s assessment of the recoverable amount of
the balances involved significant judgement.

PR EEBRMNEFARAEE REARGESREX ik
EREBNGMERZIEREFEIRERHF I EE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHETNMAEERRERITEE

- We have benchmarked key assumptions including
average market price from comparable transactions,
average disposal cost adjustment and discount rate
against industry data.

BPEH T ERBETEERA BEHATLEERR
S FATE FHEERRAR KR REITE
BB HEITEL

- We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the impairment assessment; and.

BAVASREF G EHBEERENE &

- We have performed sensitivity analysis over the key
assumptions used in order to assess the potential
impact of a range of possible outcomes.
BMEYHMAZ E2RJETHERESN - AT
—RIIFIREERBETE -

We found the methodologies used in the impairment
assessment were appropriate and the key assumptions
were supportable in light of available and comparable
internal and other market evidence.
BMBERBENGEMAZAEZBESE BEXE/RBEATH
SRAIELER 2 NE R A T5 REIE RS-



Key Audit Matter
HREESSHE

Assessment of recoverability of a refundable deposit
in respect of a potential acquisition

FHEEWE 2 TREES 2 B WG

(Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements)
(2HRERE T BmERME19)

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of the
refundable deposit in respect of a potential acquisition
amounted to approximately HK$30,000,000. As at 31
March 2017, the Group was yet to enter into a final
sale and purchase agreement. There is a risk that the
refundable deposit would not be recoverable as the
refundable deposits had not been repaid for more than
one year.

RZE—+tF=A=+—8B BRELKEZTEEIZ
& 2 BREEX BB 30,000,000L - R=ZT—+F = A
=t —H AEERKRTIRZEERHZE - AR AR EE
B REARERBR—F  BFERRERS AT AT E 2 &

48 o
A

For the purpose of impairment assessment, management
has obtained the management accounts of the target
group to determine the recoverable amount of the
refundable deposit based on the financial condition of the
target group.

HRENENS BEEECREAREECZERRERA N
BEEREBZMBRAECRERE 2P KOS5 -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMHETNMAEERRERITEE

We have performed the following procedures over
management’s assessments on the recoverable amount of
the refundable deposit:
BMERERBHAIRMIZ S 2 A [ & 58 2 77 il & e LA
TREF:

- We have arranged and received the confirmation in
respect to the refundable deposit;
BMERHF L KB BEAATREIZ S 2 R

- We have obtained and reviewed the management
accounts and understood the financial condition of
the target group;

BMENGERATBEEEREY THREEEE M
AR

- We have assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management'’s expert; and
BHAEFEERBERZER R OREEHL : &

- We have reviewed the appropriateness of the
methodologies of the valuation method and
understood the assumptions prepared by the
independent external valuation expert.
BAEmAEEREZBEE LN 7 BN E
ERmHEZBR-
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Key Audit Matter
HREESSHE

Assessment of recoverability of a refundable deposit
in respect of a potential acquisition (Continued)

FHEEWRB 2 TREZEE 2 B WEFTME (&)

In addition, the Group entered into a share pledge
agreement and a personal guarantee agreement with one
of the shareholders of the target group.

Sboh e REEEE REE 2 —BRRFT RGO ERHE
(EPNGLE

Management also performed a valuation on the target
group based on value-in-use valuation model with the
assistance from an independent external valuation expert.
B INAEERZHE T  ERENREEREER
BEEAE B EEEETHE

With reference to the assessments above, management
concluded that no impairment charge on the refundable
deposit in respect of the potential acquisition was
necessary as at 31 March 2017.

K2ZE EXFG EEERERN _Z—+tF=A=1T—
H - SEslEEkBEsREReREERBLE-

This area was of most significance to our audit due
to the significance of the balance, and the fact that
management’s assessment of the recoverable amount of
the balance involved significant judgement.
FRFTEEBRMNEARRAEE REAREKREXR L
EREBNMERZIEREEIRERHGCEE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMHENMAEERRERITEE

We found the judgements and estimates made by
management in assessing the recoverable amount of the
refundable deposit in respect of a potential acquisition to
be reasonable based on the evidence obtained.

RBATEG 2 /8E  HMBERERENFEEREERE
Z AR B ® 2 AT Bl & R R 2 HIET R b et B AR -



The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

G e
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&

RAEFAHEMEEAR - HHLEE R
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HHERPRI A5

Fr|m

ERHZMERITHIE MREFRBEME
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EHE BB EMRE -
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @t & Z 5B HBR A A
Annual Report 2016-17 —Z—XRE—+FFEHRE
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

o  HEEEMRASIHTERRNBEERE
SEHEF B RENAE M -

o HEERARKELLSTEMNREMN
EH AW - RIBFEDMNBRERE &
EREBFHEAZHRYBABHENERNT
WEM M EERYE SEEENF
BREENEEERNRE - MREFA
REEEANEEN MBS BEZE
B ETIRBEREIRFEYHRE
TR E-REAHENBET R
AIRMEEHRFEREER - RN
iEam e AN R BRI B IEATEUS B R
FHBE AWM RKREBEIIERNATEE
B AERETRSEKLE-

o  HESAUBmMRNERIIRIA &
BNMAR BEEE ARGEHBR
REEBTERRZXHMER-

e 3 EREREBXEHEDNYBE
BERTR BEENENRE UEY
RAVBHRRERER -RMEAE &
SEBFOAE EBMAT-HMA
BEtRRAEREEE-

BMESEREZESRRBTHENBRTEHE.
BRZH EXETERE  BERRMAESET
o R P B Tl B R R KRG o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB EN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wilson Chan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ-ZT—

IIVT\

BlE*

TFE=ZA=+—RLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BEET T
Revenue U 25 13,832,372 5,932,235
Cost of sales SHE KA (13,519,651) (5,808,056)
Gross profit EF 312,721 124,179
Other losses, net H b1 F8E (5.622) (199,149)
Selling and distribution costs HE KD HA (45,456) (20,164)
Administrative expenses THRAX (106,595) (82,839)
Operating profit/(loss) KgEEm (BER) 155,048 (177,973)
Finance income ELE= /N 11 106 1,354
Finance costs A& KA 11 (38,367) (32,779)
Share of loss of an associate JEAG —REIB & QA &8 18 - (21,409)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BETEB R ESN (BE) 116,787 (230,807)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frig®i (M) % 12 (1,643) 159
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF (E18) 115,144 (230,648)
Profit/(loss) for the year AT AT REIEERGEF,
attributable to: (E18E) :
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIEZ 2SN 117,760 (227,059)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 6 M R (2,616) (3,589)
115,144 (230,648)
Earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) &I E M, (E18) GBl) 13
Basic and diluted AR EE 1.57 (4.19)
The notes on pages 95 to 205 are an integral part of these Z8595H £2058 2 Hist A2 &AM KRR E

consolidated financial statements.

G-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P BT T BT
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(BER) 115,144 (230,648)
Other comprehensive loss: HEM2EEE:
Items that may be reclassified BEZ FIREIR BT DT
subsequently to profit or loss: Bl HA -
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations &N Z=%8 (17,348) (4,193)
Reclassification of exchange RAELE—FHMHEQA
reserve upon deemed mE o EE K #HE
disposal of a subsidiary 33 - (8,642)
Changes in fair value of AHEEREZ A FE
available-for-sale investments =) 20 (2,292) (23,114)
Share of exchange reserve of FEAE —FEl B & R RIE
an associate [ 18 - (18)
(19,640) (35,967)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ FRZHER A (EE) L5
for the year 95,504 (266,615)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) A N AT EMEZE
attributable to: WA (E518) 425
Owners of the Company ZIN/NESTEZ F N 94,430 (257,956)
Non-controlling interests FEIE Il 1 R 2 1,074 (8,659)
95,504 (266,615)
The notes on pages 95 to 205 are an integral part of these 2895E £2058 Mtk A LG A M KRR E

consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 March 2017 R-Z—+t&=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BEET T
Assets EE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BE&EE 15 83,266 87,298
Investment properties REME 16 106,118 108,349
Intangible assets B EE 17 129,273 141,501
Interests in an associate R—EBE QR s 18 = =
Prepayments, deposits and BHIE - RE R
other receivables H fth W 5018 19 32,346 31,538
Other financial assets HEthemEE 20 29,241 24,533
380,244 393,219
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 2,225 2,626
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 22 446,441 348,020
Loans receivable FENE R 23 117,125 19,913
Prepayments, deposits and BAFIE Rk
other receivables H b fE U GRIE 19 202,206 102,676
Derivative financial assets PTHETREE 24 - 510
Other financial assets HEthemEE 20 256 147
Cash and bank balances B& MIRITH 25 283,922 208,168
1,052,175 682,060
Total assets EEHEE 1,432,419 1,075,279
Equity and liabilities ERRAEE
Equity attributable to owners of ZR2Q F#EHE AEL 2 S
the Company
Share capital [N 29 75,507 62,174
Reserves G 581,074 322,258
656,581 384,432
Non-controlling interests FEH I 14 A 2 (2,671) (3,096)
Total equity R 653,910 381,336
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As at 31 March 2017

BRIFIR R

n‘/T\

R_ZT—tF=A=+—8H

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June
2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P BT T ok e
Liabilities af
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIEAE 31 1,816 2,224
Bonds &5 32 438,223 366,830
440,039 369,054
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B 5 ENRIR 26 135,197 274,924
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 3R I8 I B JE < 5018 27 167,474 49,754
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 32,818 —
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFT ST B (& 1,977 211
Bonds e 32 1,004 =
338,470 324,889
Total liabilities =gt 778,509 693,943
Total equity and liabilities EahEaE8EE 1,432,419 1,075,279
The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 205 were S87HZ205BFTE 2R EMBHERENZ

—+FAZ=Z+=H ?%i%@ﬁbﬁ&?iﬁgﬂ

AR TIEERRER

Poon Sum Poon Wai Kong
&R &R
Director Director
EF EF
The notes on pages 95 to 205 are an integral part of these Z958HZ
consolidated financial statements. %%Z—ﬁwﬁ o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n\/T\

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZEZZF—

Attributable to owners of the Company

S

A
\léRl:lm

SRR IR

+tF=A=+—HLFE

ERAERAEE
Share- Retained
based earnings/ Non-
Share Treasury Share payment Other  Exchange (accumulated controlling Total
capital shares premium reserve reserves reserve losses) Total interests equity
RG34 2 REEN/ FEH
& ERRG  ROEE  REEE  EBEE  EXEE (RHER) 3 BE  REEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETr  A%Tn  R%Tn  B%Tr  B%fr  BEfr B%fr B&Tn BETn BETx
(Note)
(Bz)
At 1 April 2015 RZE-1EMA-A 49,857 = 575127 25,861 (220,038) 31,723 3153 465,683 9133 474816
Comprehensive loss 2EFR
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - sy (221,059 (3589  (230,648)
Other comprehensive (loss)income 2 (F8) /%
Exchange differences arising on BERNEBEEL
translation of foreign operations EiER - - - - - 877 - 877 (5,070) (4193)
Redlassiication of exchange reserve BRHE-HHBARE
upon deemed disposal of a subsidiary ~ EFPBEN K - - - - - (8642) S (8642) £ 8,642)
Change in fair value of AfHEREL
available-for-sale investments INTEEE) - - - - (23,114) - - (23,114) = (23,114)
Share of exchange resenve of ElE-ERERT
an associate EifE - - - S S (18) = (1) = (18)
Total other comprehensive Rt2E (B8) /hadE
(loss)/income - - - - (23,114) (7,783) - (30,897) (5,070) (35,967)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ER2EFELE - - - - (23,114) (7783 21,059 (257.956) (865%9) (266,615
Transactions with owners HERAZRS
Repurchase of ordinary shares under  RERG ZEHEED L AR
share award scheme (Note 30(b)) (HizE300) - (8,055) - - - - - (8,055) - (8,055)
Vesting of shares of share award et R E 2 RO & T
scheme (Note 30(b)) (H3E3000)) = 2,685 - 5370 - - - 8,055 - 8,055
Deemed disposal of  subsidiary BALE-BHELR
(Note 33) (If3£33) - - - - - - - - (2.340) (2,340)
Placement of new shares (Note 29) RERRN (K9 7,667 - 88,900 - - - - 96,567 - 96,567
Evercise of non-listed warrants s LRk ER
(Note 30(c) (I31300) 4,650 - 100279 (24.791) - - - 80,138 - 80,138
Dividend payable to BRI ERRE
non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - (1,230) (1,230)
Total transactions with owners HEEAZRSBE 12317 (5,370) 189,179 (19.421) = - = 176,705 (3.570) 173,135
At 31 March 2016 RZB-~"EZA=T-H 62,174 (5,370) 764,306 6,440 (243,152) 23,940 (223,906) 384,432 (3,09) 381,336
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADTERAEL
Share-
based Non-
Share Treasury Share payment Other  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital shares  premium reserve  reserves reserve losses Total interests equity
R B A 2 FEH
Bx  ERRG  ROEE  FERE  EBEE  EXRE  RHER 3 BE  REEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A¥Tn  E%Tn  E%Tn  E%Tn A%Tn E%Tn E%Tn E%Tn E%Tn E%Tn
(Note)
(Bz)
At 1 April 206 H-2-AEMA-A 14 (530 Te306  GM0  (431) B0 (236 B4R (%) 38133
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year FREF = = = - - - 117,760 117,760 (2,616) 115,144
Other comprehensive (loss)income 2 (F8) /%
Exchange differences arising on BERNEBEEL
translation of foreign operations ERzE - - - - - (21,038) - (21,038) 3,690 (17,348)
Change in fair value of AfHEREL
available-for-sale investments NFEED - - - - (229 - - (229 - (2,292
Total other comprehensive Ht2E (58) /W48
(loss)/income - - - - (229) (21,038) - (23,330) 3,690 (19,640)
Total comprehensive (loss)income £ (F8) /WHLE
for the year - - - - (2.292) (21,038) 117,760 94,430 1,074 95,504
Transactions with owners HERAZRS
Vesting of shares of share award Ok BEPAE
scheme (Note 30(b)) IE - 53170 - (5,370) - - - - - -
Placement of new shares (Note 29) 13,333 - 152,200 - - - - 165,533 - 165,533
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (Note 30(a)) WRH iﬁZ
(330 - - - 12,186 - - - 12,186 - 12,186
Forfeit of share options (Note 30a)) BREM( M 30a) - - - (85) - - 85 - - -
Lapse of non-listed warrants FLMARER XN
(Note 30(c) (H3E300)) - - - (1,084) - - 1,084 - - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest & fi e8I R 2 1k & - - - - - - - - (649) (649)
Total transactions with owners HEBALRGHE 13,333 5370 152,200 5,647 - - 1,169 177,119 (649) 177,070
At 31 March 2017 R-E-tEZfA=1-H 75,507 - 916,506 12,087 (245,444) 2,902 (104,977) 656,581 (2.671) 653,910
Note: L

Other reserves mainly represent the difference of approximately a debit of HK$221,862,000
(2016: a debit of HK$221,862,000) between the amounts paid or received from transactions
related to the changes of shareholdings in subsidiaries without the loss of control and
the non-controlling interests being acquired or disposed of. Other reserves also comprise
capital contributions from substantial shareholders, investment valuation reserve, merger
reserve and statutory reserve of approximately a credit of HK$5,450,000 (2016: a credit of
HK$5,450,000), a debit of HK$32,516,000 (2016: a debit of HK$30,224,000), a credit of
HK$3,248,000 (2016: a credit of HK$3,248,000) and a credit of HK$236,000 (2016: a credit
of HK$236,000) respectively.

The notes on pages 95 to 205 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

n‘lj_\ EE@/}H:E'IEE

BE_ZT—tHF=ZA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-RF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT
Cash flows from RELETH2EHERE
operating activities
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREFSRALEF, (E8) 116,787 (230,807)
Adjustments for: FE
Finance income A WA (106) (1,354)
Finance costs & Bk A 38,367 32,779
Share of loss of an associate FEAE — A B & A R ES 1R - 21,409
Depreciation and amortisation ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ 7 22,996 11,791
Waiver of trade payables REEHEMNR 6 = (3,411)
Impairment losses of "’%Mﬂz IE/W@JEETE
trade receivables 6 - 9,138
Impairment losses of prepayments, BT 5018  #% & R H At
deposits and other receivables F‘Hﬂlmﬁﬂ@)ﬁﬁ?ﬁ 6 4,264 6,788
Impairment losses of FEWEF R EEE
loans receivable 6 4,809 -
Impairment losses of property, Y- BB &
plant and equipment REBEREERE 6 - 50,205
Impairment loss of KEYEREBEERE
investment properties 6 - 11,525
Impairment losses of mLAEREBEERE
intangible assets 6 - 94,881
Inventories written off METFE 6 = 3,377
(Gain on deregistration)/loss on —fEKB ARz (BEEER
deemed disposal of W) BAELEER
a subsidiary 33 (2,222) 9,789
Gains on disposals of property, LEWE - BERE&EZ
plant and equipment Wz 6 (40) (89)
Losses from changes TEeRMIAANTE
in fair value of derivative ) EiE
financial instruments 6 - 5,786
Gains from changes FIEEBEREQNTE
in fair value of held-for-trading s Pl
investments 6 (109) (15)
Share-based payments ERERE 2 AR HD
in respect of consultation fees YA 2 58 7 - 3,943
Share-based payments AR 9 2~ 2 5/ I8 8 12,186 =
Operating cash flows before HEESEHAIZ
movements in working capital KEBERE 196,932 25,735
Decrease in inventories FER D (343) 498
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FE YR IA L In (99,470) (46,259)
Increase in prepayments, TERT A - ?ﬁ/ﬁ&
deposits and other receivables Hh fE IR IE 38 N (104,478) (54,808)
(Increase)/decrease in JEWE X (i' [l )/@Z’/
loans receivable (102,021) 9,246
Decrease in derivative financial PTEEMEE/(BFE)
assets/(liabilities), net B FER 510 (33,038)
Decrease in trade payables 2 5 FE S IR R (136,837) (15,215)
Increase in accruals JE &t 3R IR K EAib B < FIE
and other payables #n 114,573 10,951
Increase in client HEETIRITERIZM
trust bank balances (5,056) -
Cash used in operations %%‘f%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ)ﬂ ZRE (136,190) (102,890)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B FIE B % (149) =
Net cash used in KETHMAZESTE
operating activities (136,339) (102,890)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=ZF

—tE=ZA=t—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BETT BT T
Cash flows from RERETBHZEHERE
investing activities
Purchase of property, BEWE WFE MR
plant and equipment (6,375) (6,518)
Purchase of investment properties BBEREYE = (97,010)
Proceeds from disposals of HEME - KRE KRB
property, plant and equipment FT5 718 261 89
Purchase of an available-for-sale KB ESRmEE
financial assets (5,000) -
Net cash outflow arising WERBAREELE Y
on acquisition of subsidiaries REmLFE 34 (7,898) =
Interest received =& ESN 106 1,354
Dividend paid to non-controlling B IR b S 2 BB
interest (649) -
Decrease in restricted PR il 8R 1T 17 FORL 2
bank deposits - 46,980
Cash outflow arising from deemed @& & —FHHBERAREL
disposal of a subsidiary ZIRE R 33 - (1,633)
Net cash used in investing REZTBFARESFE
activities (19,555) (56,738)
Cash flows from REBMETBHZ2HERE
financing activities
Net proceeds from placement of Bic & $T AR 0 Fr 15 SR IEF 58
new shares 29(b) 165,533 96,567
Proceeds from exercise of 1T 3E L Th SRR
non-listed warrants FT1S 53R 29(0) - 80,138
Net proceeds from issuance of bonds HITE S SR EF 62,455 108,184
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITHEMER E 35,000 34,488
Repayments of bank borrowings TEE?ETTF“A“ (2,458) (81,112)
Interest paid EATFLE (28,425) (37,462)
Net cash generated from RETBHMEZRE TR
financing activities 232,105 200,803
Net increase in cash and RekBREEHEER
cash equivalents B 76,211 41,175
Cash and cash equivalents FUReRESEEER
at beginning of the year 208,168 165,786
Effect of foreign exchange IEERSH2RE
rate changes (5,513) 1,207
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRAELESEER
at end of the year 25 278,866 208,168
The proceeds from disposal of LEEWE BEL&ZE
property, plant and equipment FTSFIERTE
comprise:
Net book value (Note 15) BREEE (KMEEE15) 221 —
Gains on disposal of property, HEME BE REHBRR
plant and equipment (Note 6) (MzE6) 40 89
Proceeds from disposals of HEME  KEREE
property, plant and equipment FT18 53R 261 89

The notes on pages 95 to 205 are an integral part of these 28
Jrt
(=2

@Zi

consolidated financial statements.
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Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited (the “Company”) (formerly
known as PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and 21st Floor, 80 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong,
respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are trading of commodities
and chemical products, property investment, money lending
business, securities brokerage, asset management, insurance
brokerage and exploitation and sale of crude oil.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved by the
Board of Directors on 23 June 2017.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by revaluation of certain available-for-
sale investments and held-for-trading investments, which are
carried at fair value.

e AR MR

EmEE&EBEBRAT ([AAF])
(AT DaERIERBR AR AR
EHEFMKIZBRAR HRHE
EBEBMARSGMBRAT ([HRZAM])
- ARRZFMPEERETES
3 b 2 2 H 4k 5 Bl A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands}
BB ZTETITE805R211E -

ARRETBEBRAREZER -EHBR
AZEBEBREMIMCIERES
WMERE BRER BHERL BEE
B RERELRFAREEE R

BRRBEAIN ZEPBRRABET
T ([RBTT)) 27 ZFHAMBR
RKERZZE—tLHFRAZT=REES
e o

BRZEEAMBERRMER IR
BRI T RSB EHAIN &S
BERNAMBLIFEANCERER -

d

RARREWB AR (5[ AEE])
ZEEMBRRDREELEGTNAE
Bz 2EERBEMBRELER ([&F
AMBREERD RE - HRMBERE
ERBELKAE G WEREMS
TAHEERERFIERERE (8%
DNFHEAR) EHIER]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

(a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(i)  New standard and amendments to standards
effective for annual periods beginning on 1 April
2016:
Amendment to HKAS 1

Disclosure initiative

Amendments to Clarification of acceptable

HKAS 16 and methods of depreciation and
HKAS 38 amortisation

Amendment to Equity method in separate
HKAS 27 financial statements

Sales or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associates or joint venture

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferred accounts

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual improvements
2012-2014 cycle

The adoption of the new standard and amendments
to standards did not have any material impact on
the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(i)

New standards and amendments to standards have

been issued but are not effective and have not been

early adopted

e ISR R MR

2 FESTHEEE @)

(b) EFfBRRERBREER 22 (8

(i) SHEMGEERERE i K18 EHR
RZHERRER ZEETE

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after Note
REUATAHR

ZERKZ

FEHBER i3

Amendment to HKAS 7

BRGFENETRZEFTA

Amendment to HKAS 12

BRGNS 12R 2 ETR

Amendment to HKFRS 2

Disclosure initiative
RS

Recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised
losses

MARER B REBERRT
MIBEE

Classification and
measurement of
share-based payment
transactions

BREVBHRERMNE2ZR ZEBITEA UBOHNRZRHZ

DM E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR AL

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHBEME (@)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (b) BEFERERREEENZEE (#)
(Continued)

(i) EBEMEEKEME HARIEER
RZHERRER ZIEETE (&)

(ii) New standards and amendments to standards have
been issued but are not effective and have not been
early adopted (continued)

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after Note
REUATRHR

ZEMmZ

FEPHBEER Bt &

HKFRS 9
BAMBREREABOR

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BRMBHRELNF 10X REES

FHEERIE 2858 2 BT A

HKFRS 15

BRI EERE 155

HKFRS 16
BAMBHRERAF165

Financial instruments
SRTHA

Sale or contribution of
assets between an
investor and its associate
or joint venture

RE B ERE N F S
EENRICENEE
HERZA

Revenue from contracts
with customers

BERPAKKR
Leases
HE

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

New standards and amendments to standards have
been issued but are not effective and have not been
early adopted (continued)

The Group is assessing the impacts of these new standards
and amendments to standards and will apply them once
they are effective.

Note (a):

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” — This new standard
replaces the previous revenue standards: HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS
11 “Construction Contracts”, and the related Interpretations on revenue
recognition. HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining when to recognise revenue and how much revenue to recognise
through a 5-step approach:

(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer; (2) Identify separate performance
obligations in a contract; (3) Determine the transaction price; (4) Allocate
transaction price to performance obligations; and (5) Recognise revenue
when performance obligation is satisfied. The core principle is that a
company should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. It moves away from a revenue recognition model based on an
“earnings processes” to an “asset liability” approach based on transfer of
control. HKFRS 15 provides specific guidance on capitalisation of contract
cost, license arrangements and principal versus agent considerations. It also
includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts with customers. The major revenue stream for the Group are
commodity trading, the performance obligations of this revenue is currently
recognised in accordance with Note 2 (aa). The Group has performed a
preliminary assessment of the potential impact of the application of HKFRS
15 and identified the key areas which might be accounted for differently
under this new standard, including but not limited to the timing of revenue
recognition.

B R AR M R

n‘/T\

2 ERE n-I_JBZ *E)%R ,E

(b)

(i)

B BERERBREERNCEE (&

EBEFE e REMR 4 K12 EHR
R ZHERRER ZIEETE (&)

AEBIEAENGZEMEARE
AMERT AR Z 8 XA AERE N
LAFER -

F&E(a) :

EREVBHERAEISR[RFANKE] —
FZHTRE B SR A 2 WS R BB R AT AR
F185% [Meai ] REBGHERFENR [RES
0] RABRERERARRE - BEMBERE
R FEISHBELARAER BBRSEBEER
BRI R R S s

(MBBIBEPIILZAEK: Q#BENDZ2E
UBRHEME: QEERSE: OBERZEIE
EREDAEME: RORTERENRERHER L -

oL RAAR R EERY S UL BARRR A

RAIEHAARBRENEE MK RGESZRE
Z2BEMBRFPBERZERRIMRE - L EARE
ER [BFBIE ] 2 Wit iR iR A o ) B R R
REBZ [BEARDE - BEMBRELAE
ISERBMRABARE LR ERY
RIBRERMAARES - WEATHERZF
FRUOMEAZRERREREZNE 8-
BHITHANERRE - EREZRBERE
FEBEZIBRBRBRAERES BHKREZ
FE#) R AR TR B M iE2(aa) iR - AR B D
HEAEAMBRELNB ISR EELEE
T2 5F A 3058 BUAR B8 5% 97 28 R AT BE A TR
FAINKRZ TR E  BIEETRRY KSR
pd: 11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(ii)

New standards and amendments to standards have
been issued but are not effective and have not been
early adopted (continued)

Note (b):

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — The Group is a lessee of its office buildings which are
currently classified as operating leases. The Group’s current accounting policy
for such leases is set out in Note 2 (ab). As at 31 March 2017, the Group
has aggregate minimum lease payments, which are not reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position, under non-cancellable operating
lease of approximately HK$18,583,000 as set out in Note 35(b).

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting treatment of leases and
will in the future no longer allow lessees to account for certain leases outside
the consolidated statement of financial position. Instead, all long-term leases
must be recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position in the
form of assets (for the rights of use) and lease liabilities (for the payment
obligations), both of which would carry initially at the discounted present
value of the future operating lease commitments. Short-term leases with
a lease term of twelve months or less and leases of low-value assets are
exempt from such reporting obligations.

The new standard will therefore result in an increase in right-to-use asset
and an increase in lease liability in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In the consolidated income statement, lease will be recognised in
the future as depreciation and will no longer be recorded as rental expenses.
Interest expense on the lease liability will be presented separately from
depreciation under finance costs. As a result, the rental expenses under
otherwise identical circumstances will decrease, while depreciation and the
interest expense will increase. The combination of a straight-line depreciation
of the right-to-use asset and the effective interest rate method applied to the
lease liability will result in a higher total charge to profit or loss in the initial
year of the lease, and decreasing expenses during the latter part of the lease
term. The new standard is not expected to be applied by the Group until the
financial year ending 31 March 2020.

Other than those analysed above, the management does not anticipate any
significant impact on the Group’s financial positions and results of operations
upon adopting the above other amendments to existing standards.
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Annual Report 2016-17 ZZ—AE—LFFEHE

2 jzzcEan+E& ﬁ%zt ug

(b)

(i)

B BERERBREERN 2 EE (&

EBEE o RAEMK 5 K 12 R
2 HERRER ZIEETE ()

Bt 3£ (b)

BERMBHREEAE 165 [HE
REPABFEZEBA (BRIHDH
B) AEEHABEAEZ EAI S BRH
RHtE2@b) R=E—t&F=A=1+—8"
AEBZF HEEREE T2 &EKM
SR EEL A 118,583,0007T (&8 40Kt
FE3S)ETHE)  EAW RREREMBMRRER
H}o

—A&EHE

EEMBHRSENF RAXFTHEZ G5
REFTAFIGEX  BBRTBRHEABAR
RAMBARRRIINEE THEAR -BUMK
Z MERHHEEVNANEE (GieREMm
F)RBEEEE (RAREEMNS) HARE
BHMBRREZER  MEDVFRAREE
HEAEZMHRRAENR -BHA+=EAR
INTZEPHERREEERERALE
MmEEE-

F it - #2E RS B AR & IS IO R
REMEEELNMEEEREZN - REE
Waskm - AER A RSERBITERET
BARIEEERX -BEABZAEMAX
HRBERARTENESFHES Bt

EEMERBATZHESFAXERD T
ERASHEXBEN - EERREAEZER
FEEBERMNXEZES YERAREE

B SEREREEFRERXH AR
= EREERREN A &R D -t
ERHREE—F_FF=A=+—H81
MHFEEZABTERAEERA -

B EXFoMESN EREBEARA MR
BERZ AMETAR T EHARE 2

MRREERXBEFEMNERTE



(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)

over which the Group has control. The Group controls

an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,

variable returns from its involvement with the entity and

has the ability to affect those returns through its power

over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date

on which control is transferred to the Group. They are

deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

(i)

e AR MR

wE

MEAR T ASE S H A E %
MER (BEEABLER) -5X
SEFR2EERERME D
WERERBRIZFAEERN WS
BEEZEEBNENZEZSE
B ARAEEHZERAFES
#-HBAREEHIREBBEARE
B2 B4R E AR - B A RERE
L IL 2 AREILSEA AR

@) RBE&EOf

REETRBWEERER
BHAR - RB-RMNBL
Al 2 EEAE R WETTA
BEANMEREE FEL
BERNAEEMETEREL
RNFHE-FAEERRERER
AREBLHIELEZEFNEE
FREZAFE - REHKA
BFET BT UL 2 T 38R B B K%
FEEzABERIREE
NFREBEE B 2 X FER

=
E=-°

REE LR B WBERE - A
DR IR IE RS A AR P
R RETT AR B B E
EERBER LA - RN
R T3 2 (LRI SR ) 1
a5 o W IR BRI EE A B

SRR
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(i)

BRI R AR MR

Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in the consolidated income
statement or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.
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(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the
owners in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.

Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in the
consolidated income statement. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

(i)

e PR RR M

F=0e )]
(b) TEHEGNEEENE L
G ERZE)

(c)
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(ii)  Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in an associate includes goodwill identified

on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to the consolidated income statement where
appropriate.
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The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of loss in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in an associate. Unrealised losses
are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in an associate are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker ("CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Executive Directors of the Company
that makes strategic decisions.
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Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The Company’s
functional currency is United States dollars (“US$") and
since the Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, the Board of Directors considered that
it is more appropriate to adopt HK$ as the Group’s and the
Company's presentation currency in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “Other losses, net”.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in
consolidated income statement, and other changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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(i)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that consolidated statement of
financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Exchange translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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(9)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iv) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to the consolidated income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprises mainly plant and
machinery, furniture, fixture and equipment, motor vehicles, oil
properties (Note 2(h)) and construction-in-progress, is stated
at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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(9)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Plant and machinery 5-11 years

Furniture, fixture and 3-11 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 4-8 years

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery, installation, testing
and other direct costs. No depreciation is made on construction-
in progress until the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into use,
the costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment and

depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(k)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within

"Other losses, net” in the consolidated income statement.
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Exploration and evaluation

Oil exploration and evaluation expenditures are accounted
for using the method of accounting.
Costs are accumulated on a field-by-field basis. Geological
and geophysical costs are expensed as incurred. Costs
directly associated with an exploration well, and
exploration and property leasehold acquisition costs, are
capitalised until the determination of reserves is evaluated.
If it is determined that commercial discovery has not been
achieved, these costs are charged to expense.

“successful efforts”

Capitalisation is made within property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets according to the nature of
the expenditure.

Once commercial reserves are found, exploration and
evaluation assets are tested for impairment and transferred
to development tangible and intangible assets. No
depreciation and/or amortisation is charged during the
exploration and evaluation phase.

Development assets

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion
of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and
the drilling of commercially proven development wells,
is capitalised within property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets according to nature. When development
is completed on a specific field, it is transferred to oil
properties or intangible assets. No depreciation and/or
amortisation is charged during the development phase.

(iii)  Oil properties

Qil properties are aggregated exploration and evaluation
tangible assets, and development expenditures associated
with the production of proved reserves.
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(iv) Depreciation/amortisation

)

Oil properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

As there had been no extraction of crude oil for several
years,
calculation of depreciation of the oil properties using unit-
of-production method in oil field used in prior years may
not be appropriate.

the management has determined that the

Therefore, the calculation of depreciation of the oil
properties has changed to straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, which is determined as the
remaining life of the oil exploitation licenses. Such change
in the depreciation method is accounted for prospectively
under Hong Kong Accounting Standards 8 “Accounting
Policies — changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”.

The profit for the year, non-current assets and total assets
of the Group would have been increased by approximately
HK$3,801,000 should there be no change in the
depreciation method for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Impairment — exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment
when reclassified to development assets, or whenever facts
and circumstances indicate impairment. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the exploration
and evaluation assets’ carrying amount exceeds their
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of the exploration and evaluation assets’ fair value less
costs of disposal and their value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, the exploration and evaluation
assets subject to testing are grouped with existing cash-
generating units of production fields that are located in the
same geographical region.
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(vi) Impairment — development assets, oil properties and

plant and machineries
Development assets, oil properties and plant and
machineries are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off

the cost of investment properties over the shorter of the term of
the lease and 50 years, using the straight-line method.

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
an associate represents the excess of consideration
transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest
in the acquiree.
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(i)

(i)

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Exploitation licences

Exploitation licences acquired are shown at historical
cost and have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. As there had been no
extraction of crude oil for several years, the management
has determined that the calculation of amortisation of the
exploitation licences using unit-of-production method in oil
field used in prior years may not be appropriate.

Therefore, the calculation of amortisation of the
exploitation licences has changed to straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives, which is determined as
the remaining life of the oil exploitation licenses. Such
change in the amortisation method is accounted for
prospectively under Hong Kong Accounting Standards 8
“Accounting Policies — changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors”.
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(k)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
(ii)  Exploitation licences (Continued)

The profit for the year, non-current assets and total assets
of the Group would have been increased by approximately
HK$9,958,000 should there be no change in the
amortisation method for the year ended 31 March 2017.
(iii) Customer relationships
Customer relationships acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
customer relations have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method of ten years over
the expected life of the customer relationship.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill
— are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.
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(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: held-for-trading investments, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@)  Held-for-trading investments

Held-for-trading investments are financial assets
held-for-trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held-for-trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “Trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables” (Note
2(p)), “Loans receivable” (Note 2(p)) and “Cash and
cash equivalents” (Note 2(g)) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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(i)

(i)

B R AR MR

Classification (Continued)
(c)  Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories.
They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Held-for-trading investments are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial investments and financial assets held-for-trading
investments are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the held-for-trading investments are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “Other losses,
net” in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
from held-for-trading investments is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @t & Z £ B HBR A 7
Annual Report 2016-17 —Z—ARE—+FFEHRE

(i)

@ii)

7 (@)
(¢ AHRHEHRE

AHEESRIEENEEAR
UEEE Rk T B R E A A28
BlZIEPTET R -RIERE
FEiERE A B mE R
RKEFTZEARBEED
B BRIEEEY AIERS

R R i 2
RENSREEEEERSA (A
AEBEAGFBESILEZEEL

HH]) RER - W N T EFEBE
Bk EERMEEZRET

FURFENRZ ZKATHER - FF
1’Ef‘§’if£ﬁx§%ﬂ*ﬂ/{ FEER:

RGRARGFARERIIX
”%&é%@ﬁ%ﬁ%Z%ﬂ
ERXEEBRAEECKAE
BZBREORARKCO®REY
AISEBUERRSMEE - AIHHE
TREERFIFEEREZER
BERBURFEIIER EXRE
WRTEE R IR A BN EOE - LA
SR ARG B

FIEEBEREZATEEHEL
ZEREBREEPERGAKESX
[EALER - FE ] 27 KRR
BEZ B BWAR RS BRI
HURRIR 2 HE ) I TR 4 6 U o 2% T
BREMBAZ B -



(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
income statement as “Other losses, net”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-
to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument'’s fair value using
an observable market price.
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(i)

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement. Any
subsequent events or evidence proved that the impaired
amount cannot be recoverable, it was written off and
derecognised from the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

(n)

(o)

(p)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. Assets and liabilities are classified as
current if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise,
they are classified as non-current.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
derivatives are presented in the consolidated income statement
within “Other losses, net” in the period in which they arise.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade receivables, deposits, other receivables and
loans receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in
the ordinary course of business. If collection/realisation of trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables and loans receivable is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables, deposits, other receivables and loans receivable
are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.
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(q)

(r)

(®

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand from an integral part of the
Group’s cash management and often fluctuate from being
positive to overdraft. In the consolidated statement of financial
position, bank overdrafts are shown within bank borrowings in
current liabilities.

Client trust bank balance

The Group has classified in the consolidated statement of
financial position the clients’ deposits as client trust bank
balances in the current assets and recognised a corresponding
trade payables to the respective clients under the current
liabilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables, accruals and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are

presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables, accruals and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

(a)

(r)

(s)

(t)

B IR MiEE
FESFTBRERBE (@)

n‘/T\

RERREEEEHE

ReMBESESEBEEREFEERES F
TRMNEFEF RIBAA=ZM@AINAR
ZEHMEHSREBERE  UAREBRE
KEBIZRTES (AAEEBRSEE
ZHEKBHARLENTEAMRES S
ZHERE)) - HERA MMM TR - ]R1T
BYIARDEEANZRITER

EFERRITE

RAEBERZEVBRARABELTF

ROBERRBDEEZRPERRITER
ETRARBDHEERTHEREBEF 2R

%ﬁ%ﬁ%1ﬂ‘mlﬁ°

LN

BRI Rl

HERBR BT AL AT R

I BFAERE D (FERBIE) -

BZEMAR
(NS

H - BETRER H AR

BORNFERERFEEERTEY
B2 L EE B P SR B AR 1 PR AT R
ZEE-E—FHIUA(KREBAE
KERHPERERE)IANE S EN
REZIRRBHEE-FA 2585
JENFIEZ7AERBEE-

B 5 RN FRIA - T E K E MR
B EAFERR  HERAERA
EIRRB AT E

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t R E &M AR A A

Annual Report 2016-17 —E— A& —+FFEHRE

121



122

e TR HRAR MR

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense and included
in finance costs in consolidated income statement in the year in
which they are incurred.
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The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred

tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax

is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

(i)

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the countries where
the Group and an associate operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
statement of financial position date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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e SRR MR

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally, the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed profit
is not recognised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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The Group maintains a number of defined contribution plans in
the countries in which it operates, the assets of the retirement
benefit are generally held in separate trustees-administered
funds. The retirement plans are generally funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.

(i)  Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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e TR HRAR MR

2

(y)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees or suppliers as consideration for
equity instruments (options or warrants) of the Group. The
fair value of the employee or suppliers services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options or warrants
granted:

J including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options or
warrants that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
Annual Report 2016-17 ZZ—AE—LFFEHE

2 FESHBEME (@)

(y)

URGOB AR ZR S

(i)

UREFEHURGIHZXE

AEBERESHEAREEEDN LA
B Rz ER S Bt B
AREE 2w T A (BRIELR
B ) (E R ERUSE B &
2 IR 7% o RIREUR R B SR
BRI R L EREZ A TFE
HRAXL - BIMEH 2SR
T2EMRBRERRRERZ
NFEEE

o BREREAMBERBAMR (W
ERZBRNER)

o TEBEEARBRIETSEER
AR (AN 8
HERRBEERZEREER
EREERHEE)ZZE:
P53

o BREEMERBGMS (1R
BBEEzER) z2FE-

TBREEHREER 2 BRELR
RIEFEEE R IEMBMHE 2 KRR
RRISIEGIMA—HE R - FxX
REREBEERAER  ZHER
FRE YR B IR G EERZ
M e



(i)

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees or suppliers
may provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the
purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options or warrants that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing performance
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

When the options or warrants are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the
Company'’s financial statements.
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(i)
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions, including those arising from the contractual obligation
specified in the service concession arrangement to maintain
or restore the infrastructure before it is handed over to the
granter, are measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect
is material).

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from sale of crude oil, commodities and chemical
products is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has
passed.
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(aa)

(ab)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from rental income from investment properties is
recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Revenue from money lending and interest
income is recognised using the effective interest method. When
a loan or receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.
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The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to economically hedge certain risk exposures. The
financial instruments by categories held by the Group as at 31
March 2017 and 2016 are set out as follows:

AEENXBEHEAT SRR (B
SMEERER - A ENERRE RERM
TR RERERR) EERBEREE
TRBRELEMERR AEENER
[Rbe B IR B P R IR & R T 5 69 TP
PRE AR NREHAEERERER
MEBEENNZE AEBERBITESR
TAELE EHNAERSE T RR -
REBR-_Z—tFR-_FT—RF=A
=+ BB 2R T AREAR
m

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BET T P IT
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables B ERGRIE
(including cash and (BERE MRITER)
bank balances) 878,177 579,697
Amounts due from FE U & FKIE
related parties 26,610 =
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 256 147
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 29,241 24,533
Derivative financial assets THETREE - 510
934,284 604,887
Financial liabilities SR BE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A 508 198,438 324,575
Bank borrowings RITEE 32,818 —
Bonds &% 439,227 366,830
670,483 691,405
1 30 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @t & Z £ B HBR A 7
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Management monitors and manages the financial risk relating EREESASWREBREE MEENAI
to the Group through internal risk assessment which analyses ERRTHERREREEEASEN SR
exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. The policies on how [BLB& o a0 {a] S 52 5 R B ) B R # 51 A
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages T - BEREEERERZERR BR
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures AERRBER AR EERBERE-

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

()  Market risk (i) HHEERE

Foreign currency risk management S e R

The Group conducts its treasury functions and maintains REEINEETHER TER
certain cash and bank balances, bank borrowings and REETRS RIRITHES  RITE
bonds in foreign currencies, hence is exposed to foreign ERES Bt EHINERER - A
currency risk. The Group manages its foreign currency FEFEBTY)ERINEE R EF
risk by closely monitoring the movements of the foreign AT EINERER - NEE B AT
currency exchange rates. The Group currently does W EINEEOR R - AT BRI
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, ERINERERE - RENERERE
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and R E KN R B o

will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency REBUINEDIENEEEER
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at BE¥AERREAHNEREER
the reporting date are as follows: TS &
Assets Liabilities
EE =X
2017 2016 2017 2016
“B—t§ "T-RE ZB-t§f _"E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BT

HK$ or 328,909 199,826 517,053 402,834
us$ E 281,923 89,280 50,193 49,820
Renminbi (“RMB") AR®E(TARK]) 325,071 325,777 61,324 238,751
Others Hith 13 4 = =
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited %@ & & 5@ AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s loss in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% (2016: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive/(negative) number below
indicates a decrease/(increase) in post-tax profit/(loss)
where RMB, HK$ and other currencies strengthen against
the relevant functional currency of the Group entities, that
is US$. For a 5% (2016: 5%) weakening of RMB, HK$ and
other currencies against the relevant functional currency of
the Group entities, that is US$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax profit/(loss).

3 BIFERERE (E)

(a) MEERMREZX (@)

(i)

TSR ()
I RS

TRETAEASEETSEENR
BHERNREARNEEE
SEMNAKEER HOBO

28

HRESTEBIEREENINE
FHEERER Y RFRIREE
B5% (ZF—RNF:5% )M
HEEMME - THIE/ (B
FRWARE - BEREMER
SEBASERERNEEE X
TTEX EF RIBBLERN, (&
B)ERd (GEM) - HAR
B ABREMEELAEASE
BRI EEETEXTRES%

TTRF 15%)  BIBTRE
A/ (BER) S HREBEERRE

T
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
HK$ ko (9,407) (10,150)
RMB AR 13,187 3,851
Others Hi 1 =
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(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bonds (Note 32) and loans receivable
(Note 23). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank balances, variable-rate bank
borrowings and derivative financial liabilities.

The Group’s cash flow interest risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") arising from the Group’s HK$ denominated
borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank and
other borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming
the bank and the borrowings outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis point (2016: 50 basis points) increase
or decrease for variable-rate bank borrowings is used
for interest rate sensitivity analysis and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

(1)  Cash flow interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2017, borrowings carries at floating
interest rate at HIBOR plus certain basis points per
annum. As the HIBOR remained stable during the
year, there is no material cashflow interest rate risk
arising from borrowings.

e PR RR M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

3

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

(1)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)

There is no material cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s bonds and loans receivable were issued
at fixed rates and expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. As at 31 March 2017, the Group
has bonds of approximately HK$439,227,000
(2016: HK$366,830,000) and loans receivable
of approximately HK$117,125,000 (2016:
HK$19,913,000) carried at fixed rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2016: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit/
(loss) derived from fixed-rate bonds for the year
ended 31 March 2017 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$4,688,000 (2016: HK$2,485,000)
as a result of decrease/increase in fair value of fixed
rate bonds. The effect of changes in interest rate
on amortised amounts of loans receivable is not
significant.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @t & Z £ B HBR A 7
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(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities and unquoted equity
securities. Decisions to buy or sell listed equity securities
are based on daily monitoring of the performance of
individual securities compared to index of relevant stock
markets and other industry indicators.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

There is no material price risk arising from the changes in
fair value of held-for-trading investments.

If the prices of the listed equity securities had been
10 (2016: 10%) higher/lower, the Group’s investment
valuation reserve would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2,846,000 (2016: HK$2,453,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

No sensitivity analysis is presented for the Group's
investments in unquoted equity securities which are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period.
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(ii)

B R AR MR

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks or financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies or state-owned banks in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC").

Loans receivable were made to borrowers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group has policies that limit
the amount of credit exposure to any borrower. Provision
for unrecoverable loans receivable of HK$4,809,000 (2016:
Nil) was made for the year ended 31 March 2017 after
considering the collectability of past due loans receivable.
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(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 90% (2016:
49%) and 99% (2016: 92%) of the total trade receivables
and loans receivable was due from the Group’s largest
debtor and the five largest debtors respectively within
the commodity trading and chemical products segments,
respectively (2016: the commodity trading and chemical
products segments, respectively).

The Group has assessed the credit worthiness of these
customers and all of these customers have good historical
repayment records and of low default rate. In this regard,
the directors considered that the credit risk is low.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk management

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and bank balances deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
and other borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants and timely negotiates with the lenders if any
non-compliance is expected.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2017, the Group has available
unutilised letters of credit, overdraft and short-term bank
loan facilities of HK$106,000,000 (2016: HK$95,000,000).

(i)

(i)
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(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are at floating rates,
the undiscounted amount is derived from the weighted
average interest rates by reference to the HIBOR of
the Group’s variable-rate borrowings at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments, except
for the issued warrants classified as derivative financial
instruments, since the settlement of which would be
satisfied by the issue of new ordinary shares and does not
involve any cash outflows. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual net cash outflows
on derivative instruments (except for the issued warrants
classified as derivative financial instruments) that settle on
a net basis. When the amount payable is not fixed, the
amount disclosed has been determined by reference to
the projected interest rates as illustrated by the weighted
average interest rate by reference to HIBOR of the Group’s
variable-rate borrowings and the terms stipulated in the
contract of derivative financial instruments existing at
the end of the reporting period. The liquidity analysis
for the Group's derivative financial instruments (except
for the issued warrants classified as derivative financial
instruments) are prepared based on the contractual
maturities as the management consider that the
contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of
the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIERER (@&
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MBEMREE (5
(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) REEZEE &)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) HEE2 R ERE R (&)

Weighted Total
average Within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows amount

nEFH KRRE
kS MER 128 255 SELLE REAR REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AAlt BETT EETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

As at 31 March 2017 R-B-tf

ZA=t-H
Trade payables BHRMFHE (135,197) - - - (135,197) (135,197)
Other payables Hip R TFE (63,242) - - - (63,242) (63,242)
Bonds (Note (b)) &% (FEb) 5.09 to
21341 (17,924) (35,128) (64,440) (561,800) (679,292) (439,227)
Bank borrowings RITEE 227to
£12.59 (4,078) (3,944) (11,750) (16,643) (36,415) (32,818)
(220,441) (39,072) (76,190) (578,443) (914,146) (670,484)
Derivative - net fTETIRA-5%8
settlement (Note (c)) 8 (M)
Foreign currency HNEEREN
forward contracts = = = = = =
As at 31 March 2016 RZB-RFE
ZA=t-A
Trade payables BHRMFHE (274,924) - - > (274,924) (274,924)
Other payables R (49,651) - - - (49,651) (49,651)
Bonds (Note (b)) &% (FHEb) 5.09to
2134 (15,446) (25,446) (154,596) (419,566) (615,054) (366,830)
(340,021) (25,446) (154,596) (419,566) (939,629) (691,405)
Derivative - net TEIA-38
settlement (Note () &8 (Mito)
Foreign currency NEEBED
forward contracts 3.00 525 - - - 525 510
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t R E &M AR A A
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3

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

For the Group’s variable-rate interest bearing borrowings, the
weighted average effective interest rate of the Group's variable-rate
interest bearing borrowings at the end of each reporting period is
used for undiscounted cash flow analysis. As at 31 March 2017, the
Group has not given any guarantees (2016: same). For assets pledged
to secure the bank borrowings, refer to Note 28(c).

For the Group's fixed-rate interest bearing bonds, respective effective
interest rate of each of the Group's fixed-rate interest bearing bonds
at the end of each reporting period is used for undiscounted cash
flow analysis.

The undiscounted cash flow of derivative financial instruments was
determined assuming all variables used in the fair value calculation at
the end of each reporting period remained the same until maturity.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are

subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ
to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end
of the reporting period.

(b) Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the

Group will be able to continue as a going concern while

maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank borrowings (Note 28), bonds (Note 32), net of
cash and bank balances, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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(b)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RR M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIERER (@&
(Continued)

Capital management (Continued) (b) BEXEE (@)

The directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. BEZUTERAAARTEARE ERZ
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital BRI —R EFE2EeMARE
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on FERABEB AR - REEENE
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its FOAEBBERARMKRE FRMDE
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new T -BOBREIARETHESSEDRR
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt BES FTEHAERBEREH

or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio AEBEZEEBEBL X (URITEE
which is calculated by bank borrowings and bonds divided by the REFRUBEENE) CEEEER
total assets. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2017 KeRAGEER_Z—+F=A=+—H
was 32.94% (2016: 34.11%). ZEEABILER3294% (ZT—RX
F:3411%) °

Fair value of financial instruments (0 €EMIANAFE

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair TRIZHEEED TR A FENEZ S5
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been TR-FARAFZHZEZNT:

defined as follows:

0 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical . HREENBEEERTIS W
assets or liabilities (level 1). B OREHE) (F—R) -

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 . BRE—RMBIECREIN BEK
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly BEZIUERGASE JRERE
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (BME# ) sk (ANRBER) 2
(level 2). BB (E=4) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . BEXBBEIIIFREIEHERMS
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level R 28 ABR (BNIERT R @ A
3). Hig) (B=H) -

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t R E &M AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

3 BIERER (#)

() €MIAENDFE @

The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities TEREINR-ZZE—LFRZT—RF=
that are measured at their fair values at 31 March 2017 and A=+—HBUREAFEHEZAERZ
2016. BERBE
2017 2016
E-tF ZE1F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 1] EEE At R o = Eo
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BETT B¥Tr  B¥Tz  BMTIx  EETr  A%Tr BT A%Tx
Assets gE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RATEEBERIEZ
profit or loss SHEE
Held-for-trading investments: BIEBERE:
~ Listed equity securities - FTRAES 256 - 256 147 5 = 147
Trading derivatives: XHMFTETA:
~ Foreign currency forward contracts ~ —JMEREIAH - - - - 510 - 510
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
- Listed equity securities - EiRAES 23,112 - 23,112 24,533 £ = 24,533
~ Unlisted equity investment —FEMRARE - 6,129 6,129 = S = =
Total @t 23368 6,129 29,497 24,680 510 = 25,190
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in both years. RREFEAN F—R - F_RKRE=
W BN e
(i)  Financial instruments in level 1 () EFE-—RFIWLEITA

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1
comprise equity securities listed in Hong Kong Stock
Exchange classified as held-for-trading investments or
available-for-sale investments.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @t & Z £ B HBR A 7
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3

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
(ii)  Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value of an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If
one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3.

The valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements within level 2 are as follows:

Valuation Significant
techniques inputs
Foreign currency Discount cash flow, ~ Observable exchange
forward contracts Black-Scholes rate, currency
option pricing volatility and yield
model and Monte curve

Carlo simulation

Unlisted equity Discount cash flow, ~ Weighted average
investment Capital asset cost of capital,
pricing model discount rate

(iii)  Financial instruments in level 3

No financial instruments were designated within level 3 as
at the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually revaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

(c)

e B mRME

R EE (&)

ST ENAFE @
(i) Z=-RFW2@TA

WHRERTHEENERTA
MR FEDRABEERTERE -
ZEMERMAER T BREMSE
BERTRAREWNAZEFHR
B YWERARERKEERSEG
e —BIAQFEMRFTHE
R2HAERE  ZTAAZIA
F_H oM EHZREASEY
FEURBRMIGHBIBERKE % T
BAGIAE =

% MBI A FEE R AR5
B R A BRI T ¢

HERHE EXBARE

NEER FRARR  TEREX

a8 SHMEEE EYRIR
BARRE  hE#HK
TRERE

FLARA FRRER  METHEAR
k& A1RE A A%
EEEN

(i) E=RFWELHTA
BE_ZT—TtFR-_F-RF=
ﬂ:+—E¢¢E'Mﬁ$@IE
DEEE=HA -

SRR R H
AEEEREELCREABMEE (B

EREABATHAREE ZHRKE
2 1B H) A E A bt R HI T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

4

(a)

(b)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

future. The resulting accounting estimates will,

Impairment of oil exploitation rights included in
intangible assets and oil properties included in
property, plant and equipment

The carrying amounts of the oil exploitation rights and oil
properties are assessed for impairment when facts and
circumstances suggest that the carrying amounts of them may
exceed their recoverable amounts. The Group's determination
as to whether they are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the assets. The Group relied on experts to
assess the geological prospects for the discovery of oil in the oil
field and estimated the value of oil to be produced in the future
at a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
For drilling costs and other exploration and evaluation assets, the
Group determined whether the related well costs are expensed if
it is determined that such economic viability is not attained after
performing further feasibility studies that is usually completed
within one year of completion of drilling.

Judgement is required by the directors to determine key
assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and changes
to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow
projections and therefore the results of the impairment reviews.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
other than oil properties

Property, plant and equipment other than oil properties are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less
costs of disposal calculations. The calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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(b)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
other than oil properties (Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate.

Changing the assumptions selected by the directors in assessing
impairment could affect the recoverable amount determined by
the directors and as a result affect the result of the impairment
reviews. Further details are set out in Note 15(a).

Impairment of trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits, other receivables and loans receivable

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables, prepayments, deposits, other
receivables and loans receivable based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. The assessment is based on
the credit history of its customers and other debtors and the
current market condition, and requires the use of judgments and
estimates.

Provisions are applied where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be recoverable. Management
reassesses the provision at each statement of financial position
date. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of
receivables and provision for impairment losses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

4
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B R AR MR

The Group’s employees have participated in various share-
based incentive schemes of the Company. The Company
has also granted warrants to suppliers for the provision of
services. Management of the Group have used the Binomial
Model to determine the total value of the options or warrants
granted, which is based on fair value and various attributes of
the underlying shares of the Company. Significant estimates
and assumptions are required to be made in determining the
parameters for applying the Binomial Model, including estimates
and assumptions regarding the risk-free rate of return, expected
dividend vyield and volatility of the underlying shares and the
expected life of the share options or warrants. In addition,
the Group is required to estimate the expected percentage of
grantees that will remain in employment or terms with the Group
or, where applicable, if the performance conditions for vesting
will be met at the end of the vesting period. The Group only
recognises an expense for those options or warrants expected to
vest over the vesting period during which the grantees become
unconditionally entitled to theses share-based awards. Changes
in these estimates and assumptions could have a material effect
on the determination of the fair value of the options or warrants
and the amount of such share-based awards expected to become
vested, which may in turn significantly impact the determination
of the share-based payments.

The Executive Directors of the Company have been regarded
as the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"). The Group's
operating segments, based on information reported to the
CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment, are as follows:

o Trading of commodities and chemical products
("Commodity trading”);

° Exploitation and sale of crude oil (“Crude oil”);
o Leasing of investment properties (“Property investment”);
o Money lending, securities brokerage and asset

management business (“Financial services”); and

. Others.
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The Group also carries out business as insurance brokerage
and service contract. The CODM, after reviewing for qualitative
factors such as the business activities, economic and legal
characteristics of the business and quantitative factors such
as the financial performance of the business, has accordingly
determined that the insurance brokerage and service contract
businesses did not qualify as reportable operating segments, and
their financial information is included in “Others”.

Certain operating segments with similar nature were re-grouped
together and comparative figures have been re-classified to
conform with presentation segment information adopted for the
current year.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies. Segment results represent the
loss made or profit earned by each segment without allocation
of incomes or expenses which are not recurring in nature and
unrelated to the Group’s operating performance, including
bank interest income, central administration costs, directors’
emoluments, share of loss of an associate, changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments and derivative financial
instruments, share-based payments in respect of consultation
fees and finance costs.

The CODM also reviews the earnings/loss before net finance
income and costs, income tax expense/credit, depreciation
and amortisation, impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and intangible assets,
unallocated other income less expenses and non-controlling
interests (“EBITDA” or “LBITDA") of the Group. Accordingly,
EBITDA or LBITDA is also presented.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources among segments, all assets are allocated
to operating segments other than interests in an associate,
derivative financial assets, other financial assets, cash and bank
balances and other corporate assets.

The CODM reviews the segment assets for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, an analysis of
the Group's liabilities is not regularly reviewed by the CODM and
hence, the relevant information is not presented accordingly.

e AR MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W&Kk2EER (@)
(Continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results () 7HEWEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by REERAZBROEE D 2w RER
reportable segments. DT o
For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-E-tFZAZ+-ALFE
Commodity Property Financial
trading Crude oil  investment services Others Total
BmES | NERE SRRB Hito it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT RETT BETT

Segment revenue SRk E 13,802,960 - 2,235 26,248 929 13,832,372
Segment EBITDA/(LBITDA) 2 SEEBITDA/(LBITDA) 100,296 (3,545) 814 14,231 (308) 111,488
Segment depreciation and amortisation PRNEREH (1,479) (14,059) (2.231) (2084) (4,155) (22,128)
Segment results FEEH 98,817 (17,60) (1.417) 14,027 (4,463) 89,360
Unallocated income RAEHRA 65,688
Finance income BMERA 106
Finance costs HERA (38,367)
Profit before income tax BT B An & R 116,787
1 48 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

(Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

e SRR MR

W= koEER (&)

(a) TEWBERESE (®)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z-R"FZR=T-HLEFE

Commodity Property Financial

trading Crude oil investment services Others Total

BRES Rk NERE SRBRE Hith At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BB BT BB BETT BT

Segment revenue AEKE 5,919,178 = 643 10,834 1,580 5,932,235

Segment EBITDA/(LBITDA) 2 SEEBITDA/(BITDA) 80,751 (9,379) 304 4,297 (16,305) 59,668

Segment depreciation and amortisation PEREREH (1,653) (495) (1,000) (1) (7,735) (10,924)
Impairment losses on property, plant, nE- BERRE

equipment, investment properties and REMEAR

intangible assets BVEERERE - (145,086) (11,525) = = (156,611)

Segment results PEEE 79,098 (154,960) (12,221) 4,256 (24,040) (107,867)

Unallocated expenses FAERX (70,106)

Finance income BEKA 1,354

Finance costs BERK (32,779)

Share of loss of an associate EiE—MBENREE (21,409)

Loss before income tax BRESHAEE (230,807)

Revenue from one (2016: one) customer in relation
to commodity trading amounted to approximately
HK$13,449,818,000 (2016: HK$5,329,119,000), which
individually represents more than 10% of the Group's total

revenue.

RAREIME KE—HB(ZF
—RNF—RI)BPZHEHNBE
13,449,818,0007T (=& — /N F : B
5,329,119,0007T) * & Bh A S B W=
EEE10% A ko
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WK EER (&)
(Continued)

(b) Segment assets (b) 2 EEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by reportable REERASBREENHED 2EED
operating segment: franT:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Segment assets DEEE
Commodity trading FmE 5 611,951 448,105
Crude oil IR 163,263 183,873
Property investment YR E 117,894 118,236
Financial services SRR 126,328 21,072
Others H 19,635 21,274
Total segment assets NEEAERE 1,039,071 792,560
Unallocated KB 393,348 282,719
Total assets BEE 1,432,419 1,075,279
(c) Other segment information () BEtoEER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-2-tFZA=T-BLEE

Commodity Property Financial
trading Crude oil investment services Others Unallocated Total
BRES :¥:] NERE SREH Aft AR At
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AMTR AETT AMTT RETT AMTR BRI AMTR

Amount included in the measure of AN RERANRAE

segment results or segment assets: HEEE:
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE 205 3,076 - 5,839 2,021 13,115 24,256
Impairment losses of prepayments, BRR REREMD

deposits and other receivables ERFERBEE (3,945) - (319) - - - (4,264)
Impairment losses of loans receivable ERETHESR - = = (4,809) = o (4,809)
Gains on disposals of property, LENE BER

plant and equipment B paie 40 - - - - - 40
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary —HRBRRZHEE RN E 2222 - - - - - 222

1 50 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t &= EEBR QD E)

Annual Report 2016-17 —Z—AE—+FFEFRE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WEESBEER (&)

(Continued)
HihpEER (@)

(c) Other segment information (Continued) (c)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-F-RE=A=t+-HLEE

Commodity Property Financial
trading Crude oll investment services Others Unallocated Total
ARES R BES 4 SRERH £ *HE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RETT RETTL BETT RETTL BT RETTL ARTL

SANBREANBAE

Amount included in the measure of

segment results or segment assets: HEEE:
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE - 4,338 97,010 992 - 1,188 103,528
Waiver of trade payables HeBSEMNFE 3411 = = = = = 3411
Inventories written off HHFE - 331 - - - - (3,377)
Impairment losses of trade receivables BHRRFERERR (9,138) - - - - - (9,138)

Impairment losses of prepayments,

BRHE Ee RAMBELRE

deposits and other receivables REER (5,934) (854) - - - - (6,788)
Impairment losses of property, hE BERRXERESR

plant and equipment - (50,205) - - - - (50,205)
Impairment losses of intangible assets EVEERERE - (94,881) - - - - (94,881)
Impairment loss of investment properties RENEREEE - - (11,525) - - - (11,525)
Loss on deemed disposal of a subsidiary -HHEARZRALEER - - - - (9,789) - (9,789)
Gains on disposals of property, HENE BERRE KE

plant and equipment - - - - - 89 89

(d) Geographical information (d) HEZESR
REBZEBUNFEREFE - REP
ZETEREMREADHKBINREF Z
REBWZ RIFEEMEMEE D H3E
MEEEERIN TR !

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and Hong Kong.
The Group’s revenue from external customers is based on the
location of their key operations and information about its non-
current assets is based on geographical location of the assets
that are shown below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

RENREF i FRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZB—t& CT-RXF ZEBE-tF C"IZT—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT T BT
PRC H 13,700,631 5,586,320 181,542 205,709
Hong Kong &5 124,261 158,818 181,582 166,292
Malaysia SRADR - 185,517 - =
Others Hity 7,480 1,580 17,120 20,208
13,832,372 5,927,285 380,244 393,219

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
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2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT T
Exchange losses, net P 3 &8 - JF 5B (2,716) (11,334)
Impairment losses of ME - BE R REREEE
property, plant and
equipment 15(a) - (50,205)
Impairment loss of B EEREERE
intangible assets 17 - (94,881)
Impairment loss of REMERBEBE
investment properties 16(c) - (11,525)
Impairment losses of BAHIE ZE Rk
prepayments, deposits H h fE WK IR R B B 18
and other receivables 19(c) (4,264) (6,788)
Impairment losses of B 5 EWHIERERE
trade receivables 22(f) - (9,138)
Impairment losses of FEWE R EEE
loans receivable 23(a) (4,809) -
Gains on disposals of LHEWE BERZEZ
property, plant and Uz
equipment 40 89
Losses from changes NESMTARNFEES
in fair value of derivative 2 B8
financial instruments 24 - (5,786)
Gains from changes FIEEERENTEES
in fair value of held-for- Z W as
trading investments 109 15
Waiver of trade payables HeB 5 ENHIE - 3,411
Inventories written off MEFE - (3,377)
Gain on deregistration/ —fEME AR 2 BIEER
(loss on deemed disposal) Wz (RALEEE)
of a subsidiary 33 2,222 (9,789)
Fund investment income ERERA 3,793 —
Others HAb 3 159
(5,622) (199,149)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @t & Z £ B HBR A 7
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2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Wages, salaries and other benefits I8 #FHekHAMET
(including directors’ emoluments) (BEEEWE) (M:ES)
(Note 8) 49,056 31,496
Auditor's remuneration % SR B &
— Audit services —ZE R 3,100 3,000
— Non-audit services —IEZERE 1,020 2,819
Cost of inventories recognised BRARIHFERAR
in expenses 13,518,848 5,803,740
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1% - BE LR HITE
equipment (Note 15) (PfF5E15) 9,356 9,314
Depreciation of investment BEMERE (5E16)
properties (Note 16) 2,231 998
Amortisation of intangible mEEEHS (HE17)
assets (Note 17) 11,409 1,479
Operating lease expenses KEMEMS 11,511 9,325
Legal and professional fees FRMEXER 9,052 12,308
Share-based payments in respect of EHEREME 2
consultation fees LARR 2 2+ 2 SR8 - 3,943
Commission expenses HeER 34,439 13,856
Others HAth 21,680 18,781
Total cost of sales, selling and HEKAR HERDHEAAR
distribution costs and T B
administrative expenses 13,671,702 5,911,059
2017 2016
—E2—+tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Salaries, wages and other benefits FHe ITEREMBEF 36,384 23,046
Contributions to defined contribution & %8 i FUR R 5T 21 H f 3%
retirement plan 486 395
Share-based payments (Note 30(a) VAR X~ 2 FRIE
and (b)) (H$3E30(a) (b)) 12,186 8,055
49,056 31,496

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited %@ & & 5@ AR A A
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9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9 EEREFERER

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () ESRFETHAEME
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set BEERFETHABZHMEI W
out below: T
For the year ended 31 March 2017: BE-_ZT—tH=A=+—HILEE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director's
other services
in connection
with the
Employer's management
contribution to of affairs of
Allowances a retirement the company
Discretionary and benefits benefit  or its subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme undertaking Total
READTE
AMEARZ
EBSHEE
EImEK | £:9
BREEE  HtBRBEAE
e e BERL RERENEA 2R BhzEtHE @it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETR ik S A¥TR BETR ik S A¥TR BETR
(Note (b)) (Note (¢))
(Kizk) (Hi3He))
Executive Directors: B
Mr. Poon Sum BREE - 4,824 804 2,950 18 - 8,596
Mr. Li Zhenjun FRERE - 1,200 100 295 18 - 1613
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung ERRRE
(Chief Executive Officer) (frB44) - 582 97 2,950 138 - 3,647
Mr. Poon Wai Kong BEALE - 1,196 19 1475 18 - 2,885
Mr. Hu Dehua (Note (c) HEELE (M) - 390 2% - 1 - 41
- 8,192 1223 7,670 83 - 17,168
Non-Executive Director: wwiEs: T T TTT TTTmTm T mmTmn mmm e e
M. Zaid Latif (Note (d) Zad Latif = (M) 100 - - 59 - - 159
Independent Non-executive Directors: Y =< S
Mr. Chan Shu Kin B2 EE 264 - 2 207 - - 493
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung RERAL 264 - 2 27 - - 493
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu EEREE 20 - 2 207 - - 467
768 - 64 621 - - 1,453
Total @it 868 8,192 1,287 8,350 83 - 18,780
1 54 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t &= EEBR QD E)
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BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9 EZBEFINERS (&)
(Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () ESRFETHAEME (80
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016: BEZZTAF=-A=t-HLEFE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director's
other services
in connection
with the
Employer's management
contribution to of affairs of
Allowances a retirement the company
Discretionary and benefits benefit  or its subsidiary
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme undertaking Total
SERRRG
EMBARZ
ERERAH
ETMRHK B3,
BREEEL  ERREEAS
we e WEZL  BERENER 2ER BhzERME @3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETTL BETL BETTL AETT BETL BETT AT
(Note (b)) (Note (¢))
(Kizk) (M)
Executive Directors: H1ES:
Mr. Poon Sum BRTE - 5,628 - - 18 - 5,646
Mr. Li Zhenjun FRERE - 29 - - - S 290
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung EERLE
(Chief Executive Officer) (1784%) - 679 - - 18 = 697
Mr. Poon Wai Kong BEALE = 1372 = = 18 = 1390
- 7,969 - - 54 - 8,023
Non-Executive Director: FirTES:
Mr. Zaid Latif (Note (d) Zad Latife 4 (M) 280 - - - - - 280
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHIES:
Mr. Chan Shu Kin REBEE 308 - - - - - 308
Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul (Note (g)) RBELE (Wie) 118 - - - - = 18
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung RERAL 308 - - - - - 308
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu EERAE 74 - - - - - 74
808 - - - - - 808

Total &3t 1,088 7,969 g = 54 o 9.1M
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9 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9 EEREFREREZR (@)
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERTETHRAEME (@)
(Continued)

Notes: Bt 5
(a) Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid or receivable in (a) BN —R2FZ2He RAMRESEELRRT
respect of that person’s other services in connection with the management SEHMBAREBEE 2 EMRBE N K
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertakings. pd ik
(b) Includes estimated money value of other non-cash benefits: share options. (b) BIEEMIER SRR Z (T S EE : AR -
(a] Mr. Hu Dehua was appointed as an Executive Director on 24 May 2016. (o) EEEAER T - "FRA-TNBEEZT
RAWITES.
(d) Mr. Zaid Latif retired from office of non-executive director of the Company (d) Zaid Latif A ER=FT—XFENAZ+ARE
on 26 August 2016. RRABFERITEERS -
(e) Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul retired from office by rotation in the annual (e) BRIBIEALERARARR_ZE—RFHLA+—H
general meeting of the Company held on 11 September 2015 and did not BUTZBRRBEAE FRERERAHMER
offer himself for re-selection due to other business commitments. ARYE R
(b) Directors’ retirement benefits (b) ESRAKER
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement FR - EEEREISE R EAERK
benefits during the year (2016 Nil). BR(ZZ—REHE)-
(c) Directors’ termination benefits () ESRLERFEER
None of the directors received or will receive any termination FR- MEE$EH&HXEEH%HKHXT£1EJ%
benefits during the year (2016: Nil). IHEBEMN (ZT—RF: &) -
(d) Consideration provided to third parties for (d MRERESHREMEAE=FX
making available directors’ services AR E
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company did not pay HEZZ—tF=A=+—RHIEFE"
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’ PiIN/N ﬂﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%
services (2016: Nil). EAXFARE(ZE—REFE E|E) -
1 56 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t &= EEBR QD E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

Save as disclosed in Note 36(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, during the year ended 31 March 2017, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such
directors during the year (2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2016: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2016: two) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in Note 9. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2016: three) individuals were as follows:

9

(e)

0]

10

e SRR MR

EERANRER (&)

FHUES EE2ZEHEER
REERAZBAZER EEX
EHMXZ 2EH

Brir & B R M FE36(b)PT IR EE & 5N
RBE_Z—tF=A=+—BIF
B-REN BENES BEF2XEH
ZELEEERARBAZER £E
RREMRS (ZF—RF &) -

ESRRG RHFHEWZERE

RERLFRETAERE ARRESH
BRARARI L2 EBARBEBRERZ
BEEZRG RERANTHEBEETMAERXN
BERREEES (T RF )

FHESHNABAL

AEEFMESNABALTES AP
ME(ZZ—RF:MB)R/RARAE
FRENHESENMFEI - Hf—F
(ZF—RF: ZR) ALOMEDnT:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMMe 592 1,100
Contributions to defined TE R FURIRET B AR K

contribution retirement plan 18 9

Share-based payments LARR D 2 A4 2 3R I8 520 2,679

1,130 3,788
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e SRR YA

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

11

(Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

10 HFAERSHWERZAL (&)

BENB SN FIATEHE -

Number of individuals

AH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 71,000,001 7T E
7 #1,500,0007C 1 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the above directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2016: Nil).

FINANCE COSTS, NET

RAFE ARELEAEFNLAESR
FREREFALINEDHE ER
MARE B A IMARE B R EEE K
ERHBEE (ZT—RF &) -

11 BEKA FEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —TE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ke i
Interest expenses on: NTEEZMEMAE:
- bonds —f&5 (37.796) (32,183)
— bank borrowings —R1TEE (571) (596)
Finance costs B & KA (38,367) (32,779)
Interest income on: ATEEBEZFBWA :
— bank deposits —iRITFER 106 1,354
Finance costs, net REERKA - FEE (38,261) (31,425)

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Hong Kong profits tax ﬁiﬁfljﬁﬁ (1,895) 211)
Deferred income tax (Note 31) BIEFTBEL (M5E31) 252 370
Income tax (expense)/credit FrE® (%), B (1,643) 159

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation for overseas
subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates of
taxation in the relevant jurisdiction of which the most significant
jurisdictions are the PRC which has a corporate income tax rate
of 25% (2016: 25%) and Macau which has a complementary
corporate tax rate of 12% (2016: 12%).

No current Macau complementary corporate tax and PRC
corporate income tax have been provided for as the Group did
not have any assessable profits in Macau nor in the PRC for the
year (2016: Nil).

There is no tax impact relating to components of other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016:
Nil).

BEAEMNBBIZF NG ERBE T
16.5% (ZZF—7R"F:16.5% )it & 8
SN A RO B R R AR RA (= 4R
BERIREGW EhHFEMHEE
RERTPE KB PEAEERER
HEA25% (ZZF—R"F:25%) B
MEEMSHARERI2% (ZF—X
F12%) o

EF$¢F$EIEWWT$IWHE
o] FERRBEHE A 18 M X R FHR BN EDR
EORTSEZ NS ﬁﬁm&¢I¢%% m%
H(ZE—R"F |-

RBE_T—tF=-A=1+—BLF

E*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@zﬁuﬂzmaﬁhzmﬁ%
YB(ZT—RF )

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited %@ & & 5@ AR A A

Annual Report 2016-17 —E—ARE—+FFERE

159



n‘/T\

B R AR MR

The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate
in the PRC applicable to the Group as follows:

BRAREBR ZBRETERHAEF, (EE)
Zﬁﬁﬁ}%$ﬁl%L%2¢lﬁ$
BEMEAZE®RMBIEZENT:

2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETE B ANEF, (&) 116,787 (230,807)
Tax calculated at domestic tax REARBBREAERR
rates applicable to losses EIENEWBETER
in the respective jurisdictions I8 29,197 (57,702)
Tax effect of share of loss of AL — R & A R E 1R A
an associate fRi‘%E/’ - 5,352
Tax effect of different tax rates of REMBNERREE
subsidiaries operating in other MEARBEERN
jurisdictions Wi e (14,242) 19,598
Tax effect of deductible temporary REER —HD TR E R
differences not recognised s (222) 16,501
Tax effect of utilisation of A LA ﬁEu R IE B 1R Y
previously recognised tax losses Bz (6,660) (310)
Tax effect of tax losses RERRIBEEL
not recognised M 14,371 5,850
Tax effect of income not taxable AT A BT 75 5 2
for tax purpose (28,895) (19,024)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ &] $175 39 2 89 5 76 52 £
for tax purpose 8,094 29,576
Income tax expense/(credit) FEHEY (K5) 1,643 (159)

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year was 25%

(2016: 25%).

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @t & Z £ B HBR A 7
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13 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

14

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RR M

Basic earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the owners of
the Company is calculated by dividing profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average

13 SRER, (EFE)

ARRFEEANBIESRELRRF, (B
B)DREARBEE AREFRGEHN
/S (BE)BRAFRB BTG 2 0

number of shares in issue during the year. EHEEE -
2017
—E—+tF —T—X

Profit/(loss) attributable to NRARHEE NEERET,

the owners of the Company (BE) (B%Tr)

(HK$'000) 117,760
Weighted average number of E%TT 3B R 2 Dk T 1 B

ordinary shares in issue

(shares in thousands) 7,519,884 5,416,315
Basic earnings/(loss) per share GREARREF, (FE)

(HK cents) 1.57
The share options outstanding at 31 March 2017 (2016: share RZE—+tF=ZA=+—BERTEZ
options, warrants and share awards outstanding) have no dilutive MBI (ZF— N0 B - RARERE

effect on basic earnings/(loss) per share.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any

dividend during the year (2016: Nil).

R fctn 528)) W ME SRERBF], (&

BIEL#EYE-

14 IRE

T—RFE)-
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y€ -BEKFZE

162

Furniture,
0il Plant and Motor fixture and  Construction-

properties machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total

HE-
FhEE HEEER RE REERE ERIR /it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT

Cost: BAE:
At 1 April 2015 i g = 136,464 125,985 6,929 8,396 12,443 290,217
Additions RE = = = 2,190 4328 6,518
Disposals HE = = (587) ®) = (595)
Deemed disposal of HREHEMBAR

a subsidiary - (45,074) (426) (246) - (45,746)
Exchange realignment R A% (5,403) (12,155) (450) (206) (431) (18,645)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-~E=A=1+-H 131,061 68,756 5,466 10,126 16,340 231,749
Additions RE 3,076 = 1,483 4,892 - 9,451
Disposals HE - ) (732) (319) = (1,059)
Exchange realignment ESHE (7,891) ¥ (219) (65) (910) (9,087)
At 31 March 2017 RoF-tF=A=1-A 126,246 68,746 5,998 14,634 15,430 231,054

Accumulated depreciation ~ REHTERHEE:
and impairment:
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-HEMA—-A 33,397 81,250 6,317 7,864 1,437 130,265
Depreciation for the year FRME (F37)

(Note 7) - 7,423 983 908 - 9,314
Disposals HE = = (587) ®) = (595)
Deemed disposal of HRAEHE-HHERR

a subsidiary - (38,392) (321) (129 - (38,842)
Exchange realignment EH AR (1,131) (3,741) (961) (62) ) (5,896)
Impairment losses (Note (a)) REEE (HiEe) 50,205 = = = = 50,205
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE-~"¥=ZA=1+-H 82,471 46,540 5,431 8,573 1,436 144,451
Depreciation for the year FRHFE (Fx7)

(Note 7) 3,801 4,307 186 1,062 - 9,356
Disposals HE - 7 (591) (240) = (838)
Exchange realignment R A (4,934) = (198) (48) (1) (5,181)
At 31 March 2017 R-Z—t§=A=1+-H 81,338 50,840 4828 9,347 1,435 147,788

Carrying value: REE:
At 31 March 2017 RZF-+#=A=1+-R 44,908 17,906 1170 5,287 13,995 83,266
At 31 March 2016 RZZ-~$¥=RA=1+-H 48,590 22,216 35 1,553 14,904 87,298

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Impairment assessment

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group entered into a “technical
service and revenue sharing” agreement (“the Master Agreement”) and
a supplemental agreement to the Master Agreement (“the Supplemental
Agreement”) with an independent third party (“the Contractor”) with
effect from 1 January 2015 to 1 September 2028, pursuant to which the
Contractor is to provide on-site technical and management services to the
Group in respect of the Group’s exploration and production activities on its
oilfields in the location of Heilongjiang Province of the PRC. According to
the Master Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement, the Contractor
is also responsible for all operating costs as well as capital investment costs
in drilling new wells and other oilfield related long term investment. The
Group receives 0%, 10% and 15% of revenue from total crude oil sales
from year one, years two to three and year four onwards during the service
period respectively. The Group can, at its discretion and without recourse,
terminate the Master Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement by giving
a 6-month notice.

The recoverable amount of the crude oil segment was determined based
upon the fair value less cost of disposal calculation prepared by an
independent valuer. This calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets provided by the management and approved by the Board
of Directors covering period of 12 years ending on 1 September 2028. The
key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow model are as follows:

IJF

15 ¥)5 - BB K& (4

(a)  EEFE

RBE-F-—AF=A=+—
$’§liﬁi 2BUE=7([&

BRI R AR M R

mﬁ

HIEFEA:
#771) 5T

AIBRMRERKESRIAR (XA

HJ) TARMN—

#1) - BZFT—A¥—A—H

xR ((HEH
E-E-N\F

NA—HERER Bl 0T ERAE
ERPERETENAASHRREESD
A S E R IS I M E IR AR - IRIRE

BREMFEGE

BRATEEEMAEE

B RS IFARABESERAF REME
HERE RPRE - ARERREHRE

— F U EUR ) U A0%
A10% *

25 PO LATR KER15%

BEEZE=FI

CAREEA

BEREBERELBERTEBELANEAR

AR I E AR R AT

R 53 4R AT 01U & B8 T R VB Sk (B A AR LY
DFAER I ERAFEIAEE - A ET
ENERENEEERFAMETGMIE
REBLE—T-N\FAA-HAL1268B2
MBREEMGEZRSRERA -FRRE
MEENERANEERIMT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
Estimated average oil price per tonne (RMB) &8I B3 f {5+ 5 2 WE F 195 (2
for the forecast period (AR®) 3,006 2,489
Estimated total extraction of oil fhEtAmIRREE (TAME)
(thousand tonnes) 1,370 1,523
Discount rate TR E 16.86% 16.86%
As at 31 March 2017, no impairment loss was recognised for oil properties RZE—+tF=A=+—R HEERY

under property, plant and equipment and oil exploitation licences under
intangible assets as at 31 March 2017.

X BELRFEETHRAEERR-F

—tF=A=T-HEFE
AT AR EEE -
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

15 Y% B E KRB &)

Notes: (Continued) MizE: (@)

HE R ()

(a) Impairment assessment (Continued) (a)

As at 31 March 2016, impairment losses of approximately HK$50,205,000
and HK$94,881,000 (Note 17) were recognised for oil properties under
property, plant and equipment and oil exploitation licences under intangible

assets respectively.

The sensitivity analysis below highlights the effect of changes in the key
assumptions in the valuation with all other variables held constant. A positive
number below indicates an increase in impairment losses and a decrease in
the recoverable amounts of oil properties and oil exploitation licences as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

R-TE—ANE=ZA=1+—0 9% BE
REHEETHRHEERELEEBRTH
ERARF A BNREBED RN ARBE
50,205,000 & 7 #94,881,0007T (i &
17) ©

I THSEREASMREEEER EE/RRE
BT E (A EMEERIETE) - LUTIE
HERTRERBE-Z—+tFR-T—RF=
A=+—BL&FE HhEERABART
BB 2 R BRI K Al Bk B A o

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
If estimated average oil price decreases fitd il 5t 39 )m (8
from RMB3,006 per tonne to HE R ARES 006TTHEE
RMB2,856 per tonne BRMARE2,8567C
(2016: from RMB2,489 per tonne to (Z2—RE RBLRM
RMB2,365 per tonne) ARM2,489TT 2 &
FRHEARY2,3655T) 10,705 8,432
If estimated total extraction of oil decreases  fiif& &t /A B IR RAEE
from 1,370,000 tonnes to #£1,370,000 2 MEFE 2=
1,302,000 tonnes 1,302,000 ( = Z— R4+
(2016: from 1,523,000 tonnes to #£1,523,00072 W&
1,478,000 tonnes) f%21,478,0002 1 ) 9,700 5,059
If discount rate increases from B ER £ h16.86% F+ £17.86%
16.86% to 17.86% (ZZT—RF:H16.86% =
(2016: from 16.86% to 17.86%) 17.86% ) 15,400 8,115
(b) Environmental rehabilitation investment in the PRC (b) RABAZREBERE

Due to the underground oil exploitation method adopted by the Group,
the Group has not incurred any significant expenditure on environmental
rehabilitation since its establishment. There is, however, no assurance
that stringent environmental policies and/or standards on environmental
rehabilitation will not be implemented by the relevant authorities in the
PRC in the future which require the Group to undertake environmental
measures. The financial position of the Group may be adversely affected
by any environment liabilities, which may be imposed under such new
environmental policies and/or standards.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
Annual Report 2016-17 ZZE—AE—EFFEHE

ENAKERA T RMRRT A ARE
BEKART RBRFEEEELEMEXR
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 REYE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Cost: RAE:

At beginning of the year REA] 122,668 25,658
Additions NE - 97,010
At end of the year RER 122,668 122,668

Accumulated depreciation and Rt ERRBE:

impairment:

At beginning of the year REA] 14,319 1,796

Depreciation for the year (Note 7) FAWE (K3E7) 2,231 998

Impairment loss (Note c) REEE (M) - 11,525

At end of the year RER 16,550 14,319
Carrying value: BRIEIE :

At end of the year REXR 106,118 108,349
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(]

()

Amounts recognised in consolidated income statement for the investment
properties

16 IREWVIZE (&)

5]

(a)

Fa

RiFERERERRANEZER

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Rental income A2BA 2,235 643
Direct operating expenses from EERSWRAZHEZ
properties that generated EELERX
rental income (727) (100)
Direct operating expenses from REEHSBAZYMEZ
properties that did not generate HERLERX
rental income (166) (196)
1,342 347

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was
performed by independent valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service Ltd.,
to determine the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 March
2017 and 2016. As at 31 March 2017, the aggregate fair values of the
Group’s investment properties amounted to HK$118,800,000 (2016:
HK$111,400,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2016, in view of the downturn in the
Hong Kong property market, management has performed an impairment
assessment of the Group's investment properties. The recoverable amount of
the investment properties was based upon the fair value less cost of disposal
calculation performed by an independent valuer, using a direct comparison
approach. Based on the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss
of approximately HK$11,525,000 was charged to the consolidated income
statement.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong with
net book value of approximately HK$106,118,000 (2016: HK$23,349,000)
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 28(c)
(ii)).

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
Annual Report 2016-17 —Z—AE—+FFEFRE

()

ERAEEREMENBLGEEDHEB L
REMXAFEEAGRATET AE
EREMVER T —+ERZT—REF=
A=+—BZAFE-R=FT—tF=A
St+—R AEEREVEZAFELE
A7 %118,800,0007T (Z T — N F B
111,400,0007T ) ©

HEZZ-—R"F=ZA=+—HILFE &R
EREMETSER EREBCHAREZE
BYFEETREFNE - REMEZ TR EE
BIhH— BB AEMREXFEREEX
AERERLBORE - RIB[BEFT AT RE S
B OREFBIELE11,525000 T EREGA
W R -

RZTE—tF=ZA=+—H8 XAEE
REBHNREVMENEESELNAE
#106,118,000L (=T —RNF: B
23,349,0007T) EE#E I LERIGIR F A S
M RITEE (M EE28(c)ii)) °
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17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BEEE
Oil
exploitation Customer

Goodwill licences  relationship Others Total

(Note (a)) (Note (b))

AR

HE FAE
(@) (Bt 7E (b)) EFBRA Hit CEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BB BETT

(Note)

iE3)

Cost: BAME
At 1 April 2015 R-ZT—hEMA—A 31,162 253,895 30,647 1,733 317,437
Exchange realignment E R AR (1,250) (10,184) (620) = (12,054)
At 31 March 2016 RZZ-R"EZA=+—H 29,912 243,711 30,027 1,733 305,383
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B 2 R (ME34)

(Note 34) - - 907 6,898 7,805
Exchange realignment LA (1,825) (14,872) (905) = (17,602)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=R=+—H 28,087 228,839 30,029 8,631 295,586

Amortisation and impairment: #8 &R & :

At 1 April 2015 RZE-hEMA—-AH 14,451 33,621 19,826 1,733 69,631
Amortisation for the year FREH (HFET)

(Note 7) - - 1,479 - 1,479
Impairment loss (Notes 15(a)) AR (M:E150) = 94,881 = = 94,881
Exchange realignment RS (579) (1,349) (181) = (2,109)
At 31 March 2016 RZF—-R"F=A=1+—H 13,872 127,153 21,124 1,733 163,882
Amortisation for the year ENEH (H:E7)

(Note 7) - 9,958 1,451 - 11,409
Exchange realignment ERARE (847) (7,768) (363) - (8,978)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 13,025 129,343 22,212 1,733 166,313

Carrying value: REE:
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+$=R=+—H 15,062 99,496 7,817 6,898 129,273
At 31 March 2016 R-E—R"E=A=1+—H 16,040 116,558 8,903 - 141,501
Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & &t &= & E AR A A
Annual Report 2016-17 —ZT— A& —tFFERE 1 67
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17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

(a)

17

BERE (&)

Bt & -
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units (“CGUs") (a) BAERBEECLIBEIREEFAKEZE#H IR S
identified according to operating segment. As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, EAEBM([ReELESEM]) RZT—+FR
goodwill is allocated to the commodity trading segment. —E-RF=ZA=1+—H BEIREFRE
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use REEFBMZ AIRBISEIREREEETE -
calculation. This calculation use pre-tax cash flow projections based on FZETERARBESSMIERERF AR
financial budgets approved by the Board of Directors covering a five-year MREEFEHZHARSREEN - BBAREF
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using growth HEzBeREDAEBBAMG 2 REE
rates estimated by management. #o
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows: ARGTEEREEZEERRMOT:
2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RE
Growth rate for the first five years BREFEZERE 1.96% 2.08%
Growth rate beyond the first five years ~ BB REFE 2 ERXR 1.96% 2.08%
Inflation rate BERE 1.96% 2.08%
Discount rate R E 16.69% 17.77%
These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU within the ZEBRREARIMBEELNREBAZSHS
operating segment. EEBM-
Management determined the weighted average growth rate based on past ERERBAERIAREUTSHR 2 AHE
performance and its expectations of market development. The discount rates TEINHE T8 R K o R A 2 9738 R B R AT
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the operating segment. ERMEEESREH 2 ARBRRK -
Oil exploitation licences represent two rights for oil exploitation in the (b) AMFERFF A B EN D B BRI E A MIBAH

location of Heilongjiang Province of the PRC which will expire in 2027 and
2028 respectively.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18 N—EBERR 2R
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BB T
Cost of investments in an associate A —EB & QAR 2 E K AE
(Note (a)) (MizE(@@)) 75,592 75,592
Contributions to an unlisted associate [ — & 3F il & A 7 H & 9,327 9,327
Share of post-acquisition EhEEEEER
comprehensive losses (84,919) (84,919)

During the year, the movements in the Group’s interests in
associates are as follows:

RER AEERBERAT 2 REED
T

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Carrying amount at beginning FYERMEE

of the year - 21,427
Share of loss of an associate FE(h — A& A AR - (21,409)

Share of exchange reserve JE(h — BB & A BB 5

of an associate

FREMEE

Carrying amount at end of the year

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limi
Annual Report

= (18)
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18 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Particulars of the Group's principal associate is set out as follows:

18 R—BEE AR 2Em

)

H

AEETRBEATNFERINNOT

Name of Place of Proportion of voting power Measurement
the associate incorporation held indirectly Principal activities method
BEQAR AR o AR 37 1t B BEEERRELS ETEREK STERSE
2017 2016
—B—tF —EB—RF
Lee Shing Mining Co. Ltd  Hong Kong 43% 43% Investment holding Equity
(“Lee Shing Mining") (Note (b))
MEBEEER AR B REER (M b)) &N

(ITFIREE])

The Group held 43% equity interests in Lee Shing Mining, which directly
holds 80% equity interests in Guizhou Rongfa Mining Company Limited
(BMKBWEEARR AR ("Guizhou Rongfa Mining”), which possesses
an exclusive exploration right of vanadium mining in Guizhou Province, the
PRC. During the year ended 31 March 2016, Guizhou Rongfa Mining did not
renew its exploration right in view of the continuously declining vanadium
price, resulting in the Group's share of an impairment loss of approximately

HK$21,409,000.

Lee Shing Mining is a private company and there is no quoted market price
available for its shares. There are no contingent liabilities relating to the

Group's interest in Lee Shing Mining.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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(b)

AN SR [ #5 7 FI BT 2 2 43% AR HE - T B AR R 2
HEREEMNERBEERRAR ([EMNEEGE
#]) (HBEATREMENBOBRYTRE)
Z280% KR E - RBEE-T—"F=A=+—8H
IHEE ERIRERFET Y SMNEREE
I AR T E R G BN W AR E R IR
#) F75%21,409,0007T °
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19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

19 FE{ARIE

e S A MR
RS REAE

RECEIVABLES QL]
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Deposits and receivables in respect of U, HE 2 E K
acquisitions/disposals (Note (a)) FEMRIE (Fi5E(a)) 79,178 82,369
Advances to suppliers ) £k FE 7 A R 163,240 93,390
Other receivables and prepayments  H fth & U FIE & 385 A
(Note (b)) (FF&E(b)) 58,289 52,567
Amount due from related parties JiE W g i 5 5RIR (Bt 3E36)
(Note 36) 26,610 -
327,317 228,326
Less: Provision for impairment R EEE (MTEEE))
(Note (c)) (92,765) (94,112)
234,552 134,214
Less: amount shown under B ERBIEEIR
non-current assets TSI R&5E (32,346) (31,538)
Amount shown under current assets i )& ZEIE NFTYIR & 58 202,206 102,676
Notes: B &

(a)

The amounts mainly comprise the following:

On 26 January 2015, the Group entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (“MOU") with independent third parties
(“Vendors”) in relation to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of the target group. On 24 April 2015, the Group further entered into an
acquisition agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”) with the Vendors. Pursuant
to the MOU and the Acquisition Agreement, the Group paid an aggregate
deposit of HK$30,000,000 to the Vendors (the “Deposit”). On 29 February
2016, the Group entered into a termination deed with the Vendors to
terminate the Acquisition Agreement and the Deposit shall be refunded by
the Vendors forthwith without interest. On 23 June 2016, a further MOU
between the Group and one of the Vendors had signed an agreement stating
that the Deposit paid would be convertible into equity interest of no less
than 3% in the target group. Two extension agreements had been signed on
30 December 2016 and 31 March 2017, respectively, to extend the long stop
date of the further MOU to 31 July 2017. On 31 March 2017, a share charge
of 15% of issued share capital of the target group from one of the Vendors
was pledged to the Group. In addition, the shareholder from one of the
Vendors had personally guaranteed to the Group in the event that the one of
the Vendors is in default.

Except for the deposit of HK$30,000,000 in relation to the acquisition of the
target group, full provision of approximately HK$49,178,000 has been made
on the remaining balance in prior years.

ZECHRTIBRETIEE

RZE—AF—AZ+A B AEERBIE
EHR(EADRKBEEEEE 2B T
BRAFT— M TEERORN 2 EEH (B
1) N-_T—RAFMA-+MNAE  KAEEiEE—
SEE A BN R (TRERE]) 1R
B AT R E RS AREAE S X8
& %30,000,0007T ([HE&]) cRZT—X
FZ_AZTNB  REMBEEH TR IR
HILWERE MEHSRET S  HBEASZN

FE-NZB-REANA-+=R ALEEHE
PEBEFAL S RRETERL B

MRS H A EHRS B REETDN3% 2 -
MNERBAID AR T —RF+=A=+
AR=—ZF—tF=A=+—HIXL NRERS
—DRBRTRIEEBLLARE-2—tF
S — BloiN= B 4= E == HLR
BER—REAZAREERHITRAIS%Z
BN IREL TH IR FAKRME - peoh - EF— R &
TEK AREBEF BRI ZERALKE
TR EARER -

B B IS B 1R 5 @ 2 12 € 7% %30,000,0007T
S REEERIBEFEEMB T RIEDEBH
B E 40 %#49,178,0007T

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & &t &= & E AR A A
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19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(c) Movements in the provision for impairment are as follows:

(d)

19

EAFE e R EHAE
UgFRIE (&)

B (g
b EREEHARER 2 RAREREE-

(0 EREZHOT

2017 2016

—E—tF it VAN

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At beginning of the year REH] 94,112 88,241
Impairment losses (Note 6) EEE (Mie6) 4,264 6,788
Written off ik 8 (2,109) (854)
Exchange realignment [E 3, A& (3,502) (63)
At end of the year RER 92,765 94,112

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other receivables net of
impairment are denominated in the following currencies:

(d) BNRE ReREMERKEZREE (K

BAE) THR TS EHE -

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

HK$ B 96,521 58,222
RMB AR 52,161 55,648
us$ E 85,870 20,344
234,552 134,214

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t &= EE B R D E)
Annual Report 2016-17 —Z—AE—+FFEFRE
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20 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other financial assets comprised of the following:

BB R
20 Hit S REE

HheREERENATEA:

n\/T\

2017 2016
—E2-+t5F NS
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Held-for-trading investments: RHIEEEREAE:
Listed equity security in Hong Kong R EE _E MR AE 256 147
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE:
Unlisted equity investment FELETRAKRE
(Note (a)) (Mi3E@) 12,837 5,837
— Less: Provision for impairment — R E R (6,708) (5,837)
6,129 -
Listed equity security REE LT HRARE
in Hong Kong (Note (b)) (P 3E(D)) 23,112 24,533
29,497 24,680
Less: Amount shown under W IERBEERT
non-current assets Fr5) R &8 (29,241) (24,533)
Amount shown under current assets RENEETE NFTAIRE 58 256 147
Notes: PR3
(a) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group entered into an agreement (a) RBE-_T—+tF=A=+—BIFE K&H

to acquire 19.9% equity interest in an unlisted entity engaging in trading of
fuel is in Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$7,000,000. As at 31 March
2017, the management of the Company has conducted an impairment
assessment on the recoverable amount of the unlisted entity prepared by
Colliers International Hong Kong Limited, an independent valuer. Based on
the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$871,000 was debited to the investment revaluation reserve for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

(b) The listed equity security represents the Group's long-term investment of
8.63% (2016: 9.91%) equity interest in Gold Tat Group International Limited
(“Gold Tat"”). It is measured at fair value with reference to the bid prices on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as at 31 March 2017. With reference to the
bid price on the Stock Exchange as at 31 March 2017, the fair value of Gold
Tat decreased by approximately HK$1,421,000 (2016: HK$23,114,000) and
the same amount was debited to the investment revaluation reserve for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

(o] Other financial assets are denominated in HK$.

A LA #7,000,0007T 2 KB K BEREE
RERMEE 2 L THEERZ19.9%BE KR
T—tF=ZA=1+—R ARREEERBEL
HEM S HBERYERER (F8)BERARME
BZIFEMEE 2 AT E S REETRE
AR5 AT B € 88 - R E B 1B 4078 #871,000
THERE-T—tF=ZA=+—HLFEZ
BE B EREEIAE

(b) ETRAESFEAEEARSEREER AR
Al ([£%])863% (ZE—X"F:991% )&
BORPRE -HDNE2ER_T—+F=A
=S+ BEBEBIMZEANBRERRATESE
moﬂ%_f t¢ A=+—AHXHAHE
AB BE-T—tHE=A=+—HItFES
EHR :HET%%’J/’E%1,4Z1,OOOTE(7§*/\
4 :23,114,0007) « LA R BER & B (4 R IR
IRt

(0 Hit & & E T ABEFHE
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21 INVENTORIES 21 78
2017 2016
—E-tfF —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Consumables M = 24
Raw materials R 2,026 2,403
Finished goods BUAK &R 199 199
2,225 2,626

22

The

cost of inventories recognised as expense amounted to

approximately HK$13,518,848,000 (2016: HK$5,803,740,000).

BREAIMGTERARLY B BEK
13,518,848,0007T ( =& — /" F : B
5,803,740,0007T) °

TRADE RECEIVABLES 22 BFREWRIE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables B 5 WA 456,580 359,743
Less: provision for impairment B ORE R (10,139) (11,723)
446,441 348,020

Notes:

As at 31 March 2017, included in the trade receivables were amount due
from clearing houses of approximately HK$2,027,000 (2016: Nil) and
amounts due from securities brokerage clients of approximately HK$327,000
(2016: Nil).

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
assessment system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. The management considers adequate
allowance has been made at end of the year. Balances which are neither
past due nor impaired are all receivables from customers with good historical
repayment records and good credit quality.

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to maintain tight
control over its outstanding trade receivables in order to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are regularly monitored by the management.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @t & Z 5B HBR A A
Annual Report 2016-17 ZZ—AE—EFFEHE

(a) R-ZE—tF=A=+—H0 EZEKRKER
1R WA E AT I8 494 %2,027,000T (= F
—REE)RERELELEPHIBLHBYE
327,0007C (=T —/N4F ) ©

(b) REKEAHEFH ARESERNEEF
EHRGTGEERPZ ERERRRERPE
BERE -EEERRRFERDI L RERME
AEHMTEREZHREDRREABRIFER
HELBERRFERERZEPZBKRIEA

() EREFPRERHRE - REBMBEHE MR
Bl E 5 R R BRI AR EREE
[ - B IR B E MBI H A R
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e SRR MR

22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22 BESEWFIE (&)

Notes: (Continued) MisE: (@)

(d) The settlement terms of trade receivables attributable to the securities (d) BHRCLEBREEZEREREZ BERR B
brokerage business are two days after the trade date. For the remaining X5 BBEME RAKEZ HtEBHE B
business of the Group, trade receivables are on general terms of 30 to 120 SRR IETIIR30E 1208 2 — MRIFFETT
days.

(e) Aging analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date net of impairment is (e) B 5 RWFIE (IR E) RIBE R 5 #2 BRile
as follows: AT

2017 2016

—E—tF T —RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Less than 1 month T~Re—M@EA 342,332 178,547

1 month to 3 months —EAAZE=MEA - 72,463

More than 3 months HBE=EAETR—%

but less than 1 year 104,109 94,768

Over 1 year iR —F - 2,242

446,441 348,020

() Movements in the provision for impairment during the year are as follows: () FROREREBEESHOT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

At beginning of the year REA 11,723 3,779

Impairment losses (Note 6) BEEE (MiFE6) - 9,138

Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RAELE—HHBAR - (1,109)

Written off E| (872) =

Exchange realignment B H A (712) (85)

At end of the year RER 10,139 11,723
As at 31 March 2017, trade receivables of approximately HK$10,139,000 RZT—tF=A=+—8 " %%%10,139,000
(2016: HK$11,723,000) were impaired. No provision was made during (=T —RF:%¥11,723,0000) 2 E 5
the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$9,138,000). The individually BRAREERE - BE_T-—LtF=A=+—
impaired receivables during the year ended 31 March 2016 mainly relate to BEEYEERTAEE(ZT—RF:BE
commodity trading, in which the directors considered the whole outstanding 9,138,0007T) ~BE—T—ARF=A=+—HIE
amount not to be recoverable. FE-ERERERKREEIEREERAN

MEHEMZ 2 HAREZDEH NI -

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limi
Annual Report
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. f=vz) =h =~
22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22 B5BNFEIE (@)

Notes: (Continued) [ EE )]

(9) Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with an (9) AEME P REAEHBERAAENREE
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$100,887,000 (2016: 100,887,0007T ( =ZZ — 74 : B #£149,292,000
HK$149,292,000), which are past due at end of the year for which the 70) BRFRE 8 HI e FE AR 3R - i 2N £ [ 3f A
Group has not provided for any impairment as there has not been a MEELEARERE RRAEEEETES
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered AEB - BZERBNER R ATUE - A EEIW
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. BERZSEAFAEMNERR - BRBELE
Aging analysis of trade receivables from other segments based on due date IRER R B H D 32 B 5 R IAaRE D S
which are past due but not impaired is as follows: HEBREA T :

2017 2016

—E—+tF NG

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Less than 1 month TR—EA 5,926 6,007

1 month to 3 months —EAZ=M@A 81,321 57,689
More than 3 months BRH=EAETE—F

but less than 1 year 13,640 85,483

Over 1 year i —F - 113

100,887 149,292

(h) The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in the following (h) BORWREZREED AT ESE:
currencies:

2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
HK$ B 98,469 27,647
RMB AR 67,518 251,918
us$ e 280,454 68,455
446,441 348,020
15 £
23 LOANS RECEIVABLE 23 FERER
2017 2016
—E—+HF ZE-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
LR BETR
Loans receivable JE W E R 121,934 19,913
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (4,809) -
117,125 19,913

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Loans receivable to the extent of approximately HK$104,860,000, which
arise from the money lending business of providing short-term loans to
independent third parties in Hong Kong, are denominated in HK$.

Loans receivable bear coupon interest rates ranging from 17.0% to 36.1%
(2016: 8.0% to 60.0%) per annum and are repayable with fixed terms
ranging from three to twelve months. The carrying amounts are determined
using the expected future repayments discounted at effective interest rates
ranging from 15.16% to 36.05% (2016: 7.35% to 59.67%) per annum.

Certain loans receivable are secured by collaterals. The maximum exposure to
credit at each of the reporting dates is the carrying value of the receivables
mentioned above. Interest income of approximately HK$19,625,000 (2016:
HK$9,823,000) has been recognised as revenue in the consolidated income
statement.

As at 31 March 2017, loans receivable of approximately HK$77,889,000
(2016: HK$19,913,000) are neither past due nor impaired. The maturity
profile of the loans receivable based on maturity date is as follows:

BRI EE

IJF

23 BWER (@)

REBBAB LS = HRERBERERMmE
A7 R E SR A 5104,860,0007T 0 T A B
HE-

BURERINZEEENFEF17.0%E36.1%
(ZZ—RF:8.0%%60.0%)  REEEER
HENF=Z2+_@A -REEHEHRKE
IR T HF15.16%536.05% (=T — N
7.35%%59.67% ) 2 B FIERFTHRETE -

ETREERHERRIERR - REHREAY
AZZBEREERBRA FRERKEZ KR
B0 45 #19,625,00000 (Z T — NF B
9,823,0007T) Z Fl BIL A B AR A W R AT
RBAU S

R-ZT—tF=A=+—R0 BREROBE
W8%0%m(7§*ﬁ$/§%w9BDm
TC) 3 4 8 B IR AR ME o FEUR B AR R B I B AT
H2IEBERMT

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Less than 1 month 2—M®A - 5,405
1 month to 3 months TI)EJ Z2=@A 74,320 9,894
More than 3 months but less than 1 year #2i@=1{8AE LR —F 3,569 4,614
77,889 19,913

As at 31 March 2017, loans receivable balance of approximately R-ZZB—tF=A=+—R0 BREREHH

HK$22,162,000 (2016: Nil) are past due at end of the year for which
the Group has not provided for any impairment as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The maturity profile of the loans receivable based on maturity
date which are past due but not impaired is as follows:

/%%22,162,0007z<_7 NEEIRFRE
iEHR - 7T AR S [ A Rk EL VR R DR E R R B
AEEERYEBEAEE ARSHENHAR
AETIRE - B @ B8 AROR B 2 S AR R B
HEE 2 BIEERMT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Less than 1 month ’—MEA 9,100 -
1 month to 3 months ﬂﬂﬁ Z=EA 12,557 -
More than 3 months but less than 1 year i@ =1{FF18 LR —4 505 =
22,162 -

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited @t K E 5B G A A
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23 LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

23 FEWREF (&)

(Continued) MizE: (@)
(Continued) (a) (%)
As at 31 March 2017, loan receivable from money lending segment of RZZE—tF=ZA=+—H BERHEELEZ
approximately HK$4,809,000 (2016: Nil) was impaired. The amount of the FEUE KIS #64,809,0007T ( ZF— 1 F : &)
provision was approximately HK$4,809,000 as at 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil). ERE-R-_T—+F=A=+—8 BELH
It was related to a third party customer for whom the directors are of the #) R 754,809,000 (Z T —RF ) - Zd
view that the collection of the loan receivable was not probable. HHEERR/TAERHEKEEKERZE=
FEFAER-
Movements in the provision for impairment during the year are as follows: FRORERBEESHOT
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF T REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year REY) - =
Impairment losses (Note 6) AEEE (Fize) 4,809 -
At end of the year RER 4,809 -
The credit quality of loans receivable has been assessed by reference to BRERZEEERNELEERUFHER
historical information about counterparties’ credit history. Except for the 2 ESEERHEETRI B AR E=
individual third party customer mention above, the other counterparties do FEFIN B F 75 AE I S E KR 8% o
not have defaults in the past.
As at 31 March 2017, included in loans receivable was advances to margin (b) RZZT—tF=R=1+—H0 EBEREXRLER

clients in margin financing amounting to approximately HK$17,074,000
(2016: Nil), which are bearing interest at commercial rates, secured by the
underlying pledged securities and are repayable on demand. The carrying
values of advances to margin clients in margin financing approximate to their
fair values. No aging analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors,
an ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the nature of the business of
securities margin financing.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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RBECBMENTELTRESEE Z BRI
17,074,0007C (ZZF — /N4 ) IR ER
Fite LB RSB S ERRRAKREX
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EEEAATERE WEBEBRERIN  RE
REFRAERBFRECHEEH Y
BRI EEE -




e AR MR

2017 2016
—E—LF ZE-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T

Derivative financial instruments RIEEBE 2ITE

held-for-trading: SRTA:

Foreign currency forward contracts INEER BB A H) - 510
Total derivative financial instruments PTESmIASE - 510

The derivative financial instruments are held-for-trading
purposes. The fair values of foreign currency forward contracts at
end of the year are provided by the counterparty banks.

At 31 March 2016, the notional principal amounts of the
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts were
US$8,000,000 (approximately HK$62,000,000). The strike rate
for the forward foreign exchange contracts was 6.45. The strike
rates are expressed as the RMB to US$ exchange rates.

Loss recognised on the changes in fair value of the foreign
currency forward contracts during the year ended 31 March
2016 amounted to approximately HK$5,786,000.

The carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments assets
were denominated in RMB.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was
the fair value of the derivative financial assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

TEERIADNKEEEREMN -RF
KNG ERENN R TFEIHEFT
RITERMH -

RZZE-—X"E=ZA=+—8 0%k
HERHBIINEAGANEBELRESER
8,000,000 7T (%)% ¥62,000,000
7)) o EHIINE S BRI IITHIE R6.45
HITHNERTABAREHETHESE -

RZTB—RE=ZA=1+—08 " stoNEE
AN A TEZSERNEEBO RS
#5,786,0007T ©

FeSBTAEE ERENNUARE
HE-

RBEAH RREERRANEGS M
BARRBRATESREEL A FE.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited %@ & &5 E AR A A

Annual Report 2016-17 —E—ARE—+FFERE

179



n‘/T\

B R AR MR

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFBERS 283,922 208,168
Less: Client trust bank balances B BEERRITE

(Note) (BI&E) (5,056) =

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEeSEIER 278,866 208,168

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

Re RRITEBOREBEDINTIEE
FHE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

HK$ ok 55,299 127,586
us$ %75 877 20,825
RMB AR 227,734 59,753
Others Hib 12 4
283,922 208,168

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's bank balances of
approximately HK$54,774,000 (2016: HK$77,858,000) were
deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

Note:

The Group maintains segregated deposit accounts with banks and authorised
institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal course of business.
The Group has classified the brokerage clients’ monies as cash held on behalf of
brokerage clients under the current assets section of the consolidated statement
of financial position, and recognised the corresponding accounts payable to
the respective brokerage clients on the grounds that they are liable for any loss
or misappropriation of their brokerage clients’ monies. Cash held on behalf of
brokerage clients is restricted and governed by the Securities and Futures (Client
Money) Rules under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 gt & Z £ B BR A 7
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R_ZE—+tF=ZA=+—HB K&EH
ZRTTHE SR B 54,774,000 (=&
— N B #77,858 ooo%)aﬁ)\ﬁtﬂ
BT - HZEFEcEHPRHEL
EPEAZH?EMI\EE%IJﬁE%UEE%iEEJJ&
SER

i

AEERRITRGERBBRIBITRERS UAFE
HREFREBBRFELEZEP IR - ARERGAY
BRAKRARBDEER S HERTLPRASEARER
EPFRHAZRS YERSAUELEFS IEEETEjﬂ
BTRAEZABR L BRENSALLEEF ZEEKRY
REREFPHAEZREE GBHERABRK) BT <<E§
HFRME (BPHE) R RRHIRAE -
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26 TRADE PAYABLES

e PR ERR M

B 5 BRE

2017 2016

S e

HK$000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Trade payables (Note (a)) B S EMAFIE (K@) 132,005 255,020
Bills payable FE =& 3,192 19,904
135,197 274,924

Notes: B 7 -

(a) As at 31 March 2017, included in the trade payables were amounts due to (a) Rn= :‘*t¢7ﬂ5+* A BSEMNRER
clearing houses of approximately HK$2,186,000 (2016: Nil) and amounts due FEREAT & E T RRIAL B #2,186,000T (=2
to securities brokerage clients of approximately HK$6,596,000 (2016: Nil). —NEFE) &Jfﬁaﬁ FEEEFRBEHNBE

6,596,0007C (= F —/XF &) o

(b) The majority of trade payables are either repayable within one year or on (b) ABHBHGRARBER —FAEERIREKR
demand except where certain trade payables to securities brokerage clients BE HETENBARLEEPREREFPR
represent margin deposits received from clients for their trading activities EEEBBREFRITZE S EFDHAWRZRE
under normal course of business. Only the excess amounts over the required SREBIN-EBBMITAZRECREEE
margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand. RERMBE-

(0 Trade payables to securities brokerage clients also include those payables (©) BABEHFRLETFE I RANMBIEFRNRA
placed in trust and segregated accounts with authorised institutions of %T%Z?%;f:%%ﬁ%ﬁz%ﬁ% K5 5,056,000
HK$5,056,000 (2016: Nil). T(ZFB—RF:F)

(d) No aging analysis is disclosed for amounts due to clearing house and (d) HREERR BHEEMREFERLREFR
securities brokerage clients as in the opinion of the directors, it does not give T8 & R G A b AR O 0B - B I A
additional value in the view of these businesses. WERRD-

(e) The following is an aging analysis of trade and bills payables excluding (e) NTREZENFERRER (TBELAEMR

clearing house and securities brokerage clients presented based on the
invoice date and date of the bills at end of the year.

Aging analysis of trade payables is as follows:

EEREEF)RFRERERABREEAHE
S 2 BRER AT

BHRNREZRERANMT :

2017 2016

—E—+tHF T —XE

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Less than 1 month B—EA 66,043 113,886

1 month to 3 months —ﬂﬁlﬂ Z=@A 20,986 58,767
More than 3 months BB=EAETE—F

but less than 1 year 36,194 79,474

Over 1 year HBiA—F - 2,893

123,223 255,020
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e SRR YA

. =) Fon -
26 TRADE PAYABLES (Continued) 26 B 5 BAIFIE (#)
Notes: (Continued) BEE: (8
(e) (Continued) (e) ()
Aging analysis of bills payable is as follows: BENRBEZRESTIT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EB-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Less than 1 month ~R—EA - 2,302
1 month to 3 months —@EAE=MA - 13,526
More than 3 months BR=EAETE—F
but less than 1 year 3,192 4,076
3,192 19,904
(f) The carrying amounts of trade and bills payable from other segments are (f) B REMDMBENER 2 EMEDATIE
denominated in the following currencies: HEtE:
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
HK$ po g 44,189 10,942
us$ e 50,193 49,820
RMB AR 40,815 214,162
135,197 274,924

27 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 27 EFTRIEREMMENRIE

2017 2016

ZE—tF —E—RK
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Consideration payables FERRE 5,640 6,006
Receipts in advance TEWFRIB 104,232 103
Construction cost payables JE A AR A AR 11,935 9,549
Other payables B E < 1B 45,667 34,096
167,474 49,754

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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27 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

28

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R MR

27 FESTRURENK H B RRIA

(%)

FEET IR N B A B SRIR Y AR EE 5 A

denominated in the following currencies:

THE%tE:

2017 2016
—E-tfF —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
HK$ B 38,896 25,062
RMB AR 38,977 24,692
us$ E 89,601 =
167,474 49,754

BANK BORROWINGS 28 RITEE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF = B
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Bank loans, secured BEREBITER 32,631 =
Bank loans, unsecured EERIBITER 187 -
32,818 =

At 31 March 2017, the Group's borrowings were repayable as
follows:

-
B

N—F—+E=A=—0 ARERE
P ERER T

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Within one year —FR 3,367 —
Between one and two years —E=MF 3,306 -
Between two and five years MERAF 10,299 =
Over five years AFENRE 15,846 =
32,818 -

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t R E &M AR A A
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e SRR A

28 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 28 RITEE (&)

Notes: B 7 <

(a) Bank loans contained a repayment on demand clause which enables the (a) RITERBER ’iT%%ﬁEZﬁEﬁﬂEﬁﬂ%
bank to exercise at its sole discretion. Accordingly, the entire balance was FeBEL RZT—tF=A=+—8 25#
classified under current liabilities as at 31 March 2017. BRI RTRBEE-

(b) As at 31 March 2017, the bank loans were interest-bearing with variable rate (b) RZT—tF=ZA=+—H RITERDRZF
at contractual interest of HIBOR plus certain basis points per annum. The ,wﬁ%\ Mz B REBRITAEF M F
effective interest rate for the year was ranged from 2.23% to 12.59%. The ETEHNENFIEFAE - FRERFEN T
borrowings were repayable on monthly instalment basis up to maturity in 2.23%ZE12.59% - BENREHARSRITEE
accordance with the terms set out in respective banking facility letters. R 2 IR B HARS IR A D B S A o

() As at 31 March 2017, the Group pledged the following assets to secure the (© RZZ—tF=ZA=+—HB AKEEHEAT
Group's trading facilities: NEEERAEBR B IMEMNER:

(i) Corporate guarantee executed by the Company for an unlimited (i) RARWEHE FREBE2 ARIER(Z
amount (2016: Same); and T—XRF:HR) &
(ii) Investment property with carrying value of HK$106,118,000 (2016: (ii) BRI E &5 %106,118,000T (= F
HK$23,349,000) (Note 16(d)); — N4 5 #623,349,0007T) 2 IR E W)
% (MiEE16(d)) +

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings at 31 March 2017 are (d) RZT—tF=R=+—H AEERTEE
denominated in HK$ and approximated their fair values. HRREE T A BB HEY BE AT EMESE -

(e) The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the (e) REXR AEBEENXEZH I ABRLENE
contractual repricing dates at the end of the year are as follows: HEEABMT

2017 2016

—E—tF T -REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

6 months or less L 61E A 32,818 -

29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 KA

Number of shares

(thousands) Share capital
ROEE
(F8&) B
Note HK$'000
B &k BT
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—REWHA—H 8,000,000 80,000
Increase in authorised share capital FREERAEM
during the year (a) 7,000,000 70,000
At 31 March 2016 and 2017 iy /\& T—+F
ZA=1+— 15,000,000 150,000

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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29 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

n\/T\

Number of shares

BRI EE

(thousands) Share capital
RHEE
(FR) [
Note HK$'000
B sE BETT
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAE:
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE-—RFMA—AH 4,985,724 49,857
Placement of new shares (0] (b) 766,668 7,667
Exercise of warrants 110 R AR 7 (© 465,000 4,650
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZE-—R"F=R=+—H
RZB—-RFENA—-H 6,217,392 62,174
Placement of new shares e & ¥k 19 (b) 1,333,332 13,333
At 31 March 2017 R-_Z—+&=ZA=+—H 7,550,724 75,507
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as BREE AR R WER AR B IR A K

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Notes:

(a) On 25 November 2015, an ordinary resolution was passed on
the extraordinary general meeting to approve the increase in the
authorised share capital of the Company from HK$80,000,000 divided
into 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) to
HK$150,000,000 divided into 15,000,000,000 Shares by the creation of
additional 7,000,000,000 Shares.

(b) On 5 April 2016 (2016: 18 September 2015 and 4 January 2016), the
Company issued 1,333,332,000 (2016: 100,000,000 and 666,668,000)
shares through placement with a price of HK$0.13 (2016: HK$0.138 and
HK$0.13 each respectively). The net proceed from the placement was
approximately HK$165,533,000 (2016: HK$13,800,000 and HK$82,767,000)

B I*ﬁ$¥7§"$ AAELZEER—

RBEEZARSERM-

P & -

(a) S

R AT RRENRAREN

F-AF+-AZ+tHARA REREFH

ASLRAB—HEBRRBR UILERZER
7,000,000,0008% A& 15  #§ A8 A RIVE TE AR AN 8 7

#£80,000,0007¢ (53

#38,000,000,0000% 78 22 7]

T mAk (AR 1H 1) )4 hn = 7% #150,000,0007T

(% %15,000,000,0008% B& 13 ) °

(b) R=-F—
—ﬁﬁhﬁ TNBR=%—

ANENAREBR (ZF—
NE—A@A) -

RE %

AARDRIBEBRERGRERIZT(ZF
/\E %0138 R B #50.137T) 2 B &
71,333,332,000/% (=2 — 754 : 100,000,000

after netting off related transaction costs of approximately HK$7,800,000
(2016: Nil and HK$3,900,000) respectively.

(o] During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company allotted and issued
465,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each at exercise prices ranging from
HK$0.1526 to HK$0.1800 per share as a result of the exercise of non-listed

warrants.

fi% %666,668,0008% ) * B & ~ FT 15 7K 18 ¥ R &€
MER A RA 22 5 R AN 9 B #0745 %7,800,0007T (=
T — N BB ¥3,900,0007T) ) BB
165,533,0007T ( =% — /N4 : 113,800,000
JT K ##82,767,0007T ) °

RBE-_ZT—AF=ZA=+—HILEFEE K27
R 17 3F - i wR AR A 7 i 2% &2 B17465,000,000
REREES0.01 T2 R1D - BRARD Z1T1E
BN FA#0.1526 T £ B #0.18007T ©
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30 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a) Share options

The Company has a share option scheme for eligible directors
and employees of the Group.

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 24 June 2013, a
new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) has been
approved and adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may, at their discretion, offer employees, contracted celebrity,
advisor, consultant, serial provider, agent, customer, partner
or joint venture partner of the Company and its subsidiaries
(including any directors of the Group), the grant of options
to subscribe for shares of the Company representing up to
a maximum of 10% of the shares issue as at 24 June 2013
(excluding shares issued on exercise of options under the Share
Option Scheme).

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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e SRR A

30 AR A 2 78

(a)

B

ARBE-ERETAEESERES
NiEE 2 B E

RZE—=F A +MHBERTHRE
FrRIA & b ANRQ BRI A IR A
BROES S (TR E]) -

RIEERETE NAREZAHEM
ARRREMBAREES 6HER-
B ZHM-20HEEs RE R
F AERHEREEB T (BELAEE
AMES) ZHERE  LREEENR
ZER_TE—=FNA-tTHABHT
BRD10% (NRIETTERBIRETSIET
RIS ITROAR D) I AR R RIRR (D -



Details of the Company’s share options granted under the share
option scheme and their movements during the year are as

n\/T\

B R M

RER ARBREBREAEREZ
BREREEFH ZFBNOT

follows:
As at As at
1 April 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 2016 Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited 2017
RZB-AF RZ-t&
RHAH g2 ] TR mA-H & (13 &M R4 =A=t-A
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Executive Directors 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to
21 April 2018
HTES “B-REMA-TZA B RETA-TCRE
“Z2-\¥@A-+-A
Mr. Li Zhenjun HK$0.193 = 5,000 = = - 5,000
FHEERE EB0.1937
Mr. Poon Sum HK$0.193 - 50,000 - - = 50,000
BRAE EE0.1937T
Mr. Wong Kwok Leung HK$0.193 - 50,000 - - - 50,000
EEREE 101937
Mr. Poon Wai Kong HK$0.193 = 25,000 = = - 25,000
BEREE EB0.1937
Non-executive Director 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to
21 April 2018
FUfES Z2-"EMAZ1ZR ZEBREtRCTZRE
Z2-\fmAZt-H
Mr. Zaid Latif HK$0.193 = 1,000 = - (1,000) -
Zaid Latif & 0,193
Independent non-executive 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to
Director 21 April 2018
BUkUTES Z3-"¥MA=TZAH ZE-RETA-TCRE
—5-\§mA=1+-A
Mr. Chan Shu Kin HK$0.193 - 3,500 - - - 3,500
RERAEE B0
Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung HK$0.193 - 3,500 - - - 3,500
FHBEE 01937
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu HK$0.193 - 3,500 - - - 3,500
ERERE EB0.1937
Employees 22 April 2016 22 October 2016 to HK$0.193 - 73,800 - - (500) 73,300
21 April 2018
Es Z2-"¥mA=TZAH ZE-RETA-tCRE 01937
—5-/\§mA=1+-A
- 215,300 - - (1,500) 213,800
Exercisable at end of the year 213,800
RERTFE
Weighted average exercise price - 0.193 - - 0.193 0.193

EFaTER

During the year ended 31 March 2017,
options (2016: Nil) and 73,800,000 share options (2016: Nil)
were granted to the Directors and certain employees respectively.
The fair value of the share options at the date of grant was
HK$0.059 and HK$0.052 for the Directors and certain employees

respectively.

141,500,000 share #HZE - =

141,500,00017 & i # ( =
73,800,00017 BE i #E (=& —

BrEREANREEHBEZA
0.0597T & /& #0.0527T °

CERSAS4-oALEE

= JNeaE ¢ d Wiy
/—\¢ )T

IRTEERETRE -HHEERETE

NFED B BB
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B R AR MR

The fair values of share options granted during the year were
calculated using the Binominal Model. The inputs into the
models were as follows:

Grant date
% H 8

Grantee

S UN

Share price at grant date
R BB RE
Exercise price

1TEE

Expected volatility

A Bt

Risk-free rate
B L

Expected dividend yield
TR AR B

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the most recent
period commensurate with contractual life of the share options.

The Binominal Model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the options are based on the independent
professional valuer’s best estimate.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group has recognised
share-based payment expenses of approximately HK$12,186,000
(2016: Nil) (Note 8). The Group also reversed share-based
payment expenses of approximately HK$85,000 in relation to the
forfeiture of 1,000,000 and 500,000 shares of the Non-executive
Director and certain employees respectively.

As at 31 March 2017, 213,800,000 share options were
outstanding (2016: Nil).

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 @t & Z £ B HBR A 7
Annual Report 2016-17 —Z—ARE—+FFEHRE

EAEWF’&@%HQ%Z@WEE%T&#H:
HHEETEEAFE ZRAZHAE
R

22 April 2016 22 April 2016
—ZE—RF —E—REF
MAZ=+=H MAZ=+=H
Directors Employees
% =]
HK$0.190 HK$0.190

75 #0.1907T & 10.1907T
HK$0.193 HK$0.193
7E#0.1937T HH0.1937T
73.48% 73.48%
73.48% 73.48%
0.65% 0.65%
0.65% 0.65%

Nil Nil

Firid iz

7 7

FEHR IR THARIR A 1 B AR (B 0 A A
BRHREE Z ST R 2 B K EE

iE°

“HHEEBEAT DB ARE R
B2 AFE-HEBREN D FEMKF
Rz BB RBRRIIZE LB EAEMZ
REEMFHEL -

HE-_Z—+tHF=A=+—HLFE"
AEBEERABRMDIFZRERS
#4975 112,186,00000 (=T — /N ¢

/) (MIEES) - NEE IR HE o BRIk
%ﬂh%%&”ﬂ@iz 000,000 ¥
500,0000% % 15 #& 8] LA B 19 % 1~ 2 738
X 4978 #85,0007T

R-B—-—+HFE=ZA=+—8"
213,800,00017 B BG4 M R 1T1E (= F
—NEFE)



On 16 October 2008, the Board of Directors of the Company
approved the Share Award Scheme (“Share Award Scheme”)
in which selected employees of the Group, including without
limitation any Executive and Non-Executive Director, officer,
agent or consultant (with payroll) of the Group, are entitled to
participate in the Share Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of
the Share Award Scheme.

On 27 October 2015, the Board of Directors resolved to grant
awards for a total of 45,000,000 awarded shares (“Awarded
Shares) to certain employees under the Share Award Scheme.
The Awarded Shares were purchased from the market during
22 October to 27 October 2015 at a range from HK$0.177 to
HK$0.180 per share in accordance with the terms of the Share
Award Scheme. The Group has engaged a trustee, for the
purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme and holding
the Awarded Shares before they are vested. During the year
ended 31 March 2017, 30,000,000 Awarded Shares amounted
to approximately HK$5,370,000 were vested (2016: 15,000,000
Awarded Shares amounted to approximately HK$2,685,000)
and no outstanding as at 31 March 2017 (2016: 30,000,000
Awarded Shares). The fair value at date of grant was HK$0.179.
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recognised share-
based payment expenses of approximately HK$8,055,000 (Note
8).

e AR MR

RZBZENFETA+TRAB AR
%@T R AD 22D E JrilJ(FHx{’ﬁé%@Jqu
Bl RERMEBRFEZHAE AE

EEFRE BRETRRAEEE
MATRIFATES SRAR K2
AHER (ZHm) - 9EE2 Mk 8
Ehat &l e

RZFE—RAF+AZ+tH E=F
EEABRBERGOEEFERD S H
45,000,000% 22 E) A% 0 ([22EN AR 0 1)
FTETHREE -BEROHIDEZZT—A
F+AZ+ZHE+AZ+tHBHHER
B RENRT B ZARFIA TR N T8
#0177 2B 0180 LM T B[ -
AEBEZRE—BXTAEERMN ZEH
B RN ERROERBAIRFAEZER
M-BEZT—EF=A=1+—HLHF
€ - %7 A7 #5,370,0007T 2 30,000,000
REBKRG (ZE—NFHNABK
2,685,0007T 2 15,000,000/ 22 @ AZ 17 )

EEBE MR _ZE—+F=A=+—
H-## (=% — /<4 :30,000,0000
RENRRD) REIR DI RERB - RN
HHBZRAFEAEBKITIT -HE
—T-RFEZA=Zt+HULEE A&
ERRARMDI Az RBERATLEE
8,055,0007T ( ffE8) »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR A

30 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Non-listed warrants

The Company also issued 200,000,000 non-listed warrants
to the Honorary Chairman of the Company on 3 June 2011;
350,000,000 non-listed warrants to an external consultant in
respect of consultation services received on 29 November 2012
(Note 20(b)); and 370,000,000 non-listed warrants to certain
independent third parties on 25 October 2013.

No warrants were issued during the year ended 31 March 2017
(2016: Nil).

The warrants were measured at fair value of approximately
HK$20,040,000 at the initial recognition, and were credited to
share-based payment reserve in accordance with HKFRS 2.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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350,000,00017 FF E TR AR #EFE - LR
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=75 % 77370,000,00017 3F _t T R & 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Non-listed warrants (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recognised net
aggregate share-based payment expenses of approximately
HK$3,943,000 (Note 20(b)) in respect of the non-listed warrants
to an external consultant.

Details of the Company’s share options granted under the share
option scheme and warrants outstanding and their movements
during the year are as follows:

e SRR MR

30 UM S 2:E (8)
() ELHAERERE @

HE-_Z—X"FZA=+—RHLFE"
REBERBETT —RBIINEERZIEELE
MRBEEBEERARD I 2 HKERH
SR RAMAREN BB 13,943,0007T (MiEE
20(b)) °

RER - AAFREERAE BIF L 2
B S A T 10 R AT 1 2 SR ASCAEE B A 5 18 %
HEHMT:

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-E-tFZACt-ALEE

As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited As at
1 April during during during during 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 2016 the year the year the year the year 2017
RZB-RE RZB-tF
BHAH g2 & mA-B  RERRE REATE  RERXR  REARK ZAZt-8
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
TR TH TR TR TR TH
Non-listed warrants
FLmRRER
Independent third parties 25 October 2013 25 October 2013 to HK$0.1526 20,000 - - (20,000) -
24 QOctober 2016
BuE=H ZF-=F ZZ-ZETA-TRRE BH0.I56T
tA-tEA “Z-E+AZTEA
Exercisable at end of the year -
RERAFE
Weighted average exercise price 0.153 - - 0.153 - -

ETSTRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

30 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 30 BABRR 2 {4 2 FRIE ()

() Non-listed warrants (Continued) () FELMRRESE (&)
Details of the Company'’s share options granted under the share RER ARBREBRETSIRE 2
option scheme and warrants outstanding and their movements FEMRRE R AR AT 2 RRIEE B 1B &
during the year are as follows: (Continued) HEHmT: (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE-F-AE-A=T-HL%E

As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited As at
1 April during during during during 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 2015 the year the year the year the year 2016
RZZ-B%F RZZ—7F
RhAs i i@ MA-B  REARL RERAE  RERKE  RERRK ZA=1-A
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
7R 7R TR TR 7R TR
Non-listed warrants
EALELT §
Consultant 29 November 2012 1 March 2013 to HK$0.180 335,000 = (335,000) - - -
28 November 2015
B —3-CF “2-Z§=f-B% 71501807
T-B=thR “Z-BE+-ACtNB
Independent third parties 25 October 2013 25 October 2013 to HK$0.1526 150,000 - (130,000) - - 20,000
24 QOctober 2016
BUEZH 2% ZF-CFTHA-TEBE B%0.1526T
+A-tEA “Z-RE+AZTEA
485,000 = (465,000) = = 20,000
485,000 = (465,000) - = 20,000
bt e of e ————— m
RERTTE
Weighted average exercise price 0172 - 0172 - - 0.153
MEFEE
During the year ended 31 March 2017, no non-listed warrants REBEEZFT—+tF=A=+—HBLHF
were exercised (2016: 465,000,000). EOMENTFFELITRBRES(ZF
—7N4F 1 465,000,00017 ) °
1 92 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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The net movements in the deferred income tax liabilities are as

e AR MR

BELEFMEHRARFRESHN T :

follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At beginning of the year B"E?ﬂ (2,224) (2,797)

Credited to consolidated RERE W ERFTA
income statement (Note 12) (BFsE12) 252 370
Exchange realignment M H 38 # 156 203
At end of the year RER (1,816) (2,224)

Deferred income tax liabilities mainly represent accelerated tax
depreciation recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

RAFERBAEFE BEEMESHEE
FEACHEROMERBETERELES)
BHymT

2017 2016

—E—t5F —E-RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At beginning of the year RE ] (2,274) (2,847)
Credited to consolidated RERE W RETA

income statement 252 370

Exchange realignment PE i & 156 203

At end of the year RER (1,866) (2,274)

The deferred income tax liabilities are expected to be recovered
after more than 12 months.

BEEMEHAERARBE T —EAR
Y -
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BRI R AR MR

At end of the year, the Group has deductible temporary
differences, including assets impairment and unused tax losses
of approximately HK$364,945,000 (2016: HK$364,945,000)
and approximately HK$268,707,000 (2016: HK$309,071,000)
respectively. No deferred income tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised during the year ended 31 March 2017
(2016: Nil) in relation to unused tax losses due to unpredictability
of future profit streams.

Deferred income tax assets mainly represent tax losses recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

RER AEEMATNHERER.
PIEEERBERANABANEEIS
o B4 A& 7S ¥364,945,000 (=&
—NF B 1364,945, 00077:)& 7
#268,707,0007T (Z T — N F : B
309,071,0007T) ° A IR BEEN AR A 40
THE 2= E2 DA SH FE SR BUE FI A9 AT BB 1
Tﬁvllﬁtlﬂﬂﬁduﬁf‘%%%‘mmﬁh
%EEEEZJ;EUE HEE- H\Et

i ) SRV B A TRORI - MRl 4B kR Eh A
RIEEERREEHBEEE (ZT—X
Fom)o

BEMBEHEETIBRNAFEIBE
FEZCHAVABERLEE:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BET T BT

At beginning of the year RE ] 50 50
Charged to consolidated AR A U s 7= HIBR

income statement - -

At end of the year RER 50 50

The unrecognised tax losses amounting to HK$214,877,000
(2016: HK$250,944,000) can be carried forward indefinitely
and the remaining HK$53,830,000 (2016: HK$58,127,000) will
expire in 5 years.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 gt & =SB BR A A
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e PR ERR M

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Unsecured bonds EERES 439,227 366,830
Less: amount shown BmBAGEET

under current liabilities 5 R&%8 (1,004) =

438,223 366,830

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company
issued bonds with aggregated amount of approximately
HK$75,000,000 (2016: HK$134,400,000) to several independent
third parties with coupon rate of 6.00% per annum, payable in 1
to 7 years from the respective issue dates. The amounts of bonds
repayable at their maturities are disclosed in Note 3(a)(iii).

The carrying amount of the bonds are determined using the
expected future payments discounted at effective interest rates
ranged from 5.09% to 13.41% per annum (2016: 5.09%
to 13.41% per annum) prevailing at the respective dates of
issuance.

The fair value of the bonds as at 31 March 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$436,672,000 (2016: HK$364,932,000). The
fair values are determined based on cash flows discounted using
a rate based on the effective market interest rate of 5.20% to
12.82% per annum as at 31 March 2017.

The carrying amounts of bonds are denominated HK$.

HEZZ—tF=-A=+—HIEFE"
PIN/N ﬂﬁﬂaﬂ%*”‘ﬁ%ﬁfﬂm\ﬁ
75 #75,000,0000T (Z & — RF B
134,400,000T) 2 &S FEB XA
6.00%  REEITAHRMETFRE
e RRANEFINABEEEZESE
5 52 P B 5E3(a) i) ©

BEHFEcEREBENEAKRERETA
HERZFEEBRINENF5.09%F
13.41% (ZZE—R"NF:HF5.09% =
13.41% ) IR M TEHAR RIS R ETE ©

RZE—+F=A=+—H EFzA
FEH) BBH436,672,0007T ( ZZ—X
B #364,932,0007T) e AFE T E
RR-ZE—+tF=A=+—HB2FEE
BRI 35 A N F5.20% E£12.82% TR
ZIREREMEE -

BRZRAETABEEHE-
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A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 March 2017, in view of the limited
operations performed, the Group deregistered Beijing Arch
Technology Company Limited (“BJ Arch”), a subsidiary of the
Group with issued share capital of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,980,000). Upon the completion date
of de-registration on 13 January 2017, BJ Arch ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, in view of the continuous
unsatisfactory performance of Global Songkaer Petroleum Co.,
Limited (”"Global Songkaer”), the directors, for the benefit of
the Group, surrendered the controlling power of the board of
directors of Global Songkaer to the non-controlling interest.
Accordingly, the investment in Global Songkaer was reclassified
from an investment in a subsidiary to an interest in an associate.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited & @t & ESEE AR AR
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e SRR YA

33 DEEMED DISPOSAL/DEREGISTRATION OF 33 —RMIBABIRAHE

HsEEEC

HE-_Z—+tF=ZA=+—RHLFE"
EREITZ BREE  AEE R
AEBEZHBAR I RBHEEERK
BRAR([EREH])  BBETRAE
A AR #3,000,0007T (HE 55 R4 78#
2,980,0007T) MR- E—+E—A+=
BT B 8% S REERE
AREEZHBRAR -

REBEE-_FT—A"F=ZA=1T—HLHF
B ERNREMRRELBEREETRA
(MREMRBDEABERE EER
SENEZER RERBRIVREZ
E=SEHIE  WIEZE S TR
AR 2 FEE SR s - EtE - IREIR IR
MRBZRECENBAMBAR 2R

SEAME AT 2 R



The aggregate net (liabilities)/assets

of BJ Arch and Global

Songkaer at the date of deregistration/deemed disposal were as

n‘/T\

REER/BALERN LREH
REFRRREL (AF) EEFES

B IR R M

follows: HOT:
BJ Arch Global Songkaer
R EHE BHNRFHE
2017 2016
ZE—tF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Consideration RE - -
Net (liabilities)/assets: (BE) EEZFE:
Property, plant and equipment M- BE R (FzE15)

(Note 15) - 6,904
Inventories FE - 167
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE - 2,065
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRIE - R E R HE A EK

other receivables IR 60 1,727
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁf_&fﬁ/\“ﬁlﬁ B - 1,633
Trade payables 2 SR - (1,056)
Other payables ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’iﬁm (2,282) (7,953)
Non-controlling interests FEFE M R A - (2,340)
Reclassification of exchange reserves W48 A& H E B 15 [E i

from equity to profit or loss upon EEEER

deemed disposal BEMOEEE - 8,642
(Gain on deregisteration)/ —fEM B AR Z

loss on deemed disposal of (BesERkE)

a subsidiary (Note 6) ®EHEEE (Kie) (2,222) 9,789

Net cash outflow arising BELEEHEEELZ
from deemed disposal RE L FEE
Cash and cash equivalents FIbERERESEFEIER
disposed of - (1,633)
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e TR HRAR MR

On 15 August 2016, the Group entered into a shares purchase
agreement with two independent third parties to acquire
100% equity interests in People Insurance Broker Limited
(“People Insurance”) for a cash consideration of HK$2,400,000.
People Insurance is an insurance brokerage service company
incorporated and carried out business in Hong Kong. People
Insurance has a license to transact all types of general insurance
business and long term insurance (incl. linked long term)
business in Hong Kong.

On 20 June 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a independent third party to acquire 100%
equity interests in China Hong Kong Link Finance Group Limited
("CHKLFG") for a cash consideration of HK$6,000,000. CHKLFG
and its subsidiaries, China Hong Kong Link Asset Management
Limited and Golden Rock Asia Capital Limited (together, the
"CHKLF Group”), are principally engaged in asset management
in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 ACQUISITIONS (Continued)

REEHRRME
34 WWESEETE (&

Details of the acquisition transactions are as follows: WER G2 EmT:
Aggregated
Total
ok
HK$'000
BT
Consideration satisfied in cash KR FAZNRE 8,400
Recognised amounts of identified assets acquired A RN & FE B PT AR Y
and liabilities assumed: BERRERE:
Intangible assets mAE 907
Trade receivables 2 Sl FRIAE 145
Deposits and other receivables =& & CE b E U FRIE 507
Tax recoverable AU B35 18 6
Cash and cash equivalents ReKRESEBEEE 502
Trade payables B S EMNRIA (221)
Accruals and other payables FE &SR IE I H b FE A 5K (68)
Bank borrowings RITEE (276)
Total identified net assets AR EEFEAR 1,502
Licences recognised in intangible assets N EERRZFTAIE 6,898
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEHEL RS RLIFE:
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (8,400)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WERekReFHEER 502
(7,898)
Licences recognised in intangible assets represented the licences RBZEERR A ZEASERR

obtained and required to run the insurance brokerage and asset KR EEBEEBEIERAE 2T

management businesses.

—L:E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

35 COMMITMENTS 35 JKIE
(a) Capital Commitments (a) BEXEIE
The Group does not have any capital commitments as at 31 RZZE—+F=A=+—8 ~E£EH
March 2017 (2016: Nil). BEMERNARZ (T —RFE) -
(b) Operating Lease Commitments — as Lessee (b) REFERE—IEAEAREA
At end of the year, the Group had future minimum lease RER REEREBE T BRI E 2T
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due AIREEEHEMBNTORRKER
within: &
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
No later than 1 year —FR 8,920 6,118
Later than 1 year and —FUERFAA
no later than 5 years 9,663 8,954
18,583 15,072
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the REAENFTERAERERES THAS
Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated MEREBNNELS BHEERNTF—F2FR
in a range from 1 year to 5 years. No arrangements have been EHENG M Emp R R S N REET(E
entered into for contingent rental payments. Al 225k o
(c) Operating Lease Commitments — as Lessor () REHERE—1EALERAA
At end of the year, the Group had future aggregate minimum RNER KNEBRER—ERNIEH T
lease receipt under non-cancellable operating lease which fall AR ST E MR K FEBE WAL
due within one year: 2
2017 2016
—E2—tF T -RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
No later than 1 year —FR - 2,124
200 Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t &= EEBR QD E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

35 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 35 JKiE
(c) Operating Lease Commitments — as Lessor () REHERE-FAEHBEA @

(Continued)

Operating lease receipt represents rentals receivable by the KEHEWAERNEE R EREYEE
Group for its investment property. Leases are negotiated in WrHe HER - FFHES MR
1 year term. No arrangements have been entered into for PEGR A @ WA E T HE-

contingent rental receipts.

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BEHEEALIRS
(a) Transactions with related parties () EEREALTZRS
Compensation of key management personnel: FEEBRASHRM:
All members of key management personnel are the directors and FIBEEERABERARFNESERE
other members of key management of the Company. Details of ZEEEMNEMKES - BEHMAOFS
their remuneration are as follows: [
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Salaries and short term employee FeRkEHESRET
benefits 12,172 10,970
Post-employment benefits EEEER 128 81
Share-based payments VAR 19 2 1+ 2 3RIR 9,026 =
21,326 11,051

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limi
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

36

(b)

37

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BEEEALTRSG (&)
(Continued)
Balances with related parties (b) EEBEATZHEER
2017 2016
—g—tf e
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Amounts due from related parties FEUS B A TR 26,610 =
Notes: P & +
The balances are unsecured, interest free and repayable within one year. Up to the DEREBRAEER RRREAR—FNEE -BEEiE
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has received ZEGEUBREEH AEEEEMERTKREE
the entire amount from related companies. S

EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT 37 Bk Rk A HIE =18
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Saved as disclosed elsewhere to these consolidated financial MRz FhR e MGk HAth i 5 P B2 &
statements, subsequent to 31 March 2017, the Company issued R _E—+FE=ZA=+—H%E XK
bonds with an aggregate amount of HK$67,900,000 to several RAABEEILE = FBRITRE R
independent third parties with coupon rate of 6% per annum 67,900,000TC 2 &%+ FEEE E6%
and maturities of 3 to 7 years. BEHAR R3ETF -
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As at 31 March

=ZA=+-H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RE
HK$'000 ‘HK$'0070
BT T BT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER =S 55 1
Interests in subsidiaries KRB ARz 615,343 615,343
Prepayments, deposits and BRNRIE -ZE Rk
other receivables H {th g W 5078 29,232 30,399
644,630 645,743
Current assets wE®gE 00T T
Prepayments, deposits and TBNFIE ZE Rk
other receivables H {th e g 508 9,362 9,555
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Yt /&8 A &) 70 E 450,053 92,485
Cash and cash equivalent RekFeEHHEEAR 27,367 100,275
486,782 202,315
Total assets wmEE 1,131,412 848,058
Equity and Liabilities EakEE
Equity attributable to owners of K2 @A ARG
the Company
Share capital A& < 75,507 62,174
Reserves ke Note (a)
Bt 5T (a) 605,185 411,668
Total equity ERBEEHE 680,692 473,842
Liabilities af&
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bonds 55 438,223 366,830
Current liabilities RBE®
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 3R I8 K H h JE < RIE 11,493 6,064
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN EINGIE S - 1,322
Bonds &5 1,004 -
12,497 7,386
Total liabilities BEEEE 450,720 374,216
Total equity and liabilities ERRABHEE 1,131,412 848,058

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2017 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Poon Sum
EHR
Director

BE

REE:

Poon Wai Kong
B
Director

EF

RRRZBBRARER T —LFX
A-T=REFeELH TIESRK

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited %@ & & 5@ AR A A
Annual Report 2016-17 —ZF—ARZE—LFFERE
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AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR YA

38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

38 AR Tz MR & K
wEE (#)

st (a)A 2 7] 2 & e 2 B

Share-based

Share Treasury Other payment  Accumulated
premium shares reserves reserve losses Total
HRGB X2
R EE ERRH HifE RERE Eny i) By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETT BETT BETT BEFT
At 1 April 2015 RZZE-REMA—R 575,127 - 5,450 25,861 (227,677) 378,761
Loss for the year FAFE - - - (131,481) (131,481)
Repurchase of ordinary shares RIBMR 1 B IR B B AR
under share award scheme - (8,055) - - - (8,055)
Vesting of shares of R 17 2Bt &l 2 RV T
share award scheme - 2,685 - 5,370 - 8,055
Placement of new shares [ 88,900 - - - - 88,900
Exercise of non-listed warrants e LR EE 100,279 - - (24,791) - 75,488
At 31 March 2016 RZB-"E=ZA=1+—-A 764,306 (5,370) 5,450 6,440 (359,158) 411,668
Profit for the year FRHET - - - - 29,131 29,131
Vesting of shares of R 17 SR8l 2 RIDE T
under share award scheme - 5,370 - (5,370) - -
Placement of new shares REHRR 152,200 - - - - 152,200
Recognition of equity-settled HRAREEEOURD TR
share-based payment HE - - - 12,186 - 12,186
Forfeit of share options BRI - - = (85) 85 -
Lapse of non-listed warrants JEETRRRAE R K - = s (1,084) 1,084 =
At 31 March 2017 RZB-t&=A=+—-H 916,506 - 5,450 12,087 (328,858) 605,185

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 2@t &= EEBR QD E)
Annual Report 2016-17 ZZT—XE—LEFFERE



The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2017:

Place/

country of
incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of
issued share
capital/registered

e AR MR

RZE—+tHE=A=+T—B2FEWNE

RNAIBEWT:

Proportion of
nominal value

of issued share
capital/registered
capital held by the

Name of subsidiary operations share capital Company Principal activities
NGNS,
BRITRE/
SMRLREM BRITRA M HRRAEE
WELREE gewl /BHRX RAEE MBS  FEEE
China-Hong Kong Link Finance Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100.00% Money lending
Company Limited
hERRBERAF B 1REREEEK1TH B
i tn
China-Hong Kong Link Securities Hong Kong 10,000,000 shares of HK$1 100.00% Brokerage of securities
Company Limited
MERESBRAA EA 10,000,000/ & B EI {8 BEHER
BEITHRG
Go Wealthy Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100.00% Property investment
mEREBRATF B 1REREEEKITH Y
i)
Hai Tai Limited BVI 100 shares of US$1 each 100.00% Property investment
BRBRATE EERUEE 100 B EE1ETH %£&§
Bigul
PetroAsian Energy Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100.00% Money lending
hERREBERRR B 1R EREERE 1 TH -
B fn
Wing Shing Chemical Macao Macau MOP500,000 100.00% Commodity trading
Commercial Offshore
Company Limited
KA DRMBEFE % RP JRP9%500,0007T BHmE5
BRBERRAF
Shenzhen Galali Petroleum and PRC RMB5,000,000 100.00%  Trading of fuel oil and
Chemical Limited chemical products
AT AR IERAR FE AE%5,000,0007T kit IERE S
EERBTRILABAYE PRC US$9,200,000 95.69%  Exploitation and sale of
BREFAR crude oil
EERET R AR FE 9,200,000% 7T BRRHE R
BEREFRE

RIEBE—tFRF-—REF=ZA=+—
B ENEAREAHANEE S B
ERZ ISR -

There are no subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that
are material to the Group as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.

ETHBREFEREMDBINTAARFE
EFrRAGaMBEHRR 225 -

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with presentation of the consolidated financial statements
adopted for the current year.

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited % &t & = & ® 4 R 2 &)
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As at 31 March 2017 RWZZ—+&F=A=+—H

Property
LIES

Type
=Wl

Remaining
lease terms

BT HM

Percentage of
interest attributable to
our Company

RARELEESA DL

Car Parking Space No. 1053
On 1st Floor

Manhattan Hill

No. 1 Po Lun Street
Kowloon

-

FEAT15%

SE L

11

{2 B35 105358 E L

Flat B On 52th Floor of Tower 2
Manhattan Hill

No. 1 Po Lun Street

Kowloon

=

EEHA15%

SR\

ZEES2HEBE

Unit 11-14 on 8th Floor
Wing On Plaza

No. 62 Mody Road
Kowloon

-

[ 315 38 6 2557

KR E%

11-148 T81&

Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited 12 gt & Z £ B BR A 7
Annual Report 2016-17 —Z—XRE—+FFEHRE

Carpark
EX==8

Residential
RS

Office

NS

Medium term

5

Medium term

+ 5

Medium term

ekl

100%

100%

100%



Five Years Financial Summary

hFHBHRE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T—=F —ZZT—NF —T—HF —T—RF ZB—+&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T BT T BT T

REVENUE U z& 991,810 982,327 804,167 5,932,235 13,832,372
PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE A QX &l A A

TO OWNERS OF FEE %A,

THE COMPANY (E518) (115,255) (151,155) (148,305) (227,059) 117,760

REVENUE Uz

HK$'000
BT

6,000,000 13,832,372

5,000,000

4,000,000

3,000,000 5,932,235
2,000,000

1,000,000 991,810

982,327 804,167

0

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY &2 BB A {5 %A,/ (&E)

HK$'000

50000

BT 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
150000

-50000

-100000
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-200000

100000
-250000 (227,059)
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Five Years Financial Summary

FEHFEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

—E—=F ZE-—NFE ZZT—HE ZT—FRF =ZEBE—+tH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T BT BT BT T

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 885,144 934,955 1,156,171 1,075,279 1,432,419
TOTAL LIABILITIES e N= (162,371) (329,141) (681,355) (693,943) (778,509)
TOTAL EQUITY AR 722,773 605,814 474,816 381,336 653,910

HK$'000
BT

800000
722,773

700000

605,814
600000
500000
400000
300000

200000

100000

2013 2014
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TOTAL EQUITY #E = E %

474,816

653,910

381,336

2015

2016 2017



Tou Rong Chang Fu Group Limited
= == == —

RAREEEARAT

21st Floor, 80 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

BB EFELTITE80R2112

Tel EiE 1 (852) 2698 6093  Fax {HH : (852) 3580 7793

Website #84k : www.trcf.com.hk
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